
City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 10/23/2015 8:27 AM 

Mayor: Dennis Norton
Vice Mayor: Ed Bottorff
Council Members: Jacques Bertrand

Stephanie Harlan
Michael Termini

Treasurer: Christine McBroom

REVISED

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2015

7:00 PM

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010

All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.

All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Ed Bottorff, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini, and Mayor 
Dennis Norton

2. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.

A. Item 8.B.:  Revised Attachment 3 (Bandstand Policy)

B. Item 8.C.:  Communication from the public regarding the Climate Action Plan (CAP)

3. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
October 22, 2015

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 10/23/2015 8:27 AM 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are 
requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may 
be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time.

5. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration.

6. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS

A. Consider an Appointment to the City's Traffic and Parking Commission 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider an appointment to the City's Traffic and Parking 
Commission to fill a vacancy for a Village Business Owner.

7. CONSENT CALENDAR
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed 
for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government.

Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the October 8, 2015 Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

B. Approval of City Check Register Reports Dated for September 4, September 11, 
September 18, and September 25, 2015 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Check Register Reports.

C. Consider a Resolution to Extend the Three-Hour Village Parking Limits within Designated 
Parking Meter Zones in the Village, Zone A1, until February 1, 2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution.

D. Receive the Quarterly Financial Reports for the Fourth Quarter Budget and Third Quarter 
Sales Tax Report 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive reports. 

E. Consider Awarding a Contract for Street Striping Services 
RECOMMENDATION: Award a contract to Safety Striping Service, Inc in the amount of 
$29,836.00 for street striping services throughout the City.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
October 22, 2015

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 10/23/2015 8:27 AM 

F. Award a Contract to Michael Arnone and Associates for the Preparation of Construction 
Documents for the Rispin Park 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Take the following actions:

1. Award a contract to Michael Arnone and Associates in the amount of $61,885 for the 
preparation of Rispin Park Construction Documents;

2. Select Design Option 1 for the Wharf Road wall which includes modification of the 
existing wall to improve visibility and public safety;

3. Select Design Option 1 for the amphitheater location and direct staff to return with the 
documentation as necessary to allow construction of the amphitheater as proposed.

G. Receive Report Regarding Public Works Staff Augmentation to Assist in Reducing Backlog 
of the City's Capital Improvement Projects 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report.

8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision.

A. Provide Report on City's Preparation for Potential El Niño Activity 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report and provide direction.

B. Consider an Amendment to the Administrative Policy Governing the Capitola Bandstand 
Policy 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider an amendment to the Capitola Bandstand Policy 
relative to Community use policies and procedures and provide direction.

C. Consider a Resolution Adopting the Climate Action Plan 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution approving the Addendum to the General 
Plan Update Environmental Impact Report and adopt the Climate Action Plan.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the 
determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within 
ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil 
Procedure §1094.6.  Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when 
a decision becomes “final.”  Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” upon 
the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing.  Failure to comply 
with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in court.

Notice regarding City Council:  The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
October 22, 2015

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 10/23/2015 8:27 AM 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet are 
available for review on the City’s website:  www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at the 
Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting.     Agendas are also available 
at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola.  Need more information?   Contact the 
City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are 
available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with 
a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990.  Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in 
the City Council Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300.  In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.

Televised Meetings:  City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the meetings 
and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of Santa Cruz 
County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s 
website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video”.  Archived meetings 
can be viewed from the website at anytime.

http://www.cityofcapitola.org
http://www.cityofcapitola.org


ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 8.B. 
10/22/15 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

ATTACHMENT 3 (REVISED Draft V-7 Bandstand Community Use Policy) 

I. PURPOSE: 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

CAPITOLA BANDSTAND 
Community Use Policies and Procedures 

Number: V-7 
Issued: April 12,2007 
Jurisdiction: City Council 

---The purpose of the Capitola Bandstand Administrative Policy is to establish specific 
policies and procedures for use of the facility by the community. An informational handout, 
which contains the policies and procedures of this Administrative Policy (Attachment 1), will 
be provided to persons interested in using the Bandstand. 

II. FACILITY DESCRIPTION: 

The Bandstand is located at Esplanade Park overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay 
National Marine Sanctuary. The Bandstand facility consists of the following: 

• 600 square foot covered stage 
• 2,000 square foot plaza 
• Electrical connections: 6-20 amp dedicated circuits, u-ground receptacles located on back 

wall of stage and above the Bandstand on the roof trusses 
• Restroom facilities are available adjacent to facility 
• Bandstand is accessible to persons with disabilities 
• No existing seating structures 
• No sound amplification equipment provided 

III. POLICY: 

A. Availability, Booking & General Use Information: 

The Bandstand is owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use 
by the public upon approval of a Special Events Permit. 

1) All events, other than those activities that qualify - under open play, held on the 
Bandstand are required to have an approved Special Event Permit (SEP). 
Applications are available on the city's website at www.ci.capito\a.ca.us. or by 
calling the Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-4242. The SEP application 
contains all the necessary information for scheduling an event, including 
requirements for security, amplified sound, entertainment permit, insurance, 
parking, alcohol, food, etc. A separate SEP is required for each event to be 
booked. 

2) Advanced booking is required through the Capitola Police Department. 
Applicants must call the Police Department to determine availability for 
tentative scheduling prior to submitting the SEP application. 

2.A

Packet Pg. 5

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
.:

  R
ev

is
ed

 A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
3 

(B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



3) Special Event Permit applications must be submitted no later than 60 days prior 
to an event. 

4) Bandstand availability is dependent upon City events, prior approved City
sanctioned events, and the *Capitola Beach Company lease agreement (see note 
below). 

5) Days & Hours of Use: The Bandstand is available any day of the week between 
the hours of9:00 am to 8:00 pm. 

6) NO ALCOHOL PERMITTED without prior City Council permission. 

7) Reserved use of the Bandstand must accommodate public access to the upper 
Esplanade Park, the Public Restrooms and the Beach. 

8) The Bandstand can be reserved for Private Events, but the park area cannot be 
closed to the public. 

9) No parking of vehicles on Esplanade Park is allowed except when delivering 
equipment. 

*NOTE: Capitola Beach Company: The Capitola Beach Company operates a beach equipment rental business 
adjacent to the Bandstand from April through September. The hours of operation for the business are fromlO:00 
a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Any use of the Bandstand while the rental business is open shall not interfere with their 
operations with the exception of a limited number of events as determined by the City of Capitola. Users of the 
Bandstand shall work with the owners of Capitola Beach Company to accommodate delivery and removal of the 
business trailer, as necessary, for their operation (831) 475-2536. 

B. Equipment & Clean-Up 
1) Any equipment needed for an event will be the responsibility of the user, 

including tables, chairs, audio-visual equipment, etc. 

2) Equipment cannot block the entrance roads, nor should it impede public access. 

3) The City must approve any equipment, apparatus, or materials utilized for an 
event at the Bandstand. 

4) The user must set up their equipment and remove all equipment immediately 
after the event. Users are responsible for all clean up. 

C. Fees and Deposits 
The bandstand rental fee shall be established in the adopted City Fee Schedule. 

The following fees and deposits apply for use of the Bandstand: 

1) 4 hours $.ilQ150 fee aAd $150Q refundable deposit 
2) All da)' $QJQ300 fee and $liQQ300 refundable deposit 
:B In addition to the rental fee for use of the Bandstand, a Special Event Permit Fee 
would also apply. The SEP fee is determined by the event. (See SEP application.) 

A refundable deposit is required in the event there is any damage to the Bandstand. 
Such damage would be determined by the City Manager/Designee. 

2.A

Packet Pg. 6

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
.:

  R
ev

is
ed

 A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
3 

(B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



D. Open Play 
The Bandstand is avai lable for open play by groups and/or individuals on Saturday ' s 
and Sunday's only on a first come first serve basis. During open play, no Special Event 
Permit is required. The hours for open play is between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. (noon). 

Those groups or individuals who desire to use the Bandstand during open play hours 
may only use the facility for no more than one hour when others are waiting. Those 
activities and/or events that are pre-approved with a special event permit or a city 
sponsored event have precedence. 

The following activity is not permitted during open play hours: 
1) Distribution of materials 
2) Solicitation 
3) Amplification 
4) Percussion instruments (drums) 
5) Hanging of banners or billboards 
6) Hate speech 
7) Public trade or exchange of goods or services. 

While open play would be free, the City would reserve the right to revoke a person(s) 
or group(s) privileges for any violations listed above and would be complaint driven. 

Any use of the Bandstand while the rental business is open shall not interfere with their 
operations with the exception of a limited number of events as determined by the City 
of Capitola. Users of the Bandstand shall work with the owners of Capitola Beach 
Company to accommodate delivery and removal of the business trailer, as necessary, 
for their operation (831) 475-2536. 

E9. Exceptions to Bandstand Policy 
Any exceptions or waivers to these policies must be approved by the City Council. 

I 2015April 12, 2007. 
--- .Approved and authorized by the City Council on October 22, 

R iGA HillJamie Goldstein, City Manager 

Attachment 1: Bandstand Informational Handout 

2.A

Packet Pg. 7

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
.:

  R
ev

is
ed

 A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
3 

(B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



CAPITOLA BANDSTAND 
Community Use Policies and Procedures 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

(831) 475-7300 
FAX (831) 479-8879 

Thank you for your interest in reserving the Capitola Bandstand located at Esplanade Park 
overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. The Bandstand is 
owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use by the public upon approval of a 
Special Events Permit. The following information is provided to assist you in scheduling an event at 
the Bandstand and general site rules for the facility. 

Availability, Booking & General Use Information: 
1) All events held on the Bandstand are required to have an approved Special Event Permit (SEP). 

Applications are available on the city's website at www.ci .capitola.ca.us. or by calling the 
Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-4242. The SEP application contains all the necessary 
information for scheduling an event, including requirements for security, amplified sound, 
entertainment permit, insurance, parking, alcohol, food, etc. A separate SEP is required for 
each event to be booked. 

2) Advanced booking is required through the Police Department at (831) 475-5935. Applicants 
must call the Police Department to determine availability for tentative scheduling prior to 
submitting the SEP. . 

3) Special Event Permit applications must be submitted no later than 60 days prior to an event. 

4) Bandstand availability is dependent upon City events, prior approved City-sanctioned events, 
and the *Capitola Beach Company lease agreement (see note below). 

5) Days & Hours of Use: The Bandstand is available any day of the week between the hours of 
9:00 am to 8:00 pm. 

6) NO ALCOHOL PERMITTED WITHOUT PRIOR CITY COUNCIL PERMISSION. 

7) Reserved use of the Bandstand must accommodate public access to the upper Esplanade Park, 
the Public Restrooms and the Beach. 

8) The Bandstand may be used for Private Events, but the park area cannot be closed to the 
public. 

9) No parking of vehicles on Esplanade Park is allowed except when delivering equipment. 

10) Any exceptions or waivers must go to the City Council 

*NOTE: Capitola Beach Company: The Capitola Beach Company operates a beach equipment rental business adjacent 
to the Bandstand from April through September. The hours of operation for the business are from10 :00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Any use of the Bandstand while the rental business is open shaH not interfere with their operations with the exception of a 
limited number of events as determined by the City of Capitola. Users of the Bandstand shaH work with the owners of 
Capitola Beach Company to accommodate delivery and removal of the business trailer, as necessary, for their operation 
(831) 475-2536. 

2.A

Packet Pg. 8

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
.:

  R
ev

is
ed

 A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
3 

(B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



Facility Description: 
• 600 square foot covered stage 
• 2,000 square foot plaza 
• Electrical connections: 6-20amp dedicated circuits, u-ground receptacles located on back 

wall of Bandstand and above the stage on the roof trusses 
• Restroom facilities are available adjacent to facility 
• Bandstand is accessible to persons with disabilities 
• No existing seating structures 
• No sound amplification equipment provided 
• No parking of vehicles on the Esplanade Park except when delivering equipment. 

Equipment & Clean-Up 
Any equipment needed for an event will be the responsibility of the user, including tables, 

chairs and audio-visual equipment. Equipment cannot block the entrance roads, nor should it impede 
public access. The City must approve any equipment, apparatus, or materials utilized for an event at 
the Bandstand. The user must setup their equipment and remove all equipment immediately after the 
event. Users are responsible for ALL clean up. 

F ees/Deposits: 
The bandstand rental fees shall be established in the City's adopted Fee Schedule. 

The following fees and deposits apply for use of the Bandstand: 

1) 4 hours $210150 fee & $& $1500 refundable deposit 

2) All day $630300 fee & $& $1500300 refundable deposit 

3) In addition to the rental fee for use of the Bandstand, a Special Event Permit Fee would 
also apply. The SEP fee is determined by the event. (See SEP application.) 

A refundable deposit is required in the event there is any damage to the Bandstand. Such 
damage would be determined by the City Manager. 

F or more information or to rent the Bandstand, please contact the 
Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-4242 

2.A

Packet Pg. 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
.:

  R
ev

is
ed

 A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
3 

(B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@cLcapitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

sully@cruzio.com 
Thursday, October 22, 2015 3:59 PM 
City Council 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL - ITEM S.C. 
10/22/15 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us); Uharriet, Danielle (duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
Climate Action Plan- Mayor & City Council Members 

22 October 2015 

Hello and Good Day Mayor and City Council Members: 

I am writing as the Chair of the Commission on the Environment (COE) in support of the 
Climate Action Plan (CAP), including the City's efforts to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, 
enhance our green building standards, have robust targets and timetables, and to have point 
of sale energy retrofits/audits. 

As you know, environmental, social, and economic sustainability is a theme and guiding 
principle throughout our General Plan. We need a robust CAP to do our part as a City to 
assist in mitigating the effects of climate change. I do know that an effective CAP will be 
important in ensuring the City's vitality moving forward in the 21st Century. 

We have a strong history in Capitola in contending with the climate crisis. As you may 
recall, past and present Capitola Councils have voted to include and interweave 
sustainability into the General Plan. 
Additionally, past Mayors and Councils have also adopted the Urban Accords and the U.S. 
Mayors Climate Protection Agreement. 

I do worry about present and future generations of Capitola and all citizens of this great 
planet and I spend my life working to ensure that they will have a better quality of life; a 
robust CAP will help to work toward this reality. Moreover, our efforts with the CAP will 
hopefully help to brand Capitola as a sustainable city where the economy prospers, where 
visitors amass, and where the community grows even more vibrant. 

Thank you for your time. I appreciate your dedication in helping to make Capitola an even 
better place to live. Your great, great, great, great,great grandchildren will thank you 
too. 

Kindly, 

Kristin Jensen Sullivan 
Chair, Commission on the Environment 

1 

2.B

Packet Pg. 10

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
.:

  C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
lic

 r
eg

ar
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 (
C

A
P

) 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider an Appointment to the City's Traffic and Parking Commission 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider an appointment to the City's Traffic and Parking 
Commission to fill a vacancy for a Village Business Owner.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: Currently there is a vacancy for a Village Business Owner on 
the Traffic and Parking Commission. The term for this appointment ends in December 2016. 
Staff conducted recruitment for this vacancy beginning September 10, 2015 and was listed as 
"Open until Filled" (Attachment 1). To date, one application has been received from Willie Case 
(Attachment 3).

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Application from Willie Case
2. Traffic & Parking Commission Roster
3. Traffic & Parking Recruitment Notice

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

6.A

Packet Pg. 11



OCT 02 2015 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK CITY of CAPITOLA 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS APPLICATION 

-. Applicatiol"l-fQ"'~: ------

o Art & Cultural Commission 
[Artist; Arts Professional; At Large Member] 
Please underline category above. 

o Finance Advisory Committee 

o Architectural & Site Committee 
[Architect; Landscape Architect; Historian] 

PIJ?a~e underli~e categorv.ab~ve. 

~rafflc & Parking Comm:ft:ols'1:<iI""'"o"""n ---
[Business Representative; At Large Member] 
Please underline category above. 

[Vii/age Resident; il/a e Business Owner; t Large Member] 
Please underline category a 

o Historical Museum Board o Planning Commission 

o Other Committee ____________ _ 

Name: ______ ~ __ )1._~_~ ______________ ~~~_~_t_L __ I _~ ____________________ _ 
Last First 

Residential Neighbo~ood: 

Occupation: 1(Ie-YTgJ/L/-t-,d7 2)uJ.J k/L »!l4Lf- .flt.J5~ 
j 

i 
E~4.C# ~tfLri'7- Gh-rc 

f 

Describe your qualifications and interest in serving o~~s/Board/~olJlmission/Committee:-----

i3 v 5/ ,u Il..S f !!J ~ ..u h/L c; ,.<J ( N~ ?U #A/z~ 4- Z 

tVtf/ c- tZ · g; &.J ~ d> F fttj.) Atf~ £.£$;-tf4 /3' ~?l r tt3;C ,/lfr 5 

9Dr.o DE k27 ~ '7/n~ k-/ /t? A/&, a /4;L ~ .4d.4;/I:"":-L ~ ..:::;?'t-JJ {) 
(Use additional paper, if necessary) 

Please Note: Appointment to this position may require you to file a conflict of interest disclosure statement 
with the City Clerk. This information is a public record and these statem nts are available to the public on 
request. 

Mail or Deliver Application to: 
Capitola City Hall 
Attn: City Clerk 

420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010 

All information contained in this page of the application is public data and will be made available for public 
review and copying for anyone requesting it, and may be posted on the website of the City of Capitola. All 
information in this page will be provided to the Capitola City Council in a public forum and will be reviewed in 
public. It will therefore be part of the public record. 

6.A.1

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
ro

m
 W

ill
ie

 C
as

e 
 (

12
14

 :
 T

ra
ff

ic
 &

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t)



CAPITOLA TRAFFIC & PARKING COMMISSION
CURRENT MEMBERS (2 YEAR TERMS)

NAME APPOINTEE
ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER
& EMAIL DATE 

APPOINTED
TERM 
EXPIRES

Margaret Kinstler Village Resident 2305 Old San Jose Rd
Soquel, CA 95073
(H) 831-476-1370
(C) 831-566-3294 
Email: mmkinstler@aol.com

5/14/09
12/9/10
1/10/13
1/8/15

12/31/16

James Steven Ross Village Resident 218 El Camino Medio 
Capitola, CA  95010
(H) 831-464-2091
(C) 408-206-5980
(W) 408-779-3633
Email: eagledog41@yahoo.com

2/14/13
1/8/15

12/31/16

Carin Hanna Village Business Owner 650 37th Avenue
Santa Cruz, CA  95062
(H) 831-475-4724
(C) 831-251-6230
(W) 831-475-4466
Email: carinhanna@aol.com

5/14/09
12/9/10 
1/10/13 
1/8/15

12/31/16

City of Capitola
420 Capitola Avenue
Capitola, CA  95010

Phone (831) 475-7300
FAX (831) 479-8879

6.A.2

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 &

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

o
st

er
  (

12
14

 :
 T

ra
ff

ic
 &

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t)



TRAFFIC & PARKING COMMISSION • CURRENT MEMBERS

NAME APPOINTEE
ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER
& EMAIL DATE 

APPOINTED
TERM 
EXPIRES

Vacant Village Business Owner

Ron Graves Harlan Appointee 420 Riverview Avenue
Capitola, CA  95010
(H) 831-475-3567
Email: fishsweetheart@netzero.com

5/14/15 12/31/16

Molly Ording Bertrand Appointee 218 Monterey Avenue
Capitola, CA  95010
(H) 831-475-7284
(C) 831-334-5559
Email: mollyording@yahoo.com

5/14/09
12/09/10 
1/10/13 
1/8/15

12/31/16

Ron Burke Norton Appointee 1525 47th Avenue
Capitola, CA  95010
(H) 831-477-0446
(C) 831-359-7778
Email: rburke477@gmail.com

1/8/15 12/31/16

Mike Lee Bottorff Appointee 850 Park Avenue #5A
Capitola, CA  95010
(H) 831-854-2342
(C) 925-876-0251
Email: michaelalee303@yahoo.com

1/8/15 12/31/16

6.A.2

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 &

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

o
st

er
  (

12
14

 :
 T

ra
ff

ic
 &

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t)



TRAFFIC & PARKING COMMISSION • CURRENT MEMBERS

NAME APPOINTEE
ADDRESS & PHONE NUMBER
& EMAIL DATE 

APPOINTED
TERM 
EXPIRES

Nels Westman Termini Appointee 507 Riverview Drive    
Capitola, CA  95010
(H) 831-462-4362
(C) 831-566-9370
Email: nels@bestwestman.com

5/14/09
12/9/10 
1/10/13 
1/8/15

12/31/16

TJ Welch Planning Commission 
Representative

410 Escalona Drive  
Capitola, CA  95010
(H) 831-332-1661
(C) 209-743-7198
(W) 510-618-3490
noworries4TJ@mac.com

5/7/15 12/31/16

Staff Representative:  
Steve Jesberg, Public Works Director
831-475-7300 ext. 217
sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us

Revised: 9/8/15 ss

6.A.2

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 &

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 R

o
st

er
  (

12
14

 :
 T

ra
ff

ic
 &

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t)



 

 
 

APPLICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT TO: 
 

Capitola Traffic & Parking Commission 
 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that there is one (1) seat on the Capitola Traffic & 
Parking Commission for a term that will expire in December 2016.  
 

(1) Village Business Owner 
 

The City Council is seeking applications from persons who are interested in 
participating in the development of short, medium, and long-term plans that address 
traffic and parking demands in Capitola Village by considering citywide traffic and 
parking improvements for consideration by the City Council. Regular meetings of the 
commission are held on the second Wednesday of every other month at 6:30 p.m., in 
the Council Chambers at Capitola City Hall. Specific questions regarding the 
commission may be directed to the City’s staff representative, Steven Jesberg, Public 
Works Director, at 475-7300, Ext. 217, or by email at sjesberg@ci.capitola.ca.us.  

 
 Upon review of applications received, it is anticipated that the Mayor and the City 
Council will make an appointment at a Regular Meeting of the City Council. 
  

Application Deadline: Open until filled. 
 
 Applications may be obtained at Capitola City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, or by 
calling (831) 475-7300 and requesting an application be sent to you. In addition, a 
notice with an application form is available on the City’s website (for printing) at 
www.cityofcapitola.org by selecting City Government / Boards and Commissions/ Traffic 
and Parking Commission OR go to www.cityofcapitola.org/bc. Select the Traffic and 
Parking Commission and click on "Recruitment Notice and Application." 

 
I, Susan Sneddon, City Clerk of the City of Capitola, California, hereby certify that 

the above Notice was posted on September 9, 2015. 
 
 
Dated: September 9, 2015       Susan Sneddon 

         City Clerk 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA  95010 

(831) 475-7300 
FAX (831) 479-8879 

6.A.3

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ff

ic
 &

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 R

ec
ru

it
m

en
t 

N
o

ti
ce

  (
12

14
 :

 T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider the October 8, 2015 Regular City Council Minutes 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the subject 
meeting.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft October 8, 2015 City Council Minutes

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

7.A

Packet Pg. 17



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 10/9/2015 9:32 AM 

DRAFT
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING ACTION MINUTES
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2015 

CLOSED SESSION - 6:00 PM
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Norton called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. He announced the item to be discussed in 
Closed Session, as follows:

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Govt. Code 
§54956.9)
Schroedel et al. v. the City of Capitola
[Santa Cruz Superior Court Case No. CV 175684]

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Govt. Code §54957)
City Council’s Performance Evaluation of the City Manager 

Mayor Norton noted that there was no one in the audience; therefore, the City Council recessed 
at 6:02 p.m. to the Closed Session in the City Manager’s Office.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Dennis Norton: Present, Vice Mayor Ed Bottorff: Present, Council Member Jacques 
Bertrand: Present, Council Member Stephanie Harlan: Present, Council Member Michael 
Termini: Present.
City Treasurer McBroom was present.

2. PRESENTATIONS
Proclamation was read by Mayor Norton regarding Freedom from Workplace Bullies Week.
A. Proclamation Designating October 18-24, 2015, as "Freedom from Workplace Bullies 

Week"
Proclamation received by Cristy Viola, Workplace Bullying Representative.

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
City Attorney Condotti stated that the Council discussed one case regarding existing 
litigation; and the City Manager's performance evaluation; there was no reportable action.

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
City Clerk Sneddon stated that 40 communications were received regarding Item 10.A. 
possible Bike Lanes on Monterey Avenue and Kennedy Drive.

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

21
 :

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
October 8, 2015

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 10/9/2015 9:32 AM 

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
None provided.

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Helen Bryce, local resident, complimented the Monte Foundation for the upcoming fireworks 
extravaganza in Capitola.
Lorena Ramos, County of Santa Cruz Health Services Agency Health Educator, provided 
"No Smoking" signage.

7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
Christine McBroom reported that the Finance Advisory Committee (FAC) is reviewing the 
City's Fee Study; the FAC will present recommendation to the City Council in the near 
future.
City Manager Goldstein reported from the Santa Cruz County Library Facilities Financing 
Authority; there have been ongoing discussions regarding a Regional Bond Measure. There 
will be more telephone polling to solicit community sentiment. The final decision to place a 
bond measure on the ballot will be made the end of October 2015.
Council Member Termini invited the community to an October 28th Workshop to help design 
the future Capitola Library. The Community Workshop will be held at 6:30 p.m. and will be 
held in the Capitola Community Center located at 4400 Jade Street.
Council Member Bottorff stated that the Capitola Public Safety and Community Services 
Foundation will hold its 10th Annual Golf Tournament on October 9, 2015, at the Seascape 
Golf Course.
Mayor Norton stated that the City Council will receive a report at the October 22, 2015, City 
Council meeting regarding the City's preparedness for the predicted El Niño weather pattern 
that may affect the region this winter.
Council Member Bertrand stated that he attended the National Village-to-Village Convention 
in Seattle October 5th − October 7th; he will be providing more information to the City Council 
in the future.
Council Members Bertrand and Harlan provided comments regarding the recently attended 
League of California  Cities Annual Conference.

8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
City Clerk Sneddon reported on future openings on various City Boards and Commissions

9. CONSENT CALENDAR

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Vice Mayor
SECONDED: Michael Termini, Council Member
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

A. Consider the September 10, 2015, and the September 24, 2015, Regular City Council 
Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of October 1, 2015 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

21
 :

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
October 8, 2015

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 10/9/2015 9:32 AM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes.

10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
City Attorney Condotti stated Council Member Bertrand is able to participate in Item 10.A. 
even though he resides within the conflict of interest area because the California Fair 
Political Practices Commission "Public Generally" exception applies. This exception states 
that "notwithstanding any determination that the reasonably foreseeable effect of a 
governmental decision is material, a public official does not have a disqualifying conflict of 
interest in the governmental decision if the governmental decision affects the public interest 
in a manner which is not distinguishable from the manner in which the decision will affect 
the public generally...." 

A. Receive a Report Regarding Possible Bike Lanes on Monterey Avenue and Kennedy Drive 
[940-18]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and provide direction.
Council Member Termini suggested keeping both sides of the street for parking and moving 
the parking on one side of the street out from the curb, and putting a two-way bike lane 
between the parked cars and the curb. 
The following spoke in favor of bike lanes on Monterey Avenue and Kennedy Drive:

 Debbie Hale, Transportation Planner

 Amelia Conlen, Bike Santa Cruz County Director

 Chuck Cannon, Ecology Action Representative

 Christy McCain, New Brighton Middle School Bike-to-School Coordinator

 Steve Piercy, New Brighton School Bike Club Volunteer Coordinator
The following spoke opposed to bike lanes on Monterey Avenue and Kennedy Drive:

 Casey Buckner 

 Laurie Salatich, Capitola Knolls Homeowners Association President

 Dan Steingrube

 Adam Bright 

 Janet Vogel 
Grace Voz, local resident, read a portion of the CalTrans Highway Design Guidelines in 
reference to bicycle lanes should not be placed between parking areas and the curb.
Casey Buckner, local resident, stated that the City should follow the CalTrans Highway 
Design Guidelines regarding bicycle lanes.
Mary Jones, local resident, stated concerns regarding the potential impact to the 
neighborhoods if parking is reduced. She stated that single residences are becoming multi-
residential units which results in more parked cars.
Elizabeth Russell, local resident, suggested that the City put a bicycle path on Park 
Avenue.
Kevin McGuire, local resident, stated concerns regarding the potential impact to the 
neighborhoods if parking is reduced and concerns regarding residents having to cross two 
lanes of traffic.
Richard Lippi, local resident, stated that he is in favor of bicycle lanes wherever feasible; 
however he does not see how the complete elimination of parking along the south sides of 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

21
 :

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
October 8, 2015

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 10/9/2015 9:32 AM 

Monterey Avenue and Kennedy Drive can be accomplished without creating unintended 
consequences for the residents and visitors to the area.
Steve Parrish, local resident, stated concerns with garbage cans along the road during the 
pick-up time. In addition, he stated that RV's take up parking spaces in the summer when 
parked on the north side in front of the Capitola Knolls.
Nels Westman, local resident, stated concerns regarding the possibility of losing 99 parking 
spaces in a residential neighborhood. He expressed concerns regarding the absence of 
sidewalks on Kennedy Drive and McGregor Drive approaching the Park Avenue 
Intersection near McGregor Park.
Cathy Howard, local resident, stated concerns regarding the potential impact to the 
neighborhoods if parking is reduced, and concerns regarding residents crossing two lanes 
of traffic.
Helen Bryce, local resident, suggested pedestrian and bicycle path improvements to 
McGregor Park.
Janet Vogel, local resident, suggested Park Avenue be looked at as a potential location for 
designated bicycle lanes. She suggested working with middle school students to obtain 
their input. In addition, she suggested forming a community group to research this idea, 
and consider the Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic Trail (Rail Trail) segment in the City to 
connect routes to schools.
Council Member Bertrand suggested that a community meeting be scheduled at New 
Brighton Middle School Gymnasium to discuss this matter.
City Council provided direction to Public Works Director Jesberg to come up with some 
plans and have a public meeting.

B. Consider Recommended Changes to the Beach and Village Parking Lot [470-40]
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the recommended changes to the Beach and Village 
Parking lots and direct Public Works to implement the changes over the winter.
Richard Lippi stated police vehicle spaces should be marked "Police" so police officers 
have the advantage of parking near the front of Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot.
Nels Westman, Capitola Parking and Traffic Commission Chair, stated that the Commission 
supports staff's recommendation regarding the proposed changes to the Beach and Village 
Parking Lot.
Mayor Norton suggested that the City should designate spaces in the City's parking lot in 
front of City Hall for City use only from 8:00 a.m. to 5 p.m.
Public Works Director Jesberg suggested putting a time limit of one-hour parking on the 
public spaces in front of City Hall instead of the current two hour parking limit.

RESULT: ADOPTED AND FOR STAFF TO EVALUATE THE CHANGES TO THE 
BEACH AND VILLAGE PARKING LOT AND REPORT BACK TO COUNCIL 
THE END OF THE SUMMER IN 2016 [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member
SECONDED: Michael Termini, Council Member
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

21
 :

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
October 8, 2015

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 10/9/2015 9:32 AM 

C. Consider approving the Regional Winter Shelter Program Funding Shortfall [330-10/750-20]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Increase funding for the Multi Jurisdictional Emergency Winter 
Shelter Program from $14,703 to $20,473 for Fiscal Year 2015/2016.

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member
SECONDED: Michael Termini, Council Member
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

11. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 9:15 PM.

____________________
Dennis Norton, Mayor

ATTEST: 

_________________________
Liz Nichols, Deputy City Clerk

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

21
 :

 O
ct

o
b

er
 8

, 2
01

5 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Finance Department

SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Register Reports Dated for September 4, September 11, 
September 18, and September 25, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Check Register Reports.

BACKGROUND: Check Registers are attached for:

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Check/EFT 
Count

Amount

09/04/2015 81542 81598 149 $245,472.85
09/11/2015 81599 81666 76 $287,856.36
09/18/2015 81667 81720 153 $222,307.43
09/25/2015 81721 81761 47 $234,114.28

The check register of August 28, 2015 ended with check #81531.
The following checks were voided due to printer problems: #81532-41.

Following is a list of checks issued for more than $10,000.00 and a brief description of the 
expenditure:

Check Issued to Dept Description Amount
81594* Folsom Lake Ford PD 2016 Ford Explorer $27,736.61
81604 Atchison Barisone & Condotti CM City Attorney Services - August $16,191.52
81652 Soquel Creek Water District CM July/August water usage $16,257.66
eft161 IRS CM Federal income tax 8/29 $22,917.34
eft166 CalPERS Health Insurance CM PERS Health Sept 2015 $59,892.26
eft167 CalPERS Member Services CM PERS contributions PPE 8/15 $46,292.47
eft168 CalPERS Member Services CM PERS contributions PPE 8/29 $45,843.99
81671 Bear Electrical Solutions Inc. CM Aug 2015 Signal Maintenance $17,311.00
81695 SCC Auditor-Controller PD Aug 2015 citation surcharges $17,352.50
81721 ICMA Retirement Trust CM Sept 2015 ICMA contributions $10,970.02
81730 Earthworks Paving PW Rispin Park Pathway - Phase 1 $41,148.00
eft172 IRS CM Federal income tax PPE 9/12 $24,714.54
eft174 CalPERS Member Services CM PERS contributions PPE 9/12 $45,971.25
eft175 CalPERS Health Insurance CM PERS Health Oct 2015 $59,892.26

*Original checked voided due to a wrong address.

ATTACHMENTS: 

7.B

Packet Pg. 23



Approval of City Check Register Reports 
October 22, 2015

1. City Check Register 9-04-15
2. City Check Register 9-11-15
3. City Check Register 9-18-15
4. City Check Register 9-25-15

Report Prepared By:  Maura Herlihy
Account Technician

7.B

Packet Pg. 24



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

04
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

04
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

04
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

04
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

04
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

04
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

04
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

04
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

11
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

11
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

11
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

11
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

11
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

11
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 39

A
ttach

m
en

t: C
ity C

h
eck R

eg
ister 9-11-15  (1123 : A

p
p

ro
val o

f C
ity C

h
eck R

eg
ister R

ep
o

rts)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

11
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

11
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

18
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

18
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

18
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

18
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

18
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

18
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

18
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

18
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

25
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

25
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

25
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

25
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

25
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9-

25
-1

5 
 (

11
23

 :
 A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution to Extend the Three-Hour Village Parking Limits within 
Designated Parking Meter Zones in the Village, Zone A1, until February 1, 2016 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution.

BACKGROUND: At its March 12, 2015 City Council meeting, the Council adopted Resolution 
No. 4014 (attached) that established new parking time limits within Zone A1 (Village Area). The 
parking time limits in the Village area were changed from two-hour limits to three-hour limits on 
a trial basis. The change took effect May 1, 2015, and is set to expire on November 25, 2015.  
At that hearing in March, Council directed staff to collect relevant data regarding the impacts of 
the change and present those data when the item returned for Council consideration.

DISCUSSION: The Capitola City Council temporarily changed the parking time limits in Zone A1 
(Village Area) from two-hour limits to three-hour limits. The reasoning for this change was based 
on concerns from the public that there was not enough time to visit eating establishments and 
shop within the allotted two-hour time period in the Village. 

Staff is in the process of collecting data to evaluate the effects of the trial program. Staff will 
present comparison data for citations issued, citations contested, revenue changes, and sales 
tax revenue collected in the Village business area, however not all those data will not be 
available prior to the current expiration date of the three-hour trial program. 

The summer sales tax information will not be available until late December of 2015. Citation and 
revenue data for the month of September, 2015, will not be available until November.

As in past years, at a hearing next month the Council will be considering free three-hour parking 
limits in Zone A1 as part of the holiday shopping season. The free three-hour period is 
requested by the Capitiola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce and begins on November 26, 2015, 
then expires on December 26, 2015. 

If, as recommended in this report, the three-hour time trial period is extended until February 1, 
2016, the total number of days the three hour limit would be extended for five weeks.  This 
recommended extension will let staff compile the relevant data and present it to City Council for 
consideration at a hearing in January, and avoid potentially unnecessary expenditures to re-sign 
the Village and reprogram the pay stations.

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

ATTACHMENTS: 

7.C

Packet Pg. 56



3-Hour Village Parking Limits 
October 22, 2015

1. Resolution No. 4014 Establishing Parking Time Limits Within Designated Parking 
Meter Zones (PDF)

Report Prepared By:  Rudy Escalante
Police Chief

…
…

7.C

Packet Pg. 57



3-Hour Village Parking Limits 
October 22, 2015

DRAFT
RESOLUTION NO. ____

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA BY RESCINDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 4014 AND ESTABLISHING PARKING TIME LIMITS

WITHIN DESIGNATED PARKING METER ZONES

WHEREAS, Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.36.290 authorizes the City Council by 
Resolution, to limit the period of time in which a vehicle may be parked within a designated area of 
the street; and

WHEREAS, the time limits were last established by Resolution No. 4014 which was 
adopted in March 2015; and

WHEREAS, the City proposes extending the trial period where the parking time limit in the 
Village is moved to 3 hours.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola as follows:

1. All previous resolutions that established time zones in the following areas shall be 
superseded by this Resolution; and

2. The following time limits shall be established in the parking meter zones:
Zone A1 (Village Area) 

May 1, 2015 to February 1, 2016 3 Hours
All other times 2 Hours

Zone A2 (Cliff Drive Area) 4 Hours on cliff side of Cliff Drive
12 Hours on railroad side of Cliff 
Drive

Beach and Village Parking Lot 12 Hours
3. These time limits shall not apply to all green, yellow, or white parking spaces 

established under Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.37.037 within these zones. 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Capitola on the 22nd day of October, 2015, by the following vote:

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

____________________
Dennis Norton, Mayor

ATTEST:

______________________, CMC
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

7.C

Packet Pg. 58



8283 

RESOLUTION NO. 4014 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA BY RESCINDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 3954 AND ESTABLISHING PARKING TIME LIMITS 

WITHIN DESIGNATED PARKING METER ZONES 

WHEREAS, Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.36.290 authorizes the City Council by 
resolution, to limit the period of time in which a vehicle may be parked within a designated area of the 
street; and 

WHEREAS, the time limits ·were last established by Resolution No. 3954 which was adopted 
in April 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the City proposes a trial period where the parking time limit in the Village is 
moved to 3 hours. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Capitola 
as follows: 

1. All previous resolutions that established time zones in the following areas shall be 
superseded by this Resolution; and 

2. The following time limits shall be established in the parking meter zones: 

Zone A 1 (Village Area) 
May 1 to November 25 2015 
All other times 

Zone A2 (Cliff Drive Area) 

Beach and Village Parking Lot 

3 Hours 
2 Hours 
4 Hours on cliff side of Cliff Drive 
12 Hours on railroad side of Cliff Drive 
12 Hours 

3. These time limits shall not apply to all green, yellow, or white parking spaces established 
under Capitola Municipal Code Section 10.37.037 within these zones. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola on the 12th day of March, 2015, by the following vote: 

AYES: Council Members Bertrand, Termini, and Mayor Norton 

NOES: Council Members Bottorff and Harlan 

ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

St:~ M10,CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

Dennis Norton, Mayor 

7.C.1

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 N
o

. 4
01

4 
E

st
ab

lis
h

in
g

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 T

im
e 

L
im

it
s 

W
it

h
in

 D
es

ig
n

at
ed

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 M

et
er

 Z
o

n
es

  (
11

97
 :

 3
-H

o
u

r 
V

ill
ag

e 
P

ar
ki

n
g



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Finance Department

SUBJECT: Receive the Quarterly Financial Reports for the Fourth Quarter Budget and Third 
Quarter Sales Tax Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the reports. 

DISCUSSION: The attached quarterly reports contain information for the following dates:

 Third Quarter Sales Tax Report: January 1 to March 31, 2015.

 Fourth Quarter Budget Report: April 1 to June 30, 2015.

Detailed information on both subjects can be found in the attached documents.

FISCAL IMPACT: This action is administrative and should not result in a financial impact.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Sales Tax Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014/2015
2. Budget Report 2015 Fourth Quarter

Report Prepared By:  Mark Welch
Finance Director

7.D

Packet Pg. 60



Sales Tax Revenue Report
Third Quarter – Fiscal Year 14/15

Total sales tax receipts for the third quarter of FY14/15 were $2,013,313, which is $19,313 or 1% over budget 
and $96,509 or 5% higher than the prior year.  The Bradley-Burns component generated $913,486 in revenues 
and is $37,186 or 4.2% over budget and $59,827 or 7% higher than the prior year.  In Lieu sales tax receipts 
totaling $647,564 matched the budget and is $38,373 or 6.3% higher than last year.  Measure D produced 
$225,529 in receipts, which is $10,671 or 4.5% under budget and $3,251 or 1.4% less than the third quarter of 
last year.  Measure O contributed $226,734 in revenues, which is $7,166 or 3.1% under budget and $1,560 or 
0.7% higher than the prior year.  A table and graph showing the third quarter sales tax results are shown 
below.

Description FY12/13 
Actual

FY13/14 
Actual

FY14/15 
Budget

FY14/15 
Actual

Amount % Amount %

Bradley Burns 836,015$    853,659$    876,300$     913,486$    37,186$   4.2% 59,827$   7.0%
In Lieu Sales Tax (Apr) 523,674$    609,191$    647,600$     647,564$    (36)$        0.0% 38,373$   6.3%

Measure D 229,835$    228,780$    236,200$     225,529$    (10,671)$ -4.5% (3,251)$    -1.4%
Measure O 689$           225,174$    233,900$     226,734$    (7,166)$   -3.1% 1,560$     0.7%

1,590,213$ 1,916,804$ 1,994,000$  2,013,313$ 19,313$   1.0% 96,509$   5.0%

Third Quarter Sales Tax Revenue Analysis
Actual vs. Budget Actual vs. Prior 

Year

$-

$100,000 

$200,000 

$300,000 

$400,000 

$500,000 

$600,000 

$700,000 

$800,000 

$900,000 

$1,000,000 

Bradley Burns In Lieu Sales Tax 
(Apr)

Measure D Measure O

Third Quarter Sales Tax Revenue

FY12/13 Actual
FY13/14 Actual
FY14/15 Actual

7.D.1

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
es

 T
ax

 T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

14
/2

01
5 

 (
12

10
 :

 F
o

u
rt

h
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

B
u

d
g

et
 a

n
d

 T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
S

al
es

 T
ax

)



Budget Report
Fourth Quarter – FY14/15

Overview:

This report summarizes the City’s unaudited overall financial position for the current fiscal year through June
2015.  All revenue and operating expenditure trends are generally on target with annual projections.      

News and Information:

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
The Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report will be completed by December 31, 2015. Information 
provided in this report is unaudited and may change between this report and the CAFR. The City’s annual audit 
will be completed the first week of November.

General Fund: 

The fiscal year is complete.  The General Fund revenues are 103 percent of the annual projections, while 
expenditures are at 96 percent.  In FY 14/15, increased performance in core revenues have increased revenues by 
$507,698 over the prior year. The City’s expenditures are fairly consistent with budget with the City spending 96
percent.  Additional details are provided in the remaining sections.

Amended Budget YTD Transactions Percent Prior Year

Beginning Fund Balance $       1,076,628 $      1,076,628 

Revenues 14,573,845 14,983,054 103% $14,475,356 

Expenditures 12,616,023 12,029,906 95% 11,911,108 

Operating Subtotal 1,957,822 2,953,148 2,564,248 

Other Financing:

(CIP, Debt Service, Reserves) 2,395,025 2,399,440 3,583,868 

FY14/15 Operating Difference $         (437,203) $         553,708 $ (1,019,620)

Est. Fund Balance $          639,425 $      1,630,336 

General Fund

Budgetary Comparison

7.D.2

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
01

5 
F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
 (

12
10

 :
 F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 T

h
ir

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

S
al

es
 T

ax
)



Key Revenues:

Amended Budget YTD Transactions

% Used 

/ Rec'd Prior Year

Annual % 

of Change

Taxes:

Property Taxes $          1,904,900 $        1,963,272 103% 1,777,633$   0%

Sales and Use Tax 7,315,454 7,330,443 100% 7,179,727 2%

Document Transfer Tax 33,200 77,976 235% 71,742 9%

Business License Tax 280,800 284,474 101% 287,225 -1%

Franchise Tax 485,200 510,842 105% 496,759 3%

TOT Tax 1,251,800 1,275,716 102% 1,263,175 1%

Subtotal - Taxes $       11,271,354 $      11,442,723 102% 11,076,261$ 3%

Other:

Licenses and permits $             249,450 $           283,080 113% 304,218$      -7%

Intergovernmental revenues 235,016 314,037 134% 138,004 128%

Charges for services 1,980,900 2,062,186 104% 2,123,124 -3%

Fines and forfeitures 718,800 757,315 105% 730,668 4%

Use of money & property 51,800 62,102 120% 21,697 186%

Other revenues 66,525 61,610 93% 81,384 -24%

Other financing sources -   - 0% - -

Extraordinary Items -   - 0% -   -

Subtotal - Other Revenues 3,302,491 3,540,330 107% 3,399,095 4%

Total Revenues $       14,573,845 $      14,983,054 103% $ 14,475,356 4%

Revenue

Budgetary Comparison

Taxes – With the fiscal year ending, the City experienced a three percent increase in tax collections over the prior 
year. All tax categories came in above budget.  

Charges for Services – The collections for service charges came in four percent above budget but below the prior 
year.

Other – Intergovernmental Revenues related to grant funding are included in this category.  

7.D.2

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
01

5 
F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
 (

12
10

 :
 F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 T

h
ir

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

S
al

es
 T

ax
)



A chart providing three-year tax trend information is provided for reference:

FY13

FY13

FY13
FY13

FY14

FY14

FY14
FY14

FY15

FY15

FY15
FY15

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0

$8.0

Sales Tax Property Tax TOT Tax Other Tax

Three Year Tax Trends:  Fourth Quarter
Fiscal Year End (FY)

(in millions)

Additional three-year revenue trend information is presented below:  

FY13

FY13

FY13
FY13

FY14

FY14

FY14

FY14FY15

FY15

FY15

FY15

$0.0

$0.5

$1.0

$1.5

$2.0

$2.5

Licenses and Permits Charges for Services Fines and Forfeitures Other

Additional Three Year Revenue Trends:  Fourth Quarter
(in millions)

7.D.2

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
01

5 
F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
 (

12
10

 :
 F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 T

h
ir

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

S
al

es
 T

ax
)



Expenditures:

Expenditures ended the year at 96 percent of budget.  Personnel expenditures increased 1 percent over the prior 
year, while Contract Services increased 3.5 percent, with Other Financing Sources decreasing 33 percent. Overall 
expenditures have decreased 6.88 percent from the prior year.

Three year expenditure trend information by category is presented in the following chart.

Amended Budget YTD Transactions

% Used/ 

Rec'd Prior Year

Personnel $          7,910,707 $        7,745,857 98% $   7,662,840 

Contract Services 2,926,578 2,562,337 88% 2,476,303 

Training & Memberships 82,600 70,604 85% 67,239 

Supplies 568,228 531,547 94% 529,682 

Grants and Subsidies 269,763 269,814 100% 254,270 

Capital Outlay 7,500 (900) -12% 27,849 

Internal Service Fund Charges 850,647 850,647 100% 892,925 

Other Financing Uses 2,395,025 2,399,440 100% 3,583,868 

Fund Totals: General Fund $       15,011,048 $      14,429,345 96% $15,494,976 

Amended Budget YTD Transactions

% Used/ 

Rec'd Prior Year

City Council $             130,240 $           122,590 94% $      111,715 

City Manager 847,919 774,059 91% 818,494 

Personnel 209,744 209,009 100% 188,612 

City Attorney 187,323 197,020 105% 186,944 

Finance 789,080 707,880 90% 750,971 

Community Grants 269,763 269,814 100% 254,270 

Public Safety 6,017,340 5,804,294 96% 5,823,792 

Public Works 2,471,868 2,342,988 95% 2,247,301 

Community Development & Building 739,122 700,597 95% 617,000 

Culture and Leisure 953,624 901,655 95% 912,008 
Transfers 2,395,025 2,399,440 100% 3,583,868 

Expenditure Totals $       15,011,048 $      14,429,345 96% $15,494,976 

Expenditures by Category

Budgetary Comparison

Expenditures By Department

Budgetary Comparison

7.D.2

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
01

5 
F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
 (

12
10

 :
 F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 T

h
ir

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

S
al

es
 T

ax
)



FY13

FY13

FY13

FY14

FY14

FY14

FY15

FY15

FY15

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

$7.0

$8.0

$9.0

Personnel Contract Services Supplies, Internal Service 
Funds, Other

Three Year Expenditure Trends:  Fourth Quarter
Fiscal Year End (FY)

(in millions)

7.D.2

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
01

5 
F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
 (

12
10

 :
 F

o
u

rt
h

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 T

h
ir

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

S
al

es
 T

ax
)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Consider Awarding a Contract for Street Striping Services 

RECOMMENDATION: Award a contract to Safety Striping Service, Inc in the amount of 
$29,836.00 for street striping services throughout the City.

BACKGROUND: The City received two bids for street striping services which includes 
repainting lane lines, bike lane lines, crosswalks, and legends throughout the City. A summary 
of the bids is as follows:

Safety Striping Services, Inc. $29,836.00
Chrisp Company $31,028.80

The bids received were based on quantities and locations provided by the Public Works staff.

DISCUSSION: The contract is part of Public Works annual street maintenance work. Safety 
Striping Services, Inc. has indicated they can start work the week of October 26th and should 
take approximately one week to complete.

FISCAL IMPACT: The Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Gas Tax Fund has $35,000 budgeted for street 
painting. This contract will be paid from that line item.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Safety Striping Bid
2. Chrisp Bid

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

7.E

Packet Pg. 67



r

-=>
I?NCI I gSll

}SAFETY STRIPING i

SERVICE, INC.
PO Box 1020

6868 Avenue 305

Goshen, CA 93227

TEL: (559) 651-1022
FAX: (559) 651-1118

Contractors License #308669
U

%f
74354

!>M,

'#'

Signatory Contractors, Laborer's International, Northern & Southern California
DIR # 1000001574

r
l
l
l
l
l
l
I
l
i
l
l
l

PAGE 1 oF 2

W

CONTRACTOR QUOTATION

PROJECT:Striin&MarkinsMaintenance20l5 DATE: October62615
City of Capitola

QUOTE#: 15-098

ltem # Description Unit Est Qt7 Unit $ Total $

REFRESH STRIPING (SPRAY THERMO):
1 Detail 1 (4" Broken, Yellow) LF 200 0.250 $50.00

2 Detail 8 (4" Broken, White) LF <ioo - 0.250 $1,025.00

3 Detail 21 (Double Yellow) LF 6400 0.650 $4,160.00

4 Detail 24 (4" Solid, Yellow) LF 400 0.500 $200.00

5 Detail 38a (8" Solid, White) LF 300 0.650 $195.00

6 Detail 39 (6" Solid, White) LF 11460 0.550 $6,303.00

7 Detail 39a (6" Broken, White) ' LF 1800 0.550 $990.00

8 Detail 40 (4" Broken, White) LF 60 2.000 $120.00

REFRESH MARKINGS (SPRAY THERMO):

9 Crosswalk SF 2000 3.500 $7,000.00
10 Limit Line SF too 3.500 $350.00

11 "KEEP CLEAR" Stencil EA 14 182.000 $2,548.00

12 "BUMP" Stencil EA 20 84.000 $1680.00
13 Bike Lane Symbol EA 23 24.500 $563.50

14 Bike Lane Arrow EA 23 24.500 s563.50

15 Sharrow Stencil EA <o 81.000 $3,240.00

INSTALL NEW MARKINGS (SPRAY THERMO):
16 Sharrow Stencil EA 8 106.000 $848.00

Safety Striping Service is a certified California DVBE / SBE (#14354)

SEE PAGE 2 FOR CONDTIONS. TOTAL $29,836.00

7.E
.1

P
acket P

g
. 68

Attachment: Safety Striping Bid  (1215 : Street Striping Contract Award)



?p eompatuz
Fremo'rit Officg
43650 0sgood Rd
Fremont CA 94539

Phone: (510)656-2840 Fax: (510)656-2397

Contradors License No. 374600

DIR Registration No. 1000000306
A General Engineering
C-13 Fence, Wire, wood
C-32 Highway Improvement

Quotation Union Contractor / No minority Status

TO:

CAPITOLA, CITY OF
420 CAPITOLA AVE

CAPITOLA

Phone: (831) 475-7300 Fax: ( )
CA 95020

Current Date:

BidDate:

JobName:

Location:

Contract#:

Working Days:

9/29/2015

9/30/2015

CAPITOLA SPRAY

THERMOPLASTIC

CAPITOLA Bid#: 2!sgs2! 0

Job#:

Contact: E€l MORRISON
Liquidated Damages

email:

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNITPRICE TOTAL

)1

)2

)3

)4

)5

)6

)7

)8

)9

10

11

DETAIL 8 STRIPE

DETAIL 22 STRIPE
DETAIL 38 STRIPE
DETAIL 39 / 39A STRIPE

DETAIL 40 INTERSECT?ON STRIPE
50' LEAD LINES AT INTERSECTIONS
12" THERMOPLASTIC LIM?T LINE / CROSSWALK

STRIPE

"BUMP" LEGEND

BIKE LANE / MARKINGS
REFRESH AND / OR NEW SHARROWS

"KEEP CLEAR" LEGEND

4300 LF

6400 LF

300 LF

13260 LF

60 LF

10EA

2100 LF

20 EA

23 EA

48 EA

14EA

Subtotal

0.350

0.700

0.700

0.530

0.350

35.000

3.650

110.000

70.000

eo.ooo

220.000

$1 ,!5os.oo
$4,480.00

$210.00
$7,027.80

$21.00
$350.00

$7,665.00

$2,200.00
$1,610.00
$2,880.00
$3,080.00

$31 ,028.80

TOTAL $31 ,028.80

'Vritten Authorization is Required Prior to Proceeding With Work
p.o. Number

Job

Number

(CCEPTED BY:

'ITLE:

Bond Rate Addendu

1.2%

This quote includes all stipulations found on page 2 QUOTE PREPARED BY Danny Azcueta
(650) 224-m5
dazcueta@chrispco.com
CHRISP COMPANY

Page 1 .of 2

7.E
.2

P
acket P

g
. 69

Attachment: Chrisp Bid  (1215 : Street Striping Contract Award)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Award a Contract to Michael Arnone and Associates for the Preparation of 
Construction Documents for the Rispin Park 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Take the following actions:
1. Award a contract to Michael Arnone and Associates in the amount of $61,885 for the 

preparation of Rispin Park Construction Documents;
2. Select Design Option 1 for the Wharf Road wall which includes modification of the 

existing wall to improve visibility and public safety;
3. Select Design Option 1 for the amphitheater location and direct staff to return with the 

documentation as necessary to allow construction of the amphitheater as proposed.

BACKGROUND: On May 28, 2015, the City Council approved the conceptual plans for the 
Rispin Park and gave direction to staff to proceed with permitting and environmental review. On 
October 1, 2015, the Planning Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit, 
and an Environmental Impact Report Addendum for the project. The 10 day period for appealing 
the Planning Commission’s actions runs through October 16, 2015, which is followed by a 10-
day period during which Coastal Commission staff may appeal the project.  
DISCUSSION: In order to meet the timelines of the California Housing Related Parks Program 
Grant received for this project, staff is recommending immediately proceeding with construction 
drawing preparation so that the project may be bid in January 2016. Should an appeal be filed in 
the interim, the hearings will be held while the design documents are being prepared and any 
necessary design changes would be incorporated. Arnone and Associates proposal, which 
details the scope of work, is included as Attachment 1.
The approved conceptual design includes restoration of several historic features of the property, 
including the entry staircase, grand staircase, reflection pool, sundial, fountain, arbor, interior 
walls, and other ornamental elements. New amenities proposed for the park include an 
amphitheater, a bocce ball court, a children’s nature play area, chess tables, benches, planters, 
bike racks, a drinking fountain, security lighting, interpretative displays and signage, ADA 
compliant pathways, gardens, trash receptacles, and landscaping, including a native oak 
demonstration garden and a Monarch butterfly demonstration garden. There are no 
improvements or alterations proposed to the mansion.
The project includes design options for treatment of the exterior perimeter wall which runs 
parallel to Wharf Road and the size and location of the proposed amphitheater, as described 
below:
Perimeter Wall Design Options
The northern portion of the Rispin Mansion property is presently enclosed by an approximately 
six-foot cast wall which runs parallel with Wharf Road. The wall is in disrepair and there have 
been differing views regarding whether it should be restored and preserved or partially removed 

7.F

Packet Pg. 70



Rispin Park Design Contract 
October 22, 2015

to enhance visibility and public safety. Accordingly, there are two design options for the wall to 
be considered by the City Council:
Option 1: Under Option 1, portions of the wall would be removed to improve visibility and public 
safety, while restoring and preserving other segments to retain the historical ambiance of the 
site. Portions of the wall to be preserved would be lowered to 30-inches with a decorative, 30-
inch wrought iron fence on top. The archway above the entry staircase would be retained.  
Option 2: Under Option 2, the existing perimeter wall would be restored and preserved with its 
current configuration and size.
Amphitheater Design Options
The proposed project includes an amphitheater located southwest of the mansion. As designed, 
the proposed amphitheater would encroach into a narrow “finger” of a conservation easement 
which encumbers habitat areas within the property. The following are the three design options 
related to the amphitheater:
Option 1: Under Option 1, an approximately 430-square-foot amphitheater would be constructed 
as shown in the conceptual design plans. Staff will review the conservation easement to 
determine necessary steps should City Council select this option.
Option 2: Option 2 would reduce the size of the proposed amphitheater to approximately 285-
square-feet and would relocate it closer to the mansion to avoid the conservation easement.  
Option 3: Option 3 would develop an approximately 580-square-foot amphitheater, but would 
relocate it to the north near the former mansion bath house. This option would avoid the 
conservation easement.
Staff is recommending Options 1 for both the wall and amphitheater. The approved conceptual 
design plans, which included both the recommended options for these items is included as 
Attachment 2.  
FISCAL IMPACT: $100,000 of local funding and $384,000 of grant funding is included in the 
current Capital Improvement Program for this project. The cost of this work will be eligible for 
reimbursement from the grant.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Arnone & Associates Proposal for Rispin Park Construction Documents
2. Approved Conceptual Plans

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

7.F

Packet Pg. 71



( 

l 

Michael Arnone + Associates landscape Architecture 
September 22, 2015 

Proposal for 
RISPIN PARK CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION .................................................................. ....... .. ............. ..... .... ... ........... .... .. 3 

II. PROJECT TEAM AND QUALIFICATIONS .............. ..... ......................................................... .4 

III. SCOPE OF WORK ..................................................................... ........ .................................... 5 

IV. PROPOSED FEE SCHEDULE ............ ................................... ................................. ......... ......... 6 

V. INSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 6 

VI. PROJECT REFERENCES ........................................................................................................ 7 

VII. MA+A RESUMES ........................................................................................................ ......... .. 8 

VIII. APPENDIX 1 - MA+A PROOF OF INSURANCE DOCUMENTS ...................................... 11 

IX. APPENDIX 2 - SUB CONSULTANT PROPOSALS ........................................... ...... .......... .. .. 12 

( 
'-

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 2 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( I. 

( 

Introduction 

Michael Arnone + Associates (MA+A) is a landscape architecture firm based in 
Santa Cruz, California. Since its beginning in 1990, MA+A has focused on water 
conservation through the use of drought tolerant plant material and efficient, 
low flow irrigation systems. Our slogan, 'With Nature in Mind' serves os a 
constant reminder that os environmental design professionals we must base our 
work on nature's model. Our goal as stewards of the land is to create and utilize 
wise development practices limiting negative effects on the local and regional 
environment. By listening carefully to client expectations and by gathering 
information about the site and the surrounding environment, we strive to create 
a design that works on all levels. MA+A has had the opportunity to work on more 
than 1000 projects w ith municipal. commercial and residential clients in Santa 
Cruz, Monterey and Santa Clara counties. 

Our firm is excited to work 
with the City of Capitola 
and believe that our 
successful history of built 
projects within the City is a 
testament to our 
commitment to quality 
design in our community. 

For Rispin Park, we have 
assembled a team to 
address the critical aspects 
of this project. In addition to 
MA+A's experience with 
multiple parks and 
community related projects, 
Bowman and Williams w ill 
provide civil engineering to minimize impacts on Soquel Creek watershed and 
address ADA compliancy. Bowman and Williams will facilitate the structural 
engineering and geotechnical with sub consultants Pacific Crest Engineering 
Inc. and Urfer & Associates. Edison Becker Bonjardim of BWW will provide the 
electro-mechanical p lans for the fountain and reflecting pool. Maureen Hamb, 
Arborist will act as the consulting arborist for the project. 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 3 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



II. 

( 

Project Team and Qualifications 

PROJECT LEAD: 

Michael Arnone + Associates, Landscape Architecture - 3370 Samuel Place, Santa Cruz, 
Co 95062 
Michael Arnone, Principal Landscape Architect 
Qualifications: 

o Licensed Landscape Architect since 1989 
o Municipal project experience with County of Santa Cruz, City of Santa Cruz, City of 

Capitola 
o Adjunct Faculty Instructor at Cabrillo College since 1999 (Landscape Design) 
o Extensive experience with low impact development utilizing; 

• Pervious Paving 
• Bio-Retention Basins 
• Rain Gardens 
• Drought Tolerant Plant Material 
• Low Flow Surface and Sub Surface Irrigation Techniques 

o Resident of Santa Cruz/Capitola; active in community activities and development 
o Served on Capitola Arch and Site Committee from 1997 to 2007 
o Member of Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce 
o See appendix 1 for resume and references and Associate Landscape Architect resume 

CONSULTANTS: 

Bowman and Williams - PO Box 1621, Santa Cruz CA 95062 
Civil Engineers 

Pacific Crest Engineering - 444 Airport Blvd., Suite 106, Watsonville CA 95076 
Geotechnical Services 

Urfer & Associates - 2715 Porter Street, Soquel, CA 95073 
Structural Engineering Services 

Bonjardim Water Workshop - PO Box 1918 Soquel, CA 95073 
Electro-Mechanical design 

Maureen Hamb - 127 Stockton Avenue, Santa Cruz CA 95060 
Arborist 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 4 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



/ 

\ 

III. Scope Of Work 
MA+A will provide the following services: 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
A. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

1. Upon receipt of authorization from the Owner to proceed, the Landscape Architect will 
develop landscape construction documents, including Working Drawings and 
Specifications, setting forth in detail the requirements for the construction of the project. 

2. The Landscape Architect will complete the hardscape and lighting plan showing the locations of 
all hardscape elements and lighting fixtures. Details for all elements to be restored and 
introduced to the site will be prepared. 

3. The Landscape Architect will complete the fencing plan and details showing the locations and 
types of fencing to be used. 

4. The Landscape Architect wi ll complete the site furnishings plan showing the location and type of 
furnishing to be used for the project. 

5. The Landscape Architect will complete the planting plan and details for all areas to receive 
landscaping. The planting plan will include sizes, location, spacing, and extent of individual 
materials. Plans will comply w ith City of Capitola and Soquel Creek Water District guidelines. 

6. The Landscape Architect will design an automatic irrigation system to coordinate with the 
planting plans. The Landscape Architect w ill provide a water use schedule and water use 
calculations to comply with local agency requirements. 

7. Construction Documents Sheets will include 
a) Hardscape and Lighting Plan 
b) Site Furnishing Plan 
c) Fencing Plan 
d) Irrigation Plan 
e) Irrigation Details and Specifications (on the drawing) 
f) Planting Plan 
g) Planting Details, Legend and Specifications (on the drawings) 
h) Water Use Calculations and compliance with local water district regulations 

8. Deliverables to be electronic files in PDF format for the following submittals: 
a) 50% Construction Documents, specifications; 
b) Final Construction Documents/Bid Set submittal. 

9. Meetings and Coordination: 
a) The La ndscape Architect has allocated time for meeting on site or at the city offices. 

B. CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION FOR 
1. Construction Observation at critical phases of planting and irrigation installation. Fees will be 

based upon T&M . 
C. ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

1 . The Landscape Architect will consider the following items as additional services. These 
services will be pre-approved by the City of Capitola prior to commencement of work. 
a) Providing planning surveys, soil testing and laboratory results, site investigations, or taking 
measurement of existing construction as required for planning additions or alterations - if 
adequate drawings are not available. 
b) Preparing deductive or no-cost change orders and supporting data. 
c) Providing consultation concerning replacement of any work damaged by fire or other cause 
during construction and furnishing professional services of the type which may be required in 
connection with the replacement of such work. 
d) Providing professional services made necessary by the Contractor in the performance of the 
Construction Contract . 

D. COORDINATION OF SUB CONSULTANTS 
1. The Landscape Architect w ill coordinate work done by sub consultants and oversee the 

management of the preparation of the project construction documents. 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 5 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



IV. Proposed Fee Schedule 
( ~ 

MA+A Landscape Architectural Services $16,100.00 
$165 per hour principal time 
$85 per hour associate landscape architect time 
$45 per hour staff time 

Civil Engineering Services $38,275.00 
Bowman and Williams 
Joel Ricca 
see civil/structural/geotech proposal for hourly fee rates 

Electro-Mechanical Engineering $5,710.00 
Bonjardim Water Workshop 
Edison Becker Bonjardim, Principal 

Arborist Services 
Maureen Hamb, Arborist estimated $1 ,050.00 
$175 per hour arborist time 

Historic Architect estimated $750.00 
Achieves and Architecture 
Leslie Dill, Historic Architect 
$125 per hour 

Estimated Total Fees $61 ,885.00 

( 
\ 

V. Insurance 

$1,000,000 general and office liability insurance underwritten by RLI. 

$1,000,000 errors and omission insurance underwritten by Westport Insurance Corporation 

$500,000 automobile coverage underwritten by AAA 

See Appendix I for supporting insurance documentation 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 6 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



r 

( 

VI. Project References 

Jack Sohriakoff 
Santa Cruz County Public Works 
401 Ocean Street, 4th Floor 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831 .454.2392 

David Ow, Director 
Kings Plaza Shopping Center 
1601 41 st Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
831.475.9042 

Toni Castro, Executive Director 
Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce 
716 G Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
831.475.6522 

Doug Deaver, Construction Coordinator, retired 
Cabrillo College 
6500 Soquel Drive 
Aptos, CA 95003 
831 .662.3246 

Jon Bombaci, Wharf Supervisor 
Santa Cruz Parks and Recreation Dept. 
21 Municipal Wharf 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831 .420.6027 

Peter Shaw, Department Chair 
Cabrillo College 
6500 Soquel Drive 
Aptos, CA 95003 
831 .479.6256 

Matthew Thompson, Architect 
Thatcher and Thompson 
200 Washington Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.457.3939 

Joe Appenrodt 
Top Shelf Development 
4375 Capitola Road 
Capitola, CA 95010 
831.465.9191 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 7 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

VII. MA+A Resumes 
I Michael Arnone, Landscape Architect 

Employment History 
Principal, Michael Arnone + Associates 

Residential and commercial site planning and production of landscape construction documents. 
1990 to present. 

• Instructor, Cabri"o College 
Hort 55A & 55B: Plan Identification & Design, Hort 65: Landscape Design. 1997 & 1998 
Hort 60A Landscape Gardening. 2001 & 2002, Hort 65: Landscape Design Graphics. 2003-present, 
Hort 66: Intermediate Landscape Design 2003-present. 

• Architectural and Site Review Committee, City of Capitola 
Review all commercial and residential development proposals; make recommendations to city planning commission and city 
council. Appointed by mayor March 1994 to January 2005. 

• Instructor, Capitola/Soquel Continuing Education Program 
'Landscape and Irrigation Design for the Home Owner'. 1993 to 1996 

• Associate, Steve Sutherland & Associates 
Project manager for commercial, residential and municipal projects. Produced preliminary plans and construction documents for 
planting, irrigation, grading, erosion control, and construction details. 1989 to 1990. 

• Registered Landscape Architect 
Certification as California Landscape Architect License #3347, October 1989. 

• Associate, Madrone Landscape Group 
Draftsperson responsible for production of planting and irrigation documents for commercial and residential projects. Assisted in 
erosion control design. 1986 to 1989. 

Educational Background 
• Cabri"o College; Plant Materials & Design, Microcomputers, AutoCAD 

1986, 1988, 1996 
• College of Environmental Science & Forestry State University of New York at Syracuse 

Studies in Landscape Architectural Design, Site Engineering, Dendrology, Planning. Bachelor of Science in Environmental 
Studies, Graduated Cum Laude, 1976. 

• Syracuse University, Syracuse, New York 
Bachelor of Science in Forestry, Graduated Cum Laude, 1976. 

• Jamestown Community College, Jamestown, New York 
Majored in Liberal Arts. Associate of Arts Degree, Graduated 1974. 

Awards 
Citizen of the Year 1997 Capitola Chamber of Commerce. 
Designer of CLCA 2001 Beautification Award First Place: Irrigation 
Designer of CLCA 2008 Installation Award First Place: Large Residential 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 8 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Jennifer Clark Colfer, Landscape Architect 

Employment History 
• Registered Landscape Architect 

Certification as California Landscape Architect License #5784, March 2012. 
• Associate, Michael Arnone + Associates 

Residential and commercial site planning and production of landscape construction documents. 
(May 2000 to present). 

• Landscape Des igner 
Quadriga Landscape Architecture and Planning Inc., Sacramento, California, (July 1998-April 2000). My work included 
commercial, institutional, and residential projects. My responsibilities include surveying site conditions, meeting with clients, 
coordinating with other disciplines such as engineers and architects, preparing conceptual and construction drawings, and 
helping to conduct community workshops. 

• Landscape Designer 
Gardenmakers, Landscape Architects, Sacramento, California, (July 1997-July 1998). I worked on all aspects of residential and 
small-scale commercial projects. My responsibilities included surveying site conditions, meeting with clients, preparing 
conceptual and construction drawings and general project administration. 

• Design and Planning Intern 
Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA), Sacramento, California, (December 1996-June 1997). I worked on 
two projects during my internship; I organized an Arbor Day Tree Planting Event as part of the Richards Boulevard Revitalization 
Project and I surveyed and researched the location and content for approximately 50 interpretive and directional signs along 
Sacramento River Bikeway for the Sacramento River Bikeway Sign Program. 

• Architecture and Plann ing Intern 
Mogavero + Notestine, Sacramento, California, (September 1996-December 1996). I made architectural models and did 
research for architects and planners in the office, and maintained general office organization. 

• De sig n and Planning Intern 
Center for Design and Planning Services, U.C. Davis, California, (January 1996-ApriI1996). I worked in a student group to provide 
conceptual solutions to design projects proposed for the campus and nearby communities. 

• Assistant Nursery Manager 
U.C. Davis Arboretum, Davis, California, (July 1994-January 1996). Managed daily operations of a botanical nursery including; 
plant maintenance, propagation, curation of botanical collections and supervision of two undergraduate nursery technicians and 
one high-school intern. 

• Design Intern 
Solano County Resource Conservation District, Dixon, California (April 1994-August 1994). I assisted a Landscape Architect in 
implementing the Wildlife Cooperator Program that encourages local residents in the rural communities of Dixon and Vacaville to 
employ water conserving and wildlife promoting landscape practices. Work entailed meeting with community members at their 
homes and compiling a packet of information specific to their needs. 

Educauona/8ackground 
• Bachelors of Science, in Landscape Architecture, University of California, Davis, June 1997 

Awards 
• American Society of Landscape Architects-

Award for Excellence in the Study of Landscape Architecture. (1996-1997) 
• Landscape Architecture Foundation - University Program Scholarship. (May 1996) 
• Landscape Architecture Foundation - Landscape Architecture Program Scholarship. (May 1996) 
• Luther and Marie Davis Scholarship. (April 1996) Scholarship awarded for outstanding scholastic accomplishments and 

potential for future achievement. 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 9 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

Jessica Benet, Landscape Designer 

Employment History 
Associate, Michael Arnone + Associates 

Perform site inventory/analysis, elevation surveys and site measurements; create base plans using CAD and assist in designing 
planting plans. 
2013- Current 

• Associate Scientist, Quantaphy Inc. 
Grow, maintain and harvest living algae and plankton cultures, pigment extraction using column chromatography, production of 
phycobiliproteins and other florescent algal pigments. 
2007 - Current 

• Field Assistant, Village Ecosystems 
Assist in installing and designing grey water systems 
2013 

Educational Background 
• University of California Berkeley Extension - Certificate in Landscape Architecture 

2014 - Current 

• Cabrillo College, Santa Cruz, CA - Landscape Design Certificate 
2012 - 2014 

• Regenerative Design Institute, Bolinas, CA - Perrnaculture Design Certificate 
2012 

• University of California Santa Cruz - Bachelors of Science in Marine Biology 
2004 - 2007 

Additional Training 
-Central Coast Grey Water Alliance - Grey Water Workshop, September 2014 

-QWEL (Qualified Water Efficient Landscaper) - Certified Water Efficient Landscaper, August 2014 

-ARCSA (American Rain Water Catchment Systems Association) - Accredited Professional Rain Water Catchment Workshop, 
March 2014 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 10 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



VIII. Appendix 1 

MA+A proof of Insurance Documents 

( 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 11 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



I 

( 

Policy Number: Date Entered: 9/9/2015 

ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MMlDDIYYYY) 

~ 9/17/2015 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MAnER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
IEPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer r ights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PROOUCER ~~~CT John A1lanson 
ALLANSON INSURANCE AGENCY 

r~gN~.Enl: (831)685-0101 I rffc Nol: (831) 685-0202 
Aptos Insurance Associates Inc 

~:O"ll~SS: johna@allansoninsurance. c o m 
9500 Soquel Drive 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 
Aptos, CA 95003 INSURER A :Mid Century Insurance 

INSURED· Mike Arnone Landscape Architect INSURER B : Un i ted Stat es Liability Insurance 

Mike Arnone INSURERC: 
3370 Samuels Place INSURERD: 
Santa Cruz, CA 95062 INSURER E: 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER" REVISION NUMBER' 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS . 

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE IA.DDL SUBR . /OLI1~ I nPoL11~ LIMITS LTR INSD iWVD POLICY NUI.SER MMIDD MMiDD 

A ~_'~G"'AAC~ .. m EACH OCCURRENCE 5 2 ,000,000 

I CLAIMS·MADE [ZI OCCUR 604808708 3/26/201 5 /26/2016 DAMAGE TO RENTED 
5 75 , 000 PREMISES Ea occurrence 

MED EXP (Anyone person) s5 ,000 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s2,000,000 

:Zl'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 4 ,000 , 000 

DPRO- D PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG 5 2 ,000,000 POLICY JECT LOC 

OTHER: ' $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY fg~~~~~I~INGLE LIMIT $ 
-

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) 5 
- ALLOWNEO ,-- SCHEDULED 

AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per aCCident) $ 

NON-OWNED rp~~~~d~gAMAGE S 
- HIRED AUTOS f--- AUTOS 

5 

UMBRELLA LIAS 
HOCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE I s r--

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS·MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION S S 

WORKERS COMPENSATION I n~TUTE I 1 0TH. 
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY ER 

Y I N 
ANY PROPRIETORlPARTNERlEXECUTIVE 

D 
E.L EACH ACCIDENT S 

OFFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED? NI A 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LlMrr S 

B Professional Liability SP1560876 ~/"/2015 / " /2016 Limit 1,000,000 

I 
Deductible 2, 500 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS J LOCATIONS J VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attachod if more space is rwqulred) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

City of Capitola 

420 Capito la Ave 

Capitola, CA 95010 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 

CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of A 

Produced using Forms Boss Plus software. www.FormsBoss.com; Impressive Publishing 800-208·1977 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 
\ 

IX. Appendix 2 

Sub Consultant Proposals: 

Bowman and Williams, Civil Engineers 

Pacific Crest Engineering, Geotechnical Services 

Urfer & Associates, Structural Engineering Services 

Bonjardim Water Workshop, Electro-Mechanical Services 

Michael Arnone + Associates - Rispin Park Proposal Page 12 of 12 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



/ 
I 

( 

BOWMAN & WILLIAMS 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS 

A CA LIFORNIA CORPORATION 

1011 CEDAR . PO BOX 1621 • SANTACRUZ,CA95061-1621 
PHONE (831) 426-3560 FAX (831) 426-9182 www.bowmanandwilliams.com 

September 12, 2015 

Michael Arnone + Associates 
Landscape Architecture 
3370 Samuel Place 
Santa Cruz, Ca 95062 

Subject: Proposal for Professional Engineering Services, Rispin Park, 2000 Wharf Rd., 
Capitola, CA., our file no. 25803 

Bowman & Williams Civil Engineers and Land Surveyor (B& W) is excited to offer this proposal for 
professional engineering service for the preparation of construction documents for the Rispin 
Park project at 2000 Wharf Road in Capitola. B&W is a locally owned Santa Cruz company 
which has a long history with The City of Capitola, providing un-paralleled civil engineering and 
land surveying services both for its original developers and the City since its inception. 

We understand that the you would like a proposal from Bowman & Williams to provide the 
necessary Engineering Design and Surveying Services to prepare plans, specifications and 
estimates (PS&Es) for the development of the Rispin Park. 

This will involve geotechnical engineering, grading, storm water analysis, storm water pollution 
prevention plans, structural engineering, and preparation of the construction documentation for 
the project. We are including as sub consultants two local firms. Pacific Crest Engineering, Inc. 
for Geotechnical Engineering, and Donald C. Urfer Associates, Inc. for Structural Engineering. 
Their respective proposals are attached. 

We propose to following specific scope of services: 

1 . Sub-consultants. 

3. 

a. Geotechnical Engineering. We propose to engage Pacific Crest Engineering, Inc. as a 
sub consultant to provide the Geotechnical Investigation Report describing 
recommendations for design of the project and Post Report Consultation Services. Their 
specific Scope of Services isattached. We estimate that our fee to provide the 
geotechnical engineering to be $5,865.00. Excluded are the Earthwork Observation and 
Testing during construction. PCE's estimate for this excluded work is $7,500.00 to 
$15,000.00. 

b. Structural Engineering. We propose to engage Donald C. Urfer & Associates as a sub 
consultant to provide the Structural Engineering services. Their specific Scope of Services 
is attached. We estimate that our fee to provide the structural engineering to be 
$8,050.00. 

Storm Water Management Report. As required by The County of Santa Cruz' Zone 5 
Drainage District we propose to prepare a Storm Water Management Report. The report 
shall discuss the site's storm water characteristics and the proposed project's mitigation 
and methods to provide post construction Low Impact Development (LID) Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) as conforming to the City's Storm Water Management 
Plan. We estimate that our fee to provide the Storm Water Management Report to be 
$6,840.00. 

Page 1 of 2 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

5. Preliminary Construction Documents (PS&Es) . Based the storm water management 
report and coordination with the design team, we propose to prepare 90% level or 
Preliminary, PS&Es for the project for final review by the City. We propose to provide 
construction details, typical sections and specifications for the items shown in the design 
development plans, revised per the review and coordination comments received. The 
PS&Es for the access from the southeast corner of the upper level parking lot to Capitola 
Avenue will be prepared separately. We estimate that our fee to provide the Preliminary 
PS&Es to be $1 1,520.00. 

6. Final Construction Documents (PS&Es). Based on review and comment of the 90% level 
PS&Es we propose to finalize the plans for permitting, bidding and construction purposes. 
We estimate that our fee to provide the Final PS&Es to be $2,520.00. 

7. Design review contingencies and meetings. We have included a 10% allowance for 
design review contingencies and meeting time. This will allow us a certain amount of 
time to prepare revisions to the plans and attend meetings with team members, and City 
staff. 10% of the fees described above is $3,479.50. 

8. Additional Services. We initially budget a particular amount of Engineer and Staff time 
for each of the tasks outlined. Time for revision to the plans is anticipated, but is finite. 
Time for meetings and field visits are also included but are limited. Unforeseen tasks may 
arise during the work that may cause us to exceed those estimates. That budget will be 
reviewed for adequacy at each design phase, and you will be kept appraised of the 
design budget status. Services not included in the above described scope of work, 
including work that we normally do such as retaining wall design and construction phase 
services, are Additional Services. 

We perform our services on a time basis. For your budgeting and comparison purposes we 
estimate that to provide the above described work our fee w ill not exceed $38,274.50. We trust 
that this satisfactorily reflects your desires as to the scope of the work. We thank you for this 
opportunity to participate with you in this project. Please give us a call if you have any questions 
or comments. 

Very truly yours, 
Bowman & Williams 

Joel F. Ricca, R.C.E. 53588 
Principal Engineer 

attachments 

Page 2 of 2 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

( 

BOWMAN & WILLIAMS 
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS 

ESTABLISHED IN 190B, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION SINCE 1974 

1011 CEDAR . PO BOX 1621 • SANTA CRUZ, CA 95061-1621 
PHONE (831) 426-3560 FAX (831) 426-9182 www.bowmanandwilliams.com 

OFFICE AND PROFESSIONAL 

Court Appearance & Preparation 
Principal Engineer (licensed) 
Associate Engineer (licensed) 
Assistant Engineer 
Engineering Assistant 
Licensed Surveyor 
Surveyor LSIT 
Survey Coordinator LSIT2 
Pavement Management Technician 
Construction Manager 
Technical Drafter 
Drafter 
Administrative Assistant 

EXHlBIT C 
HOURLY CHARGE RATES 

Effective July 29,2014 - July 29, 2015 

$325.00 
$180.00 
$165 .00 
$150.00 
$120.00 
$180.00 
$145.00 
$155 .00 
$ 125.00 
$115 .00 
$1 05.00 

$88.00 
$85 .00 

FIELD SURVEY CREW: Construction Survey 's 4 hour min. 
(One Man) Robotic Instrument or GPS & Operator 
Survey Crew (Prevailing Wage Rate) 
Three man Survey Crew 

$220.00 
$240.00 
$285.00 

25% Surcharge is applied to hourly rates for overtime to meet Clients Schedule or Saturday work. 
33% Surcharge is applied to hourly rates for Sunday and Ho liday work. 

EXPENSES 
Sub-Consultant Charges x 1.15 
Fees advance on behalf of Client x 1.25 
Survey equipment, vehicle, stakes and mileage (within 50 miles) included in hourly rate 

MISCELLANEOUS 
Vellum or Bond Copy CADD Plot for counter requests 24 x 36 
Vellum or Bond Copy CADD Plot for Active Projects 24 x 36 
Mylar Copy CADD Plot 24 x 36 
Color Copy CADD Plot 24 x 36 
CDIDVD 

ELECTRONIC FILE CHARGES 
File Conversion 
Email CADD Fi le 
Research Archi ve Files 
Electronic File Transfer 

$8.00ea 
$4.00ea 

$ 15 .00ea 
$30.00ea 
$25.00 

AT COST 
At cost 
At cost 
At cost 
At cost 

*All electronic tiles wi ll need to have a "Agreement & Release of Liability" signed and pre-paid before files can be 
released for, for clients without a current agreement. 
*Retainer fee will be requ ired for non-established Clients. 
* After July 29,20 15 rates shown will increase by consumer price index for the prior 12 months unless adjusted 
otherwise. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 
\,. 

Pacific Crest Engineering Inc. t~~ 

September 8, 2015 

Mr. Joel Ricca, P.E. 
Bowman and Williams 
lO 11 Cedar Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

Subject: Proposal for Geotechnical Services 
Rispin Mansion Park 
City of Capitola, California 

Dear Mr. Ricca, 

www.4pacific-crest.com 

444 Airport Blvd, Suite 106 
Watsonville, CA 95076 

Phone: 831-722-9446 
Fax: 831-722-9158 

Proposal No. PR153 

Pacific Crest Engineering Inc. (PCEI) is pleased to present our proposed scope of work and fee 
for geotechnical services in conjunction with the proposed Rispin Mansion Park project in 
Capitola, California. 

Our investigation will focus toward developing geotechnical recommendations in conjunction 
with restoring the property to a rural park setting. ft is our understanding that the proposed 
restoration project will require geotechnical design criteria for retaining walls, pathways, and 
exterior hardscape improvements. Our study will not address slope stability of the creek channel 
embankment, soil percolation rates, revetment design for the creek channel embankment, or 
hydraulic scour issues at the toe of the creek channel embankment. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Our work scope will be limited to the following: 

Geotechnical Investigation 

1. A review of published geotechnical and geologic literature, maps and proprietary information 
obtained from you or from archives at the City of Capitola. 

2. We will mark the proposed test boring locations in white paint, and contact Underground 
Service Alert (USA) at least 72 hours prior to performing our field investigation. In addition, 
we will subcontract a private underground locator to assist in clearing proposed test boring 
locations. 

3. Exploration, sampling, and classification of surface and subsurface soils by drilling 2 to 3 
small diameter borings. These test borings will be advanced to depths of 10 to 15 feet, or 
until competent bedrock is encountered, whichever is less. Soil samples will be obtained at 
various depths within each test boring. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

l 

Bowman & Williams 
September 8, 2015 

Page 2 
Proposal No. PRI53 

4. Laboratory testing of selected soil samples to determine the moisture and density profile of 
the on-site soils, pertinent index properties and strength characteristics of the various soil 
strata encountered. 

5. Preparation of a Limited Geotechnical Investigation Report. The report will be limited to 
preliminary geotechnical recommendations pertaining to site preparation, grading and 
compaction ·of exterior hardscape and pathway improvements, and site retaining walls. 

Post Report Services - Construction Phase 

6. Limited post-report services including project coordination, engineering consultation and 
time for review of preliminary project plans during their preparation will also be performed 
at your request. We have assumed 10 hours for post-report services that will be billed on a 
time and mater ials basis in accordance with our latest fee schedule. 

7. Prepare a summary letter report of our reviews (two plan review iterations assumed). 

8. Observe site preparation, grading and compaction during subgrade preparation for the 
pathways and exterior hardscape areas. 

9. Observe site preparation, grading and compaction for preparation of aggregate base and/or 
decomposed granite sections. 

10. Perform required lab testing of native and imported soils, such as compaction curves . 

11. Observe retaining wall footing excavations, retaining wall drain placement, and retaining 
wall backfill compaction. 

12. Observe footing excavations as required for exterior hardscape improvements. 

13 . Attend meetings and provide geotechnical consultation as needed during earthwork 
operations. 

14. Provide periodic progress reports summarizing the results of our field observations, 
including a Final Report. 

OPINION OF PROBABLE COSTS 

Our services will be performed on a "time and materials" fee basis. All work will be billed in 
accordance with our Standard Fee Schedule, attached herewith. Our Opinion of Probable Costs 
(OPC) to perform the geotechnical services described herein is as follows: 

Tasks 1-5 - Geotechnical Investigation 

Tasks 6-7 - Post Report Consultation Services 

Tasks 8-15 - Earthwork Observation and Testing 

Total 

$3400.00 

$1,700.00 

$7,500 to $15,000* 

$12,600 to $20,100 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

Bowman & Williams 
September 8, 2015 

Page 4 
Proposal No. PRl53 

Pacific Crest Engineering Inc. appreciates the opportunity to provide our services, and would be 
pleased to answer any questions you may have about our proposed scope of work and fee. 

Very truly yours, 

PACIFIC CREST ENGINEERING INC. 

Elizabeth Mitchell, G.E. 
President/Principal Geotechnical Engineer 
GE 2718 
Expires 12/31116 

Enclosures: Professional Services Agreement 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

( 

27 15 Porler Street 
Soquel. California 
95073 
(831) 476-368 1 

; f j t . 

(t",il duJ 5rrUt. ll .r t! 
Ellg're-~t) 

An Agreement for the Provision of Limited Professional Structural Engineering Services 

Design PI'ofessional Firm: 
Donald C. Urfer & Associates, Inc. 
Structural Engineers 
2715 Porter Street, Soquel, CA 95073 

Date: September 10,2015 

Client: Bowman & Williams 
1011 Cedar Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
Attn: Joel Ricca 

Project No : 151 18 

Project Name/Location : Rispin Mansion Park 
Capitola, California 

Fee Arrangement: Hourly (not to exceed $7,000.00) 

Dear Michael Arnone & Associates, 

We have prepared the following outline in order to establish the scope of structural 
engineering services which we propose to provide for the above mentioned subject project as defined 
in The Michael Arnone & Associates drawings dated April 24, 2015. 

Basic Services: I. Structural design and drawings for: 
a. Reconstruction of the Enhy steps and Grand Stairs including guardrail foundation;. 
b. Arbor including concrete columns, foundation and wood fi'aming; 
c_ New fence column along Wharf Road; 
d. Amphitheater; 
e. Sundial base anchorage; 
f. Attaciunent of metal fence at the cut down concrete wall along Wharf Road; 
g. Anchor new balustrade to exist ing concrete wall; 
h. Shed roof; 
1. ADA ramp! ramp to gaming tables; 
J. New Reflecting Pool Bottom. 

2. Prepare structural calculations and mark-up drawings by others for minor structural items 
not specifically noted above. 

Offered by: 

f)f2 
sig ture 

Karen Wiinikka S.E. 5056 - Owner 
printed name/title 

Donald C. Urfer & Associates, Inc. 
name of design professional firm 

Accepted by: 

signature date 

printed name/title 

name of client 

The Terllls and Conditions and the initials required on the reverse of this forlll are a part of th is Agreement 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



2715 Porter Slleet Soquel. CaliFornia 95073 (83 1) 476-3681 FAX (83 1)176.372 1 

SCHEDULE OIl' CHARGES 

(Effective June 1, 2015) 

Principal Engineer ..... ... ........ ...... ... ............. .... ............. $165 .00 per hour* 
Senior Structural Engineer .................. ..... ........ ....... ..... 155.00 pel' hour* 
Structural Engineer.. ...... .... .. ........ .... ... ..................... .. .... 135.00 per hour* 
Civil Engineer .. .. ...... ...... ....... ..... ... ............ ... ....... .... ....... 1 00.00 per hour';' 
Senior Draftsperson .... .... .... ...... ..... ............. ......... ... .. ....... 90.00 per hour* 
Junior Engineer. ........ .. ... ..... ........ .. ......... .... ...... ... ... .... ...... 70.00 per hour* 
Draftsperson ...... ... ................. .... ... .. ....... .... ........ ... ..... .... ... 65.00 per hour* 

Minimum fee of $500 per project 

MISCELLANEOUS ADDITIONAL SERVICES & FEES 

;Expert. Witness Services 

Public Hearings, Arbitration, Depositions, or 
Proceedings of the Court .... ... ............ ...... .. ...... .. ....... ... .. $350.00 per hour with a 4 hour 

minimum 

Direct Non-Salary Expenses 

These reimbursable expenses will be billed at actual cost plus 10%. 
They may include the following: 

- Authorized travel and subsistence; 
- Subcontracted services; 
- Printing costs . 

*Overtime Expenses 

Authorized overtime will be billed at twice the hourly rate for services noted above. 

Terms of Pavment: 

Invoices will be submitted monthly, unless otherwise provided by contract of special 
arrangements. Said invoices shall be due and payable when rendered. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



c 

Bowman & Williams 
September 8, 20 15 

Page 3 
Proposal No. PR 153 

*Estimating an OPC for Tasks 8 through 15 (observation and testing during earthwork 
activities) is very difficult to assess at this early date without a detailed construction 
schedule. A rough opinion of probable cost to perform the construction phase observation 
and testing services noted in Tasks 8 through 15 is $7,500 to $15,000, however it should be 
noted that this is a preliminary ope only, and is provided without the benefit of a detailed 
construction schedule. This opinion may vary due to the Contractor selected, equipment 
selected by the Contractor, weather, and other factors. Therefore, our actual fee may be 
more or less than the amount shown above. Once the final design is completed and a 
construction schedule has been developed we can update this fee with more accuracy. 

CLIENT/OWNER FURNISHED SERVICES 

It is understood that the Client/Owner would furnish the following: 

a) An accurate topographic map and sections, depicting the project area and location of 
proposed improvements, will be required prior to inception of our field investigation. 

b) Right of entry and access to the proposed boring sites. 

d) All available data, maps, drawings, and reports of any kind pertinent to the referenced 
site. 

f) Location of all underground utilities. We will contact USA and a private utility locator 
and notifY them of our drilling locations; however we will not be responsible for damage 
to utilities as a result of our drilling operations that are not brought to our attention prior 
to drilling. 

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED 

As stated previously, our scope of work and fee does not include the following: 

• Slope stability ofthe creek channel embankment. 

• Revetment design for the creek channel embankment. 

• Hydraulic scour analysis of the toe of the creek channel embankment. 

• Analysis of soil permeability rates (percolation testing) for stormwater collection 
facilities. 

AUTHORIZATION 

To authorize PCEI to perform the proposed services, please sign and return the enclosed 
Professional Serv ices Agreement as soon as possible. If you require PCEl to sign your 
subconsultant agreement, please forward a copy to our office as soon as possible for review. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The firm shall perform the services outlined in this agreement for the stated fee arrangements. 

Access To Site: 
Unless otherwise stated, the Firm wi II have access to the site for activities necessaty for the performance of the 
services. The Firm will take precautions to minimize damage due to these activities, but has not included in the fee 
the cost of restoration of any resulting damage. 

Dispute Resolution: 
Any claims or disputes made during design, construction or post-construction between the Client and Firm shall be 
submitted to non-binding mediation. Client and Firm agree to include a similar mediation agreement with all 
contractors, subcontractors, sub consultants, suppliers and fabricators, thereby providing for mediation as the primalY 
method for dispute resolution between all pal1ies. 

BilJings/Payments: 
Invoices for the Firm's services shall be submitted on a monthly basis. Invoices shall be payable within 30 days after 
the invoice date. If the invoice is not paid within 30 days, the Firm may, without waiving any claim or right against 
the Client, and without liability whatsoever to the Client, terminate the performance of the service. Retainers shall 
be credited on the final invoice. 

Additional Services: 
The above defines the limits of our proposed basic services. Any services beyond those specifically outlined above 
will be considered as additional services and subject to renegotiation of the Agreement. 

Late Payments: 
Accounts unpaid 60 days after the invoice date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.5% (or the legal rate) 
on the then unpaid balance. In the event any portion or all of an account remains unpaid 90 days after billing, the 
Client shall pay all costs of collection, including reasonable attorney's fees . 

Indemnification: 
The Client shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless, the Firm, his or her officers, 
directors, employees, agents and subconsultants from and against all damage, liability and cost, including reasonable 
attorney's fees and defense costs, arising out of or in any way connected with the performance by any of the pal1ies 
above named of the services under this agreement, excepting only those damages, liabilities or costs attributable to 
the sole negligence or willful misconduct ofthe Firm. It is intended by the parties to this Agreement that the Firm's 
services in connection with the Project shall not subject the Finn's individual employees, officers or directors to any 
personal legal exposure for the risks associated with this Project. 

CeJ1ifications: 
Guarantees and Warranties. The Firm shall not be required to execute any document that would result in its 
certifying, guaranteeing or warranting nor shall they be required to comment upon the existence of conditions whose 
existence the Firm cannot ascertain. 

Limitation of Liability: 
In recognition ofthe relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the Client and the Firm the risks have 
been allocated stich that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Firm's total liability to the 
Client for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages or claim expenses arising out of this agreement from 
any cause or causes, shall not exceed $ t 0,000.00. Such causes include, but are not limited to, the Firm's negligence, 
errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or breach of warranty. Initial here: Ky.1 (Firm) 
_ ___ (Client). 

Termination of Services: 
This agreement may be terminated by the Client or the Firm should the other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. 
In the event of termination, the Client shall pay the Firm for all services rendered to the date of termination, all 
reimbursable expenses, and reimbursable termination expenses. 

Ownership of Documents: 
All documents produced by the Firm under this agreement remain the propel1y of the Firm and may not be used by 
the Client for any other endeavor without the written consent of the Firm. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Water Founta ins Swimming Pools Bio-systems Mockups Controls 

bonJard I m water workshop 

USGSC Member 

Our CD package will include the following: 

1. BWW will provide t echnical advice to MAA and the design team on requirements and feasibilities 
of the water feature systems, code analysis and compliances, construction methods and materials. 

2. BWW will provide hydraulic and rain harvesting calculations and required equipment. 
3. BWW will provide flow diagrams and plans of the systems in coordination with MAA and Civil and 

Electrical Engineers for t he utilities, grading and budget review. 
4. BWW will provide estimated bill of materials for budgeting purposes. 
5. BWW wi ll attend two one-day outside office meetings within 100 miles from our office. 

Descriptions of Draft ing Deliverables: 

-Hand sketches (PDF) 
-Notes and Symbols Sheet (Acad 2013) 
-Flow Diagram with~Electro-mechanical PID (Acad 2013) 
-Mechanica l Site Plan and Pip ing (Acad 2013) 
-Equipment Room Layout and Piping (Acad 2013) 
-Penetration Fitting Detai ls (Acad 2013) 

/ -Specifications (Word 2013) 
\ -Maximum of three submissions 

Billing rates and paymentterms: 

-Principal : $175.00 per hour 
-Drafting/Designer: $55 .00 per hour 
-Administrat ion: $25 .00 per hour 

-Invoices for the work and expendables rendered will be sent on the 25 th day of each month and wi ll be 
due by the 30t h day of t he following month. 

BWWestimates the total fee for the proposed services is $5,710.00. 

BWW ca n provide CD drawings with P.E. stamp and signature for an add-on of $1,500.00. 

We will require Acad 13 drawings files for the following: 

1. Landscape template sheets, suggest ed numbering (WF-1.0 series) for water founta ins. 

P.O. Box 1918 
Soquel, CA 
95073 

T. (831) 476 3079 
F. (831) 475 7035 
www_bwworkshop.com 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

bonJardlm water workshop 

USGBC ,Mmber 

September 22, 2015 

Michael Arnone 
Michael Arnone & Associates 

Tel: 831.462.4988 
Cel: 831.419.3154 

Water Fountai ns Swimming Pools Sio-systems Mockups Controls 

Re: Rispin Mansion Park Water Fountains Renovation, Capitola 
Sub: Proposal for Construction Documents 
Our Ref: 15.062.MAA 

Michael, 

I am pleased to provide you with my proposal for the Construction Drawings for the renovation of the 
water fountains at the Rispin Mansion. 

My proposal will be to provide electro-mechanical design for the circular fountain and the small scupper 
fountain. The design description is as follows: 

• Circular fountain will be renovated with open-paver system having approximat ely 6" of water over 
the pavers. The total pool depth is 24" and it will act as a reservoir under the pavers. The pool level 
will be set approximately 6" over the paver during the day and at the night; the water level will 
descend approximately 12", thus becoming hidden under the pavers. The day-night setting will be 
controlled via small computer. In addition, there will be a water spill from the pool deck into the 
fountain . A 2500 gallon buried prefabricated concrete reservoir will be store the night water 
displacement and harvesting rainwater. A buried prefabricated concrete vault will house the 
electro-mechanical system. The locations of the two buried structures to be determined. 

• Small scupper fountain will be renovated to with one scupper and recircula ting system. 

Please find below our proposal for the 100% CD's. 

This proposal is for the el€ctro-mechanical design of the water features is based on the drawings provided 
by Michael Arnone & Associates dated 4.11.15. 

P.O. Box 1918 
Soquel, CA 
95073 

T. (831) A76 3079 
F. (831) A75 7035 
www.bwworkshop.conl 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



( 

c. 

blwlw Water Fountains Swimmi~g Pools Bio-systcms Mockups Controls 

bonjord I m wat er works hop 

USG~C Ivlembe 

2. Landscape drawings of all water features. 
3. Civil drawings of all piping and connections linked to t he water feat ures. 
4. Plumbing drawings of all piping and connections linked to the water feat ures. 
5. Elect rical drawings linked to t he wat er feat ures. 
6. Structural drawings linked to the water feat ures. 

Please feel free t o cont act me t o discuss about our proposal and I look forward to working wit h you on 
your project . 

Best regards, 

Edison Becker Bonjardim 
Principa l 

Accepted by: 

Michael Arnone 

For: 

Michael Arnone & Associates 

P.O. Box 1918 
Soquel. CA 
95073 

T. (831) 4763079 
F. (831) 475 7035 
www.bwworkshop.com 

Date: ______________ _ 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

rn
o

n
e 

&
 A

ss
o

ci
at

es
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l f
o

r 
R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 D
o

cu
m

en
ts

  (
12

17
 :

 R
is

p
in

 P
ar

k 
D

es
ig

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



May 28, 2015

sheet index

WHARF ROAD AND CLARES STREET

3370 Samuel Place Santa Cruz, CA 95062
831.462.4988  mike@arnonelandscape.com  www.arnonelandscape.com

cs

L1.0

L1.1

L1.2

L1.3

L1.4

L1.5

L1.6

L1.7

L1.8

L1.9

L1.10

L1.11

L1.12

cover sheet

site plan

hardscape master plan

hardscape plan south end

hardscape plan north end

Wharf Road wall elevations and details

wall fountain elevations and details

grand staircase and fence elevations and details

entry gate, arbor, overlook and sundial elevations and details

amphitheater and reflecting pool elevations and details

site furnishing photos

lighting and fencing plan

nature play area

mansion window mural concept

CITY OF CAPITOLA

city council review plans for:

project contact information vicinity map

City of Capitola
Steve Jesberg, Director of Public Works
400 Capitola Avenue
Capitola, CA 95010
831.475.7300

MA+A Landscape Architects
Michael Arnone, Project Manager
3370 Samuel Place
Santa Cruz, CA 95062
831.462.4988

Bowman & Williams
Joel Ricca, RCE
1011 Cedar Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
831.426.3560

Archieves and Architecture
Leslie Dill, Historic Architect
PO Box 1332
San Jose, CA 95109-1332
408.297.2684

Maureen Hamb, Certified Arborist
849 Almar Avenue # C
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
831.420.1287

Clares Street and Wharf Road

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
8

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



WHARF ROAD

existing brick pavers to remain

1

2 22

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

6

66

7

8

10

10

ramp to game table terrace

brick
brick

brick

PROPOSED RAIN WATER 
CATCHMENT TANK TO STORE 
WATER FROM ROOF OF SHED 
AND NEW ROOF OF WELL HOUSE

amphitheater (N)

chess 
tables (N)

ADA ramp (N)

Arbor (H)

10

ramp up DG path 
over roots of Oak

10

11
11

12
12

12

88
8

8

raised planter (N)
13

gate off conservation 
area (N)

ramp

8

8

 bocce ball court 10 x 60' (N)

dance 
steps (N)

13

sculpture garden 
pedestal (N) 

drinking 
fountain (N)

bike rack 
bollard (N)

bench (N) (typ.)

bike rack 
bollard (N)

bench (N) (typ.)

9

9

9

9

9

14

decomposed 
granite path (N)

brick

brick

brick

brick

decomposed 
granite path (N)

decomposed 
granite path (N)

entry

4
bike rack 
bollard (N)

native 
demonstration 
garden (N)

walkable ground cover (N)

trash/
recycling (N)

removable 
bollards (N)

restore balustrade 
and wall (H)

restore bench and 
caps to existing 
columns behind 
fountain (H)

new handrail for 
garden steps

bench (typ.)

concrete 
reflecting pool (H)

bike rack bollards (N)

15

6 street light (N)

12' service vehicle access

12' service vehicle 

access (H)

brick path (H)

garden steps (H)

rock retaining wall (H)

decomposed 
granite picnic 
area (N)

table (N)

existing wall to remain unchanged existing wall  lowered to 30" 
height with 30" decorative 
metal fence on top.

existing wall, arch, 
steps to be restored  

existing wall  
lowered to 30" 
height with 30" 
decorative metal 
fence on top.

existing  wall 
to be 
restored, with 
new column 
to match last 
existing 
column  at 
terminus of 
wall.

existing  wall 
to be removed 
for new park 
entrance, 
existing 
column to 
remain.

existing path, steps and wall (H) 
to remain 

existing rock 
walls (H)

Column (H) to remain.

wall column (N) 

existing brick pavers to remainsundial (N)

native Oak understory 
demonstration garden (N)

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

nature play 
area (N)

3' concrete 
benches at 
overlook 
(H)

EXISTING FEATURES AND PROJECT GOALS
(N) denotes new element
(H) denotes existing element found on site
1. RISPIN MANSION BUILDING(H)
2. WHARF ROAD ENTRY AND WALL(H)
3. WHARF ROAD ENTRY STEPS(H)
4. GRAND STAIRCASE AND BALUSTRADE (H)
5. FOUNTAIN AND REFLECTION POOL (H)
6. PLANTS AND LANDSCAPE (N)
7. SUNDIAL (H) AND SCULPTURE GARDEN(N)
8. UNIVERSAL ACCESS PATH OF TRAVEL(N)
9. FENCING AND GATES (N)
10. SIGNAGE (N)
11. RAIN WATER HARVESTING OFF SHED AND ORIGINAL 
WELL/WATER TANK BUILDING (N)
12. IMPROVE STRIPING AND CROSSWALKS AT CLARES/WHARF 
ROAD INTERSECTION(N) 
13. MURAL ON CONCRETE WALL OF SAINT CLARES BUILDING(N) 
14. REMOVABLE BOLLARDS AT PARK ENTRY (N). 
15. INFORMAL SERVICE DRIVE/PEDESTRIAN PATH FROM MANSION 
TERRACE TO SOUTH ENTRANCE AT WHARF ROAD (H)

Summary of Historic Elements found on Rispin Site and Proposed Renovations

Discussion of Intent.
The project goals for Rispin Park are to create a community park that provides passive recreation and focuses on the cultural, 
historical, and open space resources that are unique to the Rispin Mansion Site. The intent of the restoration is to provide 
examples of the architectural style of the mansion and to create a public awareness of the significance of the Mansion building 
and grounds as part of the history of the City of Capitola. It should be stated that the park is not intended to be an exact 
replication of the mansion grounds during the time it was the residence of Henry Rispin. A summary of the existing historic 
elements and the proposed modifications are explained below and noted on the Site Plan.

Wharf Road Wall, Entry Arch and Entry Staircase:
• Portions of the Existing wall along Wharf Road will remain unchanged, while some sections of the existing wall height 

will be reduced to 30” with a 30” decorative metal fence on top. One portion of the wall at the southern end of the road 
frontage will be removed to allow a new universally accessible entrance to the park. The section to be removed will 
incorporate a new column to match the existing last column at the southern terminus of the wall. Bollards and metal 
fencing will be added to the new park entrance. 

• Steps and side walls of the staircase at the entry will be rebuilt and repaired. The Arch and side walls will be painted to 
match the Mansion. 

• Existing wood gate to be removed and stored for display with other artifacts 
Arbor:

• New columns will match historic columns found on site in height and architectural detail.
• Spacing of columns and location will be changed to accommodate new universally accessible path, and mature oaks on 

site.
• New vine species compatible with native oaks will be selected.

Sundial:
• Existing sundial base will remain in its present location. Pedestal will be rebuilt according to archive photographs. New, 

contemporary sundial/compass will be chosen, no archive photos are available that show the sundial piece.
Overlook:

• Existing overlook columns and base wall to remain. All caps and balustrades to be rebuilt according to archive 
photographs and existing artifacts on-site.

• New benches in same location as historical shown in archive photographs, architectural details not discernable in 
photos. New benches will be simple without ornamentation.

Reflecting Pool:
• Existing location and size of pool will remain unchanged. Depth of pool will be reduced to maximum of 6 inches. Repairs 

will be made to coping, pool sides and bottom. Plumbing and bottom of pool will be retrofitted to incorporate rainwater 
harvesting system.

• Brick path around pool will be installed, consistent with archive photos.
• New sculplture in center of pool will replace water feature(s) shown in archive photos. New sculpture will be distinctly 

different in style than those of the Rispin period.
• A tile mosaic is proposed for the bottom of the fountain. Mosaic will be commissioned by Capitola Arts Commission.

Wall Fountain and Lower Sitting Area behind Wall Fountain:
• Existing fountain will be repaired to working condition. Missing parts will be reconstructed using archive photographs 

and site artifacts. 
• Urn will be selected to match historic using archive photographs.
• New fountain spout will be selected, historical fountain spout style not discernable in photos. New fountain spout will be 

simple without ornamentation.
• Lower seating area behind fountain and balustrade wall from grand staircase will be repaired according to archive 

photographs and existing artifacts on-site. Pathway from brick landing to seating area will be rebuilt.
Grand Staircase:

• All walls, columns, column caps, brick landings, to be repaired according to archive photographs and existing artifacts 
on-site. Steps to be rebuilt.

• A new metal handrail as per code will be added on each side, mounted in ground outside of cheek wall.
Miscellaneous Garden Features 

• 12" high concrete wall along old walkway at northwest corner of park to remain.
• Rock fossil walls by staircase to remain.
• Stone wall at north end of park by new ramp to remain. 
• Existing 18" wide red concrete steps north of arbor to remain; add handrail as per code
• Existing 4' wide concrete steps by Game Table area to remain; add chain barricade and sign to close off

site  plan

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

1/16" = 1' - 0"
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.0

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 

C
A

 9
5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
9

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



WHARF ROADROAD

existing brick pavers to remain

”

”

”

”

1

2 22

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

6

6

7

8

10

10

ramp to game table terrace

brick
brick

brick

PROPOSED RAIN WATER 
CATCHMENT TANK TO STORE 
WATER FROM ROOF OF SHED 
AND NEW ROOF OF WELL HOUSE

amphitheater (N)

chess 
tables (N)

ADA ramp (N)

Arbor (H)

10

WHARF

ramp up DG path 
over roots of Oak

10

11
11

12
12

88
8

raised planter (N)
13

gate off conservation 
area (N)

ramp

8

8

 bocce ball court 10 x 60' (N)

dance 
steps (N)

13

sculpture garden 
pedestal (N) 

drinking 
fountain (N)

bike rack 
bollard (N)

bench (N) (typ.)

bike rack 
bollard (N)

bench (N) (typ.)

9

9

9

9

9

14

decomposed 
granite path (N)

brick

brick

brick

brick

decomposed 
granite path (N)

decomposed 
granite path (N)

entry

4
bike rack 
bollard (N)

native 
demonstration 
garden (N)

walkable ground cover (N)

trash/
recycling (N)

removable 
bollards (N)

restore balustrade 
and wall (H)

restore bench and 
caps to existing 
columns behind 
fountain (H)

new handrail for 
garden steps

bench (typ.)

concrete 
reflecting pool (H)

bike rack bollards (N)

15

15

15

6 street light (N)

12' service vehicle access

12' service vehicle 

access (H)

brick path (H)

garden steps (H)

rock retaining wall (H)

decomposed 
granite picnic 
area (N)

table (N)

existing wall to remain unchanged existing wall  lowered to 30" 
height with 30" decorative 
metal fence on top.

existing wall, arch, 
steps to be restored  

existing wall  
lowered to 30" 
height with 30" 
decorative metal 
fence on top.

existing  wall 
to be 
restored, with 
new column 
to match last 
existing 
column  at 
terminus of 
wall.

existing  wall 
to be removed 
for new park 
entrance, 
existing 
column to 
remain.

existing rock 
walls (H)

Column (H) to remain.

wall column (N) 

existing brick pavers to remainsundial (N)

native Oak understory 
demonstration garden (N)

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

nature play 
area (N)

3' concrete 
benches at 
overlook 
(H)

EXISTING FEATURES AND PROJECT GOALS
(N) denotes new element
(H) denotes existing element found on site
1. RISPIN MANSION BUILDING(H)
2. WHARF ROAD ENTRY AND WALL(H)
3. WHARF ROAD ENTRY STEPS(H)
4. GRAND STAIRCASE AND BALUSTRADE (H)
5. FOUNTAIN AND REFLECTION POOL (H)
6. PLANTS AND LANDSCAPE (N)
7. SUNDIAL (H) AND SCULPTURE GARDEN(N)
8. UNIVERSAL ACCESS PATH OF TRAVEL(N)
9. FENCING AND GATES (N)
10. SIGNAGE (N)
11. RAIN WATER HARVESTING OFF SHED AND ORIGINAL 
WELL/WATER TANK BUILDING (N)
12. IMPROVE STRIPING AND CROSSWALKS AT CLARES/WHARF 
ROAD INTERSECTION(N) 
13. MURAL ON CONCRETE WALL OF SAINT CLARES BUILDING(N) 
14. REMOVABLE BOLLARDS AT PARK ENTRY (N). 
15. INFORMAL SERVICE DRIVE/PEDESTRIAN PATH FROM MANSION 
TERRACE TO SOUTH ENTRANCE AT WHARF ROAD (H)

Site Furnishings Legend

Container w/ Color

Trash Receptacle

2

3

on Light Pole
Street Light fixture

Bike Post Bollard

6' Metal Bench

DescriptionKey

7

7

5

12

Quantity

Recycling Container 3

www.sternberglighting.com
Sternberg Lighting 510.638.3800

Manufacturer

on 5216 - FP5 - GFI - OI light pole

Barrington 5201-SS Base     

Bench 58, 58 SER - 3AR

Model #

Deep Red polyester powder finish
6' long metal bench w/ armrest

5" fluted 16' high Old Iron finish pole with GFI

Color/Finish

Container w/ Color 4

43' Concrete Bench

2Removable Antique Bollard

1

1

1Accesible Chess Table

with two Benches

Historical Series Accessible

1

1

Accesible Table/Benches

Table/Benches

6732 Concrete table top with metal legsKenneth Lynch & Sons
203.264.2831

6737C

32 gal. Steel with Deep Red Powder Coat finishReceptacle 107

Reliance Foundry 888.735.5680

Most Dependable Fountains, Inc.

Receptacle 107

2008 SM heavy-duty aluminum alloy pedestal 
"Hi-Lo" barrier-free antique historic style 

Textured Bergundy powder coat finish

R-7539-AL Fluted Aluminum Bollard 36" High Aluminum w/ Black Textured Semi Gloss finish

tall urn style to be selected

square style to be selected

(chess table)

(bench)

Pottery Planet 831.465.9216

32 gal.

to be selected

443-62 table 6', (2) 6' benches Steel with Deep Red Powder Coat finish

DuMor, Inc., Site Furnishings
800.598.4018with armrest

Red

Red

stone gray 

Pedestal Drinking Fountain

with surface plate mount

443- 558-1 table 8', (2) 5' benches
with surface plate mount

Wood slats with metal legs

Steel with Deep Red Powder Coat finish

Steel with Deep Red Powder Coat finish

1Pelican Sundial No. 2554 11  1/2" diameter Bronze

for fountain and outlook

for grandstaircase columns

for fountain and outlook

www.klynchandsons.com

2600 Soquel Ave, Santa Cruz

www.dumor.com

www.reliance-foundry.com

www.mostdependable.com
800.552.6331

Hourglass and Pelican Sundial

1Acanto Fountain Emitter No. M5822 9  1/2" diameter Distressed Copper, 3 GPM flownot shown
Fountains Unique 949.305.7372
www.fountainsunique.com

Reliance Foundry 888.735.5680

www.reliance-foundry.com
39" High w/ two loops; Black Textured Semi Gloss finishR-7530-B Cuctile Iron Bike Bollard

DOG STATION 2
DOODY CALLS DIRECT

THE SENTRY STATION
GREEN

doodycallsdirect.com ANCHOR TO CONCRETE FOOTING

Olde Iron finish Acorn Style w/ roof mounted 
downlighting optics and LED light source

AVENUE Series- B750SRLED

with white textured polycarbonite acorn

HARDSCAPE LEGEND

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION COLORMANUFACTURER FINISH/PATTERN

BRICK PAVER

HERRINGBONE BRICK

MEDIUM BROOM FINISHNATURAL GRAYN/ACONCRETE RAMPS

EXISTING TO BE REPAIRED OR

RED BRICK 

MATCH PATTERN AND CUT 

HERRINGBONE

REPLACED TO MATCH ORIGINAL

USE BRICK STORED ON SITE

WITH STABILIZERCALIFORNIA GOLDN/A
CAL GOLD
DECOMPOSED GRANITE

16" SQUARE TILE STAMPTERRE COTTAN/A
STAMPED ASPHALT
CROSS WALKS

ON CONCRETE

ON CONCRETE

OR NEW BRICK TO MATCH TO MATCH

TO MATCH
COLOR

5' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE

30" DECORATIVE METAL

6' BLACK CHAIN LINK FENCE

GUARDRAIL ON TOP OF

N/A

N/A

N/A

BLACK

BLACK

BLACK

SEE DETAIL

SEE DETAIL

N/A

SQ FT/LN FT

2800 SF

1200 SF

5528 SF

14' LF

105 LF

371 LF

1190 SF

6' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE N/A BLACK SEE DETAIL 154 LF

EXISTING

TO MATCH ORIGINALN/ACONCRETE STEPS 236 SFTO MATCH
COLOR

EXISTING WALL

master plan

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

1/16" = 1' - 0"
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.1

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
00

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



WHARF ROADROAD

”

”

”

ramp to game table terrace

WHARF

ramp

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

5' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE

30" DECORATIVE METAL 

6' BLACK CHAIN LINK FENCE

AT ENTRY OFF WHARF ROAD

ON TOP OF SECTIONS 

PERIMETER OF PARK AREA

14' LF

105 LF

371 LF

6' DECORATIVE METAL FENCE AT TOP OF SLOPE BEHIND 154 LF

DESCRIPTION LOCATION LENGTHPLAN VIEWELEVATION VIEW

TO WHARF ROAD

OF WALL ALONG WHARF ROAD

FENCE LEGEND

GUARDRAIL w/ 4" PICKET SPACING

w/ 6" PICKET SPACING

w/ 6" PICKET SPACING

on Light Pole
Street Light fixture

7

7
www.sternberglighting.com
Sternberg Lighting 510.638.3800

on 5212 - FP5 - GFI - OI
Barrington 5201-SS Base     

5" fluted 12' high Old Iron finish pole with GFI

DescriptionKey Quantity Manufacturer Model # Color/Finish

Lighting Legend

AVENUE Series- B750SRLED
Olde Iron finish Acorn Style w/ roof mounted 
downlighting optics and LED light source
with white textured polycarbonite acorn

fencing &

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

1/16" = 1' - 0"
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.10

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

N
E

CI
L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

4.24.15 second review submission MAA

lighting

new 6' metal fence

new 5' 
metal fence

new 6' metal fence

new 6' chain 
link fence

new 6' chain 
link fence

gate

gate

gate

gate

new 6' chain 
link fence

new 30"metal 
fence on wall

new 30"metal 
fence on wall

new light fixture (typ.)

new light fixture (typ.)

recommended light spread (typ.)

5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
01

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

1/16" = 1' - 0"
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.11

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 

C
A

 9
5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

Nature 
Play area

tree round 
steps mulch pile

(3) small 
tables/platforms 
for creative play 
with found 
object: acorns, 
sticks, leaves

low tree round 
climbers

circle gathering 
space

artifacts from mansion: 
eg: half-buried column.

Butterfly/oak 
habitat planting

Butterfly/oak 
habitat planting

Photo Examples of Nature Play Areas

5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
02

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



WEST ELEVATIONcandlestick in divided light window couple dancing in upper portico window

SOUTH ELEVATION
band swinging in
upper portico window

NORTH ELEVATION

balcony windows
couple in arched 

mansion

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

1/4" = 1' - 0"
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.12

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

window murals

5.28.15 city council review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
03

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



existing brick pavers to remain

1

2

4

4

5

5

6

6

6
8

10

brick
brick

brick

PROPOSED RAIN WATER 
CATCHMENT TANK TO STORE 
WATER FROM ROOF OF SHED 
AND NEW ROOF OF WELL HOUSE

amphitheater (N)

chess 
tables (N)

10

WHARF

11
11

12
12

12

raised planter (N)
13

gate off conservation 
area (N)

ramp

8

8

dance 
steps (N)

bench (N) (typ.)

bike rack 
bollard (N)

bench (N) (typ.)

9

9

9

9

14

decomposed 
granite path (N)

brick

brick

decomposed 
granite path (N)

entry

4
bike rack 
bollard (N)

trash/
recycling (N)

removable 
bollards (N)

restore balustrade 
and wall (H)

restore bench and 
caps to existing 
columns behind 
fountain (H)

bench (typ.)

concrete 
reflecting pool (H)

bike rack bollards (N)

15

12' service vehicle access

12' service vehicle 

access (H)

brick path (H)
decomposed 
granite picnic 
area (N)

existing wall  
lowered to 30" 
height with 30" 
decorative metal 
fence on top.

existing  wall 
to be 
restored, with 
new column 
to match last 
existing 
column  at 
terminus of 
wall.

existing  wall 
to be removed 
for new park 
entrance, 
existing 
column to 
remain.

existing rock 
walls (H)

Column (H) to remain.

wall column (N) 

existing brick pavers to remain

conservation 
easement

conservation 
easement

nature play 
area (N)

EXISTING FEATURES AND PROJECT GOALS
(N) denotes new element
(H) denotes existing element found on site
1. RISPIN MANSION BUILDING(H)
2. WHARF ROAD ENTRY AND WALL(H)
3. WHARF ROAD ENTRY STEPS(H)
4. GRAND STAIRCASE AND BALUSTRADE (H)
5. FOUNTAIN AND REFLECTION POOL (H)
6. PLANTS AND LANDSCAPE (N)
7. SUNDIAL (H) AND SCULPTURE GARDEN(N)
8. UNIVERSAL ACCESS PATH OF TRAVEL(N)
9. FENCING AND GATES (N)
10. SIGNAGE (N)
11. RAIN WATER HARVESTING OFF SHED AND ORIGINAL 
WELL/WATER TANK BUILDING (N)
12. IMPROVE STRIPING AND CROSSWALKS AT CLARES/WHARF 
ROAD INTERSECTION(N) 
13. MURAL ON CONCRETE WALL OF SAINT CLARES BUILDING(N) 
14. REMOVABLE BOLLARDS AT PARK ENTRY (N). 
15. INFORMAL SERVICE DRIVE/PEDESTRIAN PATH FROM MANSION 
TERRACE TO SOUTH ENTRANCE AT WHARF ROAD (H)

hardscape plan

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

1" = 10' - 0"
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.2

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

south end

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
04

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



WHARF ROAD

22

3

6

7

10

ramp to game table terrace

ADA ramp (N)

Arbor (H)

ramp up DG path 
over roots of Oak

10

88
8

8

13

ramp

8

 bocce ball court 10 x 60' (N)

dance 

13

sculpture garden 
pedestal (N) 

drinking 
fountain (N)

bike rack 
bollard (N)

9
9

decomposed 
granite path (N)

brick

brick

decomposed 
granite path (N)

native 
demonstration 
garden (N)

walkable ground cover (N)

new handrail for 
garden steps

6 street light (N)

garden steps (H)

rock retaining wall (H)

table (N)

existing wall to remain unchanged existing wall  lowered to 30" 
height with 30" decorative 
metal fence on top.

existing wall, arch, 
steps to be restored  

fence on top.

sundial (N)

native Oak understory 
demonstration garden (N)

conservation 
easement

3' concrete 
benches at 
overlook 
(H)

EXISTING FEATURES AND PROJECT GOALS
(N) denotes new element
(H) denotes existing element found on site
1. RISPIN MANSION BUILDING(H)
2. WHARF ROAD ENTRY AND WALL(H)
3. WHARF ROAD ENTRY STEPS(H)
4. GRAND STAIRCASE AND BALUSTRADE (H)
5. FOUNTAIN AND REFLECTION POOL (H)
6. PLANTS AND LANDSCAPE (N)
7. SUNDIAL (H) AND SCULPTURE GARDEN(N)
8. UNIVERSAL ACCESS PATH OF TRAVEL(N)
9. FENCING AND GATES (N)
10. SIGNAGE (N)
11. RAIN WATER HARVESTING OFF SHED AND ORIGINAL 
WELL/WATER TANK BUILDING (N)
12. IMPROVE STRIPING AND CROSSWALKS AT CLARES/WHARF 
ROAD INTERSECTION(N) 
13. MURAL ON CONCRETE WALL OF SAINT CLARES BUILDING(N) 
14. REMOVABLE BOLLARDS AT PARK ENTRY (N). 
15. INFORMAL SERVICE DRIVE/PEDESTRIAN PATH FROM MANSION 
TERRACE TO SOUTH ENTRANCE AT WHARF ROAD (H)

hardscape plan

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

1" = 10' - 0"
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.3

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

north end

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
05

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



ex. arch entry

retain 30" of existing wall

ex wall to remain
(repair as needed)

new 6' period 
wrought iron fence

new column to 
match existing

ex utility pole to remain

ex guy wire to remain

antique style
removable bollards

ex end column to remain

ex. arch entry

retain 30" of existing wall

ex column to remain
(repair as needed)

ex wall to remain
(repair as needed)

new 30" period 
wrought iron fence

ex. wall to remain
(repair as needed)

ex column to remain
(repair as needed)

6"

4"

3"

2" square post

1" square stringer

3/4"  x 2" top rail

1" square pickets

30"

30"

7'-10" o.c.

4" 

ex. wall cap - repair end at cut

new 4" concrete cap to match existing

existing wall to remain after cut/removal of top section

black metal fencing atop ex. wall
4'-6"6'-0" o.c.

15'-0"

5'-0"

36" high removable antique bollard 
- see site furnishing legend

new column and cap to match existing

existing wall and cap to remain

details & 

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

as noted
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.4

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

elevations

scale: 1/8" = 1' - 0"
north end wall elevation

scale: 1/8" = 1' - 0"
south end wall elevation

scale: 3" = 1' - 0"
30" metal guardrail detail

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
30" metal guardrail on wall

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
south entry elevation

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
06

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



5'-2"

4'-6"
16"

15"

2'-7"

3'-11"

3'-0"

6"

16" D

2'-4"
new balustrade and top rail

existing fountain to remain

new urn to be selected - anchor to fountain 

Fountain Head emitter  to be selected

new balustrade and top rail

remove and replace main basin
2'-4"

16"

2'-4"

2'-6" 

16'

6'-0"

6"

restore fountain plumbing 
to operational mode

existing fountain 
structure to remain

new urn to be selected - 
anchor to fountain 

Fountain Head emitter to be selected

remove and replace main basin

reservoir basin to remain
clean and seal as needed

ex. inlet pipe to reservoir from 
reflecting pool - clean and 
check flow - repair as needed

replace water 
source piping from 
tank location to 
fountain - repair 
structure as needed

existing concrete trough - remove 
4" section for drain to outflow pipe

new brass drain inlet

2'-4"

22"

6'-0"

6'-0"

36"

8"

new balustrade and top rail

existing fountain structure to remain

new urn to be selected - anchor to fountain 

9" D

use existing end piece on back mansion 
patio for mold of scroll end rail detail

2'-6"

4'-0" 2'-6" 2'-9"

2'-4"

3'-8"

9'-0"

4'-5"

22"

9"

2"

16"

reservoir basin to remain
clean and seal as needed

ex. inlet pipe to reservoir from 
reflecting pool - clean and check 
flow - repair as needed

brick edging to remain

new balustrade and top rail

ex. bottom rail to remain
clean and repair as needed

ex. bottom rail to remain
clean and repair as needed

ex. walls and bench to remain - 
clean and repair as needed

details & 

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

as noted
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.5

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

N
E

CI
L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

elevations

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
balustrade at fountain

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
south fountain elevation

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
west fountain elevation

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
north fountain elevation

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
07

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



6'-11"

2'-3"
3'-0"

2'-4"

5'-7"

9"

4'-4"

ex. bottom columns to remain

ex. cheek wall (both sides) 
repair cap as needed

existing stairs to be 
removed and rebuilt to 
match original

bottom column cap to be replaced

ex. bottom columns to remain

bottom column cap to 
be re-attached

ex. top columns to remain

rebuild balustrade and top rail (both sides)

ex. bottom rail to remain - repair as needed ex. bottom rail to remain - 
repair as needed

new metal handrail anchored 
in ground with concrete footing

2 3/4"

14"

7"

1 3/4"

6'-0"

5'-3"

7'-0"

6"

6"

2 1/2"

2'-9"

2" square post

1" square stringer

3/4"  x 2" top rail

1" square pickets

3/4"  x 2" bottom rail

24"

26"
3 1/2"

3 1/2"

18"

3 1/2"

2'-4" 18"

30"

5"

5"

24"

22"

plan view

front elevation view

23"

24"

18" 2'-2"

5"

5"

1"

1 3/4"
1 1/2"

24"

1'-10"

1'-5"

3"

plan view

front elevation view

4'-6"

9'-9"

7"

fossil stone wall
to remain (both sides)

cheek wall (e.)
repair cap as needed
both sidesexisting stairs to be 

removed and rebuilt to 
match original

new metal handrail anchored 
in ground with concrete footing

3"

5"4"

20"

2"

5"

6"

6"

1 1/2"

1"

20"

3"

2 1/2"

details & 

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

as noted
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.6

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

N
E

CI
L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 

C
A

 9
5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

elevations

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
typical step profile

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
grand staircase lower section

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
metal fence and gate at grand staircase

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
lower staircase column

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
upper staircase column

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
grand staircase upper section

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
balustrade rail elevation

scale: 3" = 1' - 0"
balustrade detail

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
08

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



interior view side view

4'-10"

4'-9"

6"

2'-4"

2'-3"

19"

2'-3"

2 1/2"

10'-0"

17"

2'-0"
12"

existing concrete cheek wall to 
reman - repair cap as needed

new concrete cheek wall 
and cap to match existing

existing arched entry to remain

remove and store existing wood gate

6"

6'-1"

3'-10"

remove ex. steps and replace with 
new steps to match profile of 
grand staircase (w/ 6' riser)

14"

7'-8"

20" o.c.

8'-0"

4"

6"
8"

12"

14 1/2"2"3/4"

6'-0" o.c.

new tapered 
concrete column
to match existing  

6" x 8" beam

4" x 6" joist  

inside row of columns are 6' on center;
the outside row (not shown) are 10' - 9" on center

front view end view

new 12" diameter concrete 
column to match existing  

6" x 8" beam

4" x 6" joist  

16'-0"

3 3/4"

cap detail to match existing artifact 
columns stored in garage of mansion

3"-0"

6"

3'-8"

16"

3 1/4"

2"

9"

14" 7 3/4"

14"

ex. concrete base 
(at grade) to remain

ex. concrete base 
to remain

create new upper 
base as shown

create new sundial 
pedestal as shown

attach new sundial
see site furnishings 
legend and photo

4'-0"

23"

17"

23"

34" 26" 23"

3'-0"

5"

3"

23"
4'-4"

26"

front view

side view

new balustrade and top rail

new column caps (both sides)
see cap detail

ex. columns to remain

new urn to be selected - anchor to base

ex. base to remain
repair as needed

new balustrade and top rail

5"

3"

3/4"

1 1/2"

1/2"

1 3/4"

details & 

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

as noted
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.7

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

elevations

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
east entry elevation

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
arbor elevation

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
sundial pedestal elevation

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
look out elevation

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
column cap detail

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
09

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



existing column to remainnew balustrade to match existing 
on grand staircase landing 

existing column to remain
with new cap

new concrete amphitheater steps with 
6" risers and 13" treads. step profile to 
have 2" radius. 

amphitheater bench seating to be 18" highnew planter wall with 
1 1/2" rounded cap

new concrete amphitheater wall 
with 1 1/2" rounded cap

planted slope

planted slopeplanted slope

grand staircase from landing to 
mansion terrace elevation

new concrete amphitheater wall 
with 1 1/2" rounded cap

Note:
1. Wall cap and step profiles vary from those on site in 
order to differentiate from the original historic elements. 
2. Concrete color for amphitheater seating and steps to be 
natural gray with a sand finish.

7'-3"

3'-6"

18"
26"

13"

6"

12"

amphitheater bench seating 

18"

18"

amphitheater steps at 
midpoint of bench seating

new concrete amphitheater 
wall with 1 1/2" rounded cap

new concrete amphitheater 
wall with 1 1/2" rounded cap

6" reflection pool

new sloped bottom

water reservoir chamber

replaster or gunite surface
of existing concrete pool

bottom supports

mosaic tile (to be designed)

12"
7"

6 1/4"

1"

3/4"

24"

existing reflecting pool cap
repair as needed

recirculating pump 

commissioned metal sculpture of water jet

tile mosaic on new pool bottom
6" depth with slope to center drain

water reservoir for recirculating pool 

center drain valve 

supports for new pool bottom

existing reflecting pool 
replaster/gunite surface 

existing concrete trough from fountain bore 2" 
diameter hole for new feeder line from pump

32'-0"

reflecting pool wall  

new drain inlet  

existing drain inlet 

existing overflow drain

Art Deco tile mosaic

details & 

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

as noted
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.8

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

N
E

CI
L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

elevations

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
amphitheater front elevation

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
amphitheater side elevation

scale: 1" = 1' - 0"
reflecting pool/water catchment section

scale: 1/2" = 1' - 0"
reflection pool section

scale: 1/8" = 1' - 0"
art deco mosaic for reflecting pool floor

4.24.15 second review submission MAA
5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
10

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



Rispin Mansion Park

Henry Rispin came to Capitola in.... Completed in 1922, the Rispin Mansion ....

36"

26"
30"

2"

raised gold letters on brass field

3/4" painted metal frame

1/2" painted metal arch detail

informational signage template
mounted on walls or pedestal mount

raised gold edge detail

site furnishings

sheet number:

scale:

DATE BYPURPOSE

4.11.15 first issue review MAA

not to scale
sheet title:

R
IS

P
IN

 M
A

N
S

IO
N

 P
A

R
K

C
A

P
I
T

O
L
A

,
 
C

A
L
I
F

O
R

N
I
A

L - 1.9

W
H

A
R

F
 R

O
A

D
 A

N
D

 C
L
A

R
E

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(Exp 7/31/16)

MICHAEL A.
ARNONE

No. 3347

L

A

S
T

TA
E

FO CA

NE
CI

L

A

DE
S

L
ND SC

A

FI
I

RO
N

IT
E

C
T

H

PE
ARC

3
3
7
0
 S

a
m

u
e
l 
P

la
c
e
 S

a
n
ta

 C
ru

z
, 
C

A
 9

5
0
6
2

83
1.

46
2.

49
88

  m
ik

e@
ar

no
ne

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  w

w
w

.a
rn

on
el

an
ds

ca
pe

.c
om

bike bollard

sundial

drinking fountain

fountain headAcorn style park light

removable bollardconcrete bench

Charleston dance steps

park bench

trash/recycling receptacles

game table park table accessible park tablegame table with benches

4.24.15 second review submission MAA

signage template 

dog clean up station

5.28.15 City Council review MAA

7.
F

.2

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
11

Attachment: Approved Conceptual Plans  (1217 : Rispin Park Design Contract)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Receive Report Regarding Public Works Staff Augmentation to Assist in 
Reducing Backlog of the City's Capital Improvement Projects 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report.

BACKGROUND: Previously the City Council has authorized the Public Works Department to 
augment staff to assist in the delivery of log jammed capital improvement projects. To provide 
immediate assistance, Mr. Kyle Childers with Kimley-Horn and Associates, has been brought in 
under an existing on-call contract for this purpose. Mr. Childers has 14 years of public project 
management and design experience.

DISCUSSION: Mr. Childers will be working out of both the Public Works Department office and 
Kimley-Horn’s Capitola office on Bay Avenue. The current contract is for a two month period. 
During this time, the Public Works Director will be interviewing local project managers and will 
come back with recommendations on how best to continue the staff augmentation effort and 
capital project delivery. It is anticipated Mr. Childers will be initially working 20-hours per week at 
the beginning with the hours reducing as the projects are completed.

FISCAL IMPACT: The contract with Kimely-Horn is for a not to exceed amount of $20,000. This 
expense will be covered by funding in the Gas Tax Fund for Engineering and Administration 
expenses.

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

7.G

Packet Pg. 112



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Provide Report on City's Preparation for Potential El Niño Activity 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report and provide direction.

DISCUSSION: The State of California has experienced a significant drought for the past four 
consecutive years. Information from the National Weather Service and the National Oceanic 
and Atmospheric Association indicates a significant "El Niño" weather pattern exists in the 
Pacific Ocean. Due to this weather pattern, experts from both agencies have indicated a 95% 
likely scenario that the State of California, specifically the Monterey Bay area, may experience a 
wetter than normal winter season. 

Locally our community has been heavily impacted during prior significant El Niño events. The 
concern is increased this year since we have experienced a long period of drought related 
conditions. For example the wharf and businesses on the Esplanade experienced significant 
damage during the 82/83 event. The recent drier than normal conditions increases the 
possibility of fallen trees and excessive run off, which could exacerbate issues.  

The Police Department and Public Works Department have been taking proactive steps to 
prepare for a wetter the usual winter. Specifically the Police Department staff has taken the 
following steps to prepare for the possibility of a emergency response:

 Update the City’s Emergency Management Plan pursuant to CMC 8.08;
 Complete a department head table top exercise;
 Increase our social media presence to alert community members of approaching 

significant weather patterns;
 Meet with wharf businesses to strategize and prepare for evacuations, securing 

equipment, and closing of the wharf should the need arise;
 Examine and evaluate the City’s Emergency Operations Center (Capitola Library) to 

ensure equipment is stocked and available;
 Coordinated with the County’s Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Director to examine 

the new EOC location;
 Evaluated equipment needs to prepare for a more efficient response;
 Upgraded police radios and technology to better respond to a natural disaster;
 Coordinated effort amongst all City departments is under way to address equipment 

issues for the effective mobilization of all City resources and contacts, both public and 
private, to meet any condition constituting a local emergency.

The Public Works Department has completed the following:

 Debris removal and channel stabilization efforts in Noble Gulch above Bay Avenue;

8.A

Packet Pg. 113



El Niño Report 
October 22, 2015

 Cleaned all storm drains and catch basins of accumulated debris to insure maximum 
operational capacity;

 Reviewed emergency response procedures with crew members;
 Reviewed closure plans for the Village area in case of flooding over the seawall;
 Purchased various small equipment, such as chain saws and pumps, to aid response 

capabilities;
 Worked with Wharf businesses to develop plans to close nose of wharf and other storm 

preparations;
 Doubled amount of sand bags in storage, sand will be available in Beach and Village 

Parking Lot No. 1;
 Sealed City Hall roof;
 Replaced distressed pump in Lawn Way Pump Station and completed fall maintenance 

check on the control system;
 Evaluated trees throughout the City and put in place plans to remediate failing trees 

along Park Avenue, the Beach and Village Parking Lots, and the Rispin Mansion;

Staff will continue to address its efforts to prepare for the possibility of significant weather 
related activity should the forecasts materialize.

Staff recommends that members of our community should also prepare for potential impacts 
this winter.  As recommended by Federal Emergency Management Agency, community 
members should make a family communication “plan” as your household may not be together 
when disaster strikes.  In addition, FEMA recommends families build a kit for disasters that 
includes basic items your household may need in the event of an emergency.  Other good 
preparedness recommendations can be found at www.ready.gov.

Report Prepared By:  Rudy Escalante
Police Chief

8.A

Packet Pg. 114

http://www.ready.gov


CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Consider an Amendment to the Administrative Policy Governing the Capitola 
Bandstand Policy 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider an amendment to the Capitola Bandstand Policy relative 
to Community use Policies and Procedures and Provide Direction.

BACKGROUND: The City's Bandstand Administrative Policy, V-7, (Attachment 1) was 
established in 2007. The purpose of the Bandstand Policy is to establish specific policies and 
procedures for the use of a City-owned facility. The Police Department is responsible for issuing 
special event permits that includes the booking and use of the Bandstand. 

After implementation of the current Policy (Attachment 1) and prior to 2009, some groups would 
reserve the Bandstand for a large number of days during the summer. This created conflicts 
with previously approved and City-sponsored events. To address the concern the Bandstand 
Policy was amended to limit multiple reservations (see Attachment 2)

The Bandstand is owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is currently available for use 
by the public upon approval of a Special Events Permit. The Bandstand is located at Esplanade 
Park and consists of 600 square feet of a covered stage and a 2,000 square foot plaza. Public 
restroom facilities are available adjacent to the facility and the stage area is accessible to 
persons with disabilities. 

During the summer season, the Bandstand is frequently used during special events and City 
sponsored events. Advanced booking is required to avoid conflicting activities. A refundable 
deposit of $1,500 is required in the event there is any damage to the Bandstand. Cost to rent 
the facility range from $210 for a half day use and $630 for a full day. A special event permitted 
associated with the use of the Bandstand is $56.

DISCUSSION: Over the past year, interest in the use of the facility for minor and short period 
events (an hour or less) has increased. Staff is proposing to amend the current Policy to allow 
open-play periods; specifically on weekends only from 9:00 a.m. till noon. If others are waiting, a 
maximum of one hour would be permitted to give everyone an opportunity during the open-play 
period as long as the open play activity does not conflict with a permitted/reserved event. 

To minimize impacts to the surrounding area and to control potential disruptive activity, the 
following activities would not be permitted at anytime while using the Bandstand during the 
open-play period: distribution of material, solicitation, amplification, percussion instruments, 
hanging of banners or billboards, loud and disruptive behavior, hate speech, and the public 
trade or exchange of goods or services. 

While open-play would be free, the City would reserve the right to revoke a person(s) or 
group(s) privileges for any violations listed above and would be complaint driven. These open-

8.B

Packet Pg. 115



Amend Capitola Bandstand Policy 
October 22, 2015

plan rules and regulations would be posted on the Bandstand.

Staff has attached a draft amended Policy (Attachment 3) that would allow open-play for council 
review and direction.  While staff is not suggesting that the proposed changes sunset at a 
particular time, if issues develop with open-play period staff would return to Council with 
modifications to this policy.

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. V-7 Bandstand Community Use Policy
2. Memo V-7 Bandstand reservation policy addendum
3. Draft V-7 Bandstand Community Use Policy

Report Prepared By:  Rudy Escalante
Police Chief

8.B

Packet Pg. 116



DRAFT 

CAPITOLA BANDSTAND
Community Use Policies and Procedures

I. PURPOSE:

The purpose of the Capitola Bandstand Administrative Policy is to establish specific policies 
and procedures for use of the facility by the community.  An informational handout, which contains 
the policies and procedures of this Administrative Policy (Atta
interested in using the Bandstand. 

II. FACILITY DESCRIPTION:

The Bandstand is located at Esplanade Park overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay 
National Marine Sanctuary.  The Bandstand facility consists of

• 600 square foot covered stage
• 2,000 square foot plaza
• Electrical connections: 6-20 amp dedicated circuits, u

wall of stage and above the Bandstand on the roof trusses
• Restroom facilities are available adjacent to facility 
• Bandstand is accessible to persons with disabilities
• No existing seating structures
• No sound amplification equipment provided

III. POLICY:

A. Availability, Booking & General Use Information:

The Bandstand is owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use 
by the public upon approval of a Special Events Permit.

1) All events held on the Bandstand are required to have an approved Special 
Event Permit (SEP). Applications are available on the 
www.ci.capitola.org
4242. The SEP application contains all the necessary information for scheduling 
an event, including requirements for security, amplified sound, entertainment 
permit, insurance, parking, alcohol, food, etc
each event to be booked.  

2) Advanced booking is required through the Capitola Police Department. 
Applicants must call the Police Department to determine availability for 
tentative scheduling prior to submitting the SEP application.

DRAFT ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY

CAPITOLA BANDSTAND
Community Use Policies and Procedures

The purpose of the Capitola Bandstand Administrative Policy is to establish specific policies 
and procedures for use of the facility by the community.  An informational handout, which contains 
the policies and procedures of this Administrative Policy (Attachment 1), will be provided to persons 

The Bandstand is located at Esplanade Park overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay 
National Marine Sanctuary.  The Bandstand facility consists of the following:

20 amp dedicated circuits, u-ground receptacles located on back 
wall of stage and above the Bandstand on the roof trusses
Restroom facilities are available adjacent to facility 
Bandstand is accessible to persons with disabilities

No sound amplification equipment provided

Availability, Booking & General Use Information:

dstand is owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use 
by the public upon approval of a Special Events Permit.

All events held on the Bandstand are required to have an approved Special 
Event Permit (SEP). Applications are available on the City’s website at 
www.ci.capitola.org, or by calling the Capitola Police Department at 
4242. The SEP application contains all the necessary information for scheduling 
an event, including requirements for security, amplified sound, entertainment 
permit, insurance, parking, alcohol, food, etc. A separate SEP is required for 

t to be booked.  

Advanced booking is required through the Capitola Police Department. 
Applicants must call the Police Department to determine availability for 
tentative scheduling prior to submitting the SEP application.

Number: V-7
Issued: April 12, 2007
Revised: ____________
Jurisdiction: City Council

The purpose of the Capitola Bandstand Administrative Policy is to establish specific policies 
and procedures for use of the facility by the community.  An informational handout, which contains 

chment 1), will be provided to persons 

The Bandstand is located at Esplanade Park overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay 

ground receptacles located on back 

dstand is owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use 

All events held on the Bandstand are required to have an approved Special 
ity’s website at 

, or by calling the Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-
4242. The SEP application contains all the necessary information for scheduling 
an event, including requirements for security, amplified sound, entertainment 

A separate SEP is required for 

Advanced booking is required through the Capitola Police Department. 
Applicants must call the Police Department to determine availability for 

Issued: April 12, 2007
Revised: ____________
Jurisdiction: City Council

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

-7
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
U

se
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

11
44

 :
 A

m
en

d
 C

ap
it

o
la

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)



Administrative Procedure V-7 2
Capitola Bandstand • Community Use Policies and Procedures

3) Special Event Permit applications must be submitted no later than 60 days prior 
to an event.

4) Bandstand availability is dependent upon City events, prior approved City-
sanctioned events, and the *Capitola Beach Company lease agreement (see note 
below). 

5) Days and Hours of Use: The Bandstand is available any day of the week 
between the hours of 9:00 am to 8:00 pm. 

6) NO ALCOHOL PERMITTED without prior City Council permission.

7) Reserved use of the Bandstand must accommodate public access to the upper 
Esplanade Park, the Public Restrooms and the Beach.

8) The Bandstand can be reserved for Private Events, but the park area cannot be 
closed to the public.

9) No parking of vehicles on Esplanade Park is allowed except when delivering 
equipment.

*NOTE:  Capitola Beach Company:  The Capitola Beach Company operates a beach equipment rental business 
adjacent to the Bandstand from April through September. The hours of operation for the business are from10:00 
a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Any use of the Bandstand while the rental business is open shall not interfere with their 
operations with the exception of a limited number of events as determined by the City of Capitola. Users of the 
Bandstand shall work with the owners of Capitola Beach Company to accommodate delivery and removal of the 
business trailer, as necessary, for their operation (831) 475-2536.

B. Equipment & Clean-Up

1) Any equipment needed for an event will be the responsibility of the user, 
including tables, chairs, audio-visual equipment, etc. 

2) Equipment cannot block the entrance roads, nor should it impede public access.

3) The City must approve any equipment, apparatus, or materials utilized for an 
event at the Bandstand.

4) The user must set up their equipment and remove all equipment immediately 
after the event. Users are responsible for all clean up. 

C. Fees and Deposits

The following fees and deposits apply for use of the Bandstand:

1) 4 hours $150 fee and $150 refundable deposit 

2) All day $300 fee and $300 refundable deposit 

3) In addition to the fee for use of the Bandstand, a Special Event Permit Fee would 
also apply.  The SEP fee is determined by the event.  (See SEP application.)

A refundable deposit is required in the event there is any damage to the Bandstand.  
Such damage would be determined by the City Manager/Designee. 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

-7
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
U

se
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

11
44

 :
 A

m
en

d
 C

ap
it

o
la

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)



Administrative Procedure V-7 3
Capitola Bandstand • Community Use Policies and Procedures

D. Exceptions to Bandstand Policy
Any exceptions or waivers to these policies must be approved by the City Council.

Approved and authorized by the City Council on October 22, 2015

______________________________
Jamie Goldstein, City Manager

Attachment 1:  Bandstand Informational Handout

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

-7
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
U

se
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

11
44

 :
 A

m
en

d
 C

ap
it

o
la

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)



Administrative Procedure V-7
Capitola Bandstand • Community Use Policies and Procedures

CAPITOLA BANDSTAND 
Community Use Policies and Procedures

Thank you for your interest in reserving the Capitola Bandstand located at Esplanade Park 
overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. The Bandstand is 
owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use by the
Special Events Permit. The following information is provided to assist you in scheduling an event at 
the Bandstand and general site rules for the facility.

Availability, Booking & General Use Information:

1) All events held on the Bandstand are required to have an approved Special Event Permit (SEP). 
Applications are available on the city’s website at 
Capitola Police Department at (831) 475
information for scheduling an event, including requirements for security, amplified sound, 
entertainment permit, insurance, parking, alcohol, food, etc.  A separate SEP is required for 
each event to be booked.  

2) Advanced booking is required through the Police Department at (831) 475
must call the Police Department to determine availability for tentative scheduling prior to 
submitting the SEP.

3) Special Event Permit applications must be 

4) Bandstand availability is dependent upon City events, prior approved City
and the *Capitola Beach Company lease agreement (see note below). 

5) Days & Hours of Use: The Bandstand is a
9:00 am to 8:00 pm. 

6) NO ALCOHOL PERMITTED WITHOUT PRIOR CITY COUNCIL PERMISSION.

7) Reserved use of the Bandstand must accommodate public access to the upper Esplanade Park, 
the Public Restrooms and the Beach.

8) The Bandstand may be used for Private Events, but the park area cannot be closed to the 
public.

9) No parking of vehicles on Esplanade Park is allowed except when delivering equipment.

10) Any exceptions or waivers must go to the City Council

*NOTE:  Capitola Beach Company:  The Capitola Beach Company operates a beach equipment rental business adjacent 
to the Bandstand from April through September.  The hours of operation for the business are from10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Any use of the Bandstand while the rental business is open shall not interfere with their operations with the exception of a 
limited number of events as determined by the City of Capitola.  Users of the Bandstand shall work with the owners of 
Capitola Beach Company to accommodate delivery and removal of the business trailer, as necessary, for their operation 
(831) 475-2536.

• Community Use Policies and Procedures

Community Use Policies and Procedures

Thank you for your interest in reserving the Capitola Bandstand located at Esplanade Park 
overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. The Bandstand is 
owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use by the public upon approval of a 
Special Events Permit. The following information is provided to assist you in scheduling an event at 
the Bandstand and general site rules for the facility.

Availability, Booking & General Use Information:

he Bandstand are required to have an approved Special Event Permit (SEP). 
Applications are available on the city’s website at www.ci.capitola.org, or by calling the 
Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-4242.  The SEP application contains all the necessary 
information for scheduling an event, including requirements for security, amplified sound, 
entertainment permit, insurance, parking, alcohol, food, etc.  A separate SEP is required for 

Advanced booking is required through the Police Department at (831) 475-5935.  Applicants 
must call the Police Department to determine availability for tentative scheduling prior to 

Special Event Permit applications must be submitted no later than 60 days prior to an event.

Bandstand availability is dependent upon City events, prior approved City-sanctioned events, 
and the *Capitola Beach Company lease agreement (see note below). 

Days & Hours of Use: The Bandstand is available any day of the week between the hours of 

NO ALCOHOL PERMITTED WITHOUT PRIOR CITY COUNCIL PERMISSION.

Reserved use of the Bandstand must accommodate public access to the upper Esplanade Park, 
Beach.

The Bandstand may be used for Private Events, but the park area cannot be closed to the 

No parking of vehicles on Esplanade Park is allowed except when delivering equipment.

Any exceptions or waivers must go to the City Council

The Capitola Beach Company operates a beach equipment rental business adjacent 
to the Bandstand from April through September.  The hours of operation for the business are from10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

hile the rental business is open shall not interfere with their operations with the exception of a 
limited number of events as determined by the City of Capitola.  Users of the Bandstand shall work with the owners of 

elivery and removal of the business trailer, as necessary, for their operation 

CITY OF CAPITOLA
420 Capitola Avenue
Capitola, CA  95010

(831) 475-7300
FAX (831) 479-8879

4

Thank you for your interest in reserving the Capitola Bandstand located at Esplanade Park 
overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. The Bandstand is 

public upon approval of a 
Special Events Permit. The following information is provided to assist you in scheduling an event at 

he Bandstand are required to have an approved Special Event Permit (SEP). 
, or by calling the 

SEP application contains all the necessary 
information for scheduling an event, including requirements for security, amplified sound, 
entertainment permit, insurance, parking, alcohol, food, etc.  A separate SEP is required for 

5935.  Applicants 
must call the Police Department to determine availability for tentative scheduling prior to 

submitted no later than 60 days prior to an event.

sanctioned events, 

vailable any day of the week between the hours of 

NO ALCOHOL PERMITTED WITHOUT PRIOR CITY COUNCIL PERMISSION.

Reserved use of the Bandstand must accommodate public access to the upper Esplanade Park, 

The Bandstand may be used for Private Events, but the park area cannot be closed to the 

No parking of vehicles on Esplanade Park is allowed except when delivering equipment.

The Capitola Beach Company operates a beach equipment rental business adjacent 
to the Bandstand from April through September.  The hours of operation for the business are from10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

hile the rental business is open shall not interfere with their operations with the exception of a 
limited number of events as determined by the City of Capitola.  Users of the Bandstand shall work with the owners of 

elivery and removal of the business trailer, as necessary, for their operation 

CITY OF CAPITOLA
420 Capitola Avenue
Capitola, CA  95010

8879

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

-7
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
U

se
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

11
44

 :
 A

m
en

d
 C

ap
it

o
la

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)



Administrative Procedure V-7 5
Capitola Bandstand • Community Use Policies and Procedures

Facility Description:

• 600 square foot covered stage

• 2,000 square foot plaza

• Electrical connections: 6-20amp dedicated circuits, u-ground receptacles located on back 
wall of Bandstand and above the stage on the roof trusses

• Restroom facilities are available adjacent to facility 

• Bandstand is accessible to persons with disabilities

• No existing seating structures

• No sound amplification equipment provided

• No parking of vehicles on the Esplanade Park except when delivering equipment.

Equipment & Clean-Up

Any equipment needed for an event will be the responsibility of the user, including tables, 
chairs and audio-visual equipment. Equipment cannot block the entrance roads, nor should it impede 
public access. The City must approve any equipment, apparatus, or materials utilized for an event at 
the Bandstand.  The user must setup their equipment and remove all equipment immediately after the 
event.  Users are responsible for ALL clean up. 

Fees/Deposits:

The following fees and deposits apply for use of the Bandstand:

1) 4 hours $150 fee &  $150 refundable deposit 

2) All day $300 fee &  $300 refundable deposit

3) In addition to the rental fee for use of the Bandstand, a Special Event Permit Fee would 
also apply.  The SEP fee is determined by the event.  (See SEP application.)

A refundable deposit is required in the event there is any damage to the Bandstand.  Such 
damage would be determined by the City Manager. 

For more information or to rent the Bandstand, please contact the
Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-4242

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

-7
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
U

se
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

11
44

 :
 A

m
en

d
 C

ap
it

o
la

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)



CITY OF CAPITOLA      Office of the
                                                                                                                            City Manager     

M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Chief Ehle, Traci Hernandez, Lisa Murphy

FROM: Richard Hill, City Manager

DATE: August 11, 2009

SUBJECT: Bandstand Rentals/Reservation

The City’s recent experience with Bandstand reservations has shown that groups will reserve the 
Bandstand for multiple days during the summer.  The current policy prescribes no limits to multiple 
reservations.  This memorandum is prepared to address that deficiency.

Effective with the date of this memorandum, Bandstand reservations, in addition to the current 
Bandstand policy, are limited to the following:

1. A given group, or a committee or subgroup of a group, may reserve the Bandstand a maximum 
of once every quarter.  A quarter is a three month period, with the four quarters of any given year being:  
January through March, April through June, July through September, and October through December.  
Once is no more than an eight hour day.

2. Should a group reserve the Bandstand for two consecutive quarters there must be at least 45 days 
between each event sponsored by that group.

3. At no time should two separately sponsored groups reserve the Bandstand and reserve the park at 
the same time unless:  a) both groups are sponsored by the City; or, b) the City Council approves the 
reservation.

4. This policy does not apply to City sponsored events, events historically scheduled such as 
various Chamber of Commerce events, or events that have been approved by the City Council.

8.B.2

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

em
o

 V
-7

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 r
es

er
va

ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y 
ad

d
en

d
u

m
  (

11
44

 :
 A

m
en

d
 C

ap
it

o
la

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 P
o

lic
y)



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

 
                                                                       Number: V-7 

                                                                                                  Issued: April 12, 2007 
                                                                            Jurisdiction: City Council 

CAPITOLA BANDSTAND 
Community Use Policies and Procedures 

 
I. PURPOSE: 
 

 The purpose of the Capitola Bandstand Administrative Policy is to establish specific 
policies and procedures for use of the facility by the community.  An informational handout, 
which contains the policies and procedures of this Administrative Policy (Attachment 1), will 
be provided to persons interested in using the Bandstand.  

 
II. FACILITY DESCRIPTION: 
 
 

The Bandstand is located at Esplanade Park overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay 
National Marine Sanctuary.  The Bandstand facility consists of the following: 

 
 600 square foot covered stage 
 2,000 square foot plaza 
 Electrical connections: 6-20 amp dedicated circuits, u-ground receptacles located on back 

wall of stage and above the Bandstand on the roof trusses 
 Restroom facilities are available adjacent to facility  
 Bandstand is accessible to persons with disabilities 
 No existing seating structures 
 No sound amplification equipment provided 

 
III. POLICY: 
 

A. Availability, Booking & General Use Information: 
 

The Bandstand is owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use 
by the public upon approval of a Special Events Permit. 

 
1) All events, other than those activities that qualify   under open play, held on the 

Bandstand are required to have an approved Special Event Permit (SEP). 
Applications are available on the city’s website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us, or by 
calling the Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-4242.  The SEP application 
contains all the necessary information for scheduling an event, including 
requirements for security, amplified sound, entertainment permit, insurance, 
parking, alcohol, food, etc.  A separate SEP is required for each event to be 
booked.   

 
2) Advanced booking is required through the Capitola Police Department. 

Applicants must call the Police Department to determine availability for 
tentative scheduling prior to submitting the SEP application. 

 

8.B.3

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 V
-7

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

U
se

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
11

44
 :

 A
m

en
d

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 P

o
lic

y)



3) Special Event Permit applications must be submitted no later than 60 days prior 
to an event. 

4) Bandstand availability is dependent upon City events, prior approved City-
sanctioned events, and the *Capitola Beach Company lease agreement (see note 
below).  

 
5) Days & Hours of Use: The Bandstand is available any day of the week between 

the hours of 9:00 am to 8:00 pm.  
 
6) NO ALCOHOL PERMITTED without prior City Council permission. 
 
7) Reserved use of the Bandstand must accommodate public access to the upper 

Esplanade Park, the Public Restrooms and the Beach. 
 
8) The Bandstand can be reserved for Private Events, but the park area cannot be 

closed to the public. 
 
9) No parking of vehicles on Esplanade Park is allowed except when delivering 

equipment. 
 
*NOTE:  Capitola Beach Company:  The Capitola Beach Company operates a beach equipment rental business 
adjacent to the Bandstand from April through September.  The hours of operation for the business are from10:00 
a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Any use of the Bandstand while the rental business is open shall not interfere with their 
operations with the exception of a limited number of events as determined by the City of Capitola.  Users of the 
Bandstand shall work with the owners of Capitola Beach Company to accommodate delivery and removal of the 
business trailer, as necessary, for their operation (831) 475-2536. 

 
B. Equipment & Clean-Up 

 1) Any equipment needed for an event will be the responsibility of the user, 
including tables, chairs, audio-visual equipment, etc.  

 
 2) Equipment cannot block the entrance roads, nor should it impede public access. 
  
 3) The City must approve any equipment, apparatus, or materials utilized for an 

event at the Bandstand. 
 
 4) The user must set up their equipment and remove all equipment immediately 

after the event.  Users are responsible for all clean up.  
 

C. Fees and Deposits 
  The following fees and deposits apply for use of the Bandstand: 
 

1) 4 hours  $210150 fee and $1500 refundable deposit  
2) All day  $630300 fee and $1500300 refundable deposit  
3) In addition to the fee for use of the Bandstand, a Special Event Permit Fee would 

also apply.  The SEP fee is determined by the event.  (See SEP application.) 
 

A refundable deposit is required in the event there is any damage to the Bandstand.  
Such damage would be determined by the City Manager/Designee.  
 
 
 

8.B.3

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 V
-7

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

U
se

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
11

44
 :

 A
m

en
d

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 P

o
lic

y)



 D.  Open Play 
The Bandstand is available for open play by groups and/or individuals on Saturday’s 
and Sunday’s only on a first come first serve basis. During open play, no Special Event 
Permit is required. The hours for open play is between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. (noon). 

 
Those groups or individuals who desire to use the Bandstand during open play hours 
may only use the facility for no more than one hour when others are waiting. Those 
activities and/or events that are pre-approved with a special event permit or a city 
sponsored event have precedence. 

 
The following activity is not permitted during open play hours: 

  1) Distribution of materials 
  2) Solicitation 
  3) Amplification 
  4) Percussion instruments (drums) 
  5) Hanging of banners or billboards 
  6) Hate speech 
  7) Public trade or exchange of goods or services.  
 

While open play would be free, the City would reserve the right to revoke a person(s) 
or group(s) privileges for any violations listed above and would be complaint driven.  

Any use of the Bandstand while the rental business is open shall not interfere with their 
operations with the exception of a limited number of events as determined by the City 
of Capitola.  Users of the Bandstand shall work with the owners of Capitola Beach 
Company to accommodate delivery and removal of the business trailer, as necessary, 
for their operation (831) 475-2536. 
 

 
ED. Exceptions to Bandstand Policy 

Any exceptions or waivers to these policies must be approved by the City Council. 
 
 

 
 
 
    Approved and authorized by the City Council on October 22, 
2015April 12, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
        Rich Hill, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.B.3

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 V
-7

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

U
se

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
11

44
 :

 A
m

en
d

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 P

o
lic

y)



 
 
Attachment 1:  Bandstand Informational Handout 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.B.3

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 V
-7

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

U
se

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
11

44
 :

 A
m

en
d

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 P

o
lic

y)



  
 
 
 

 

CAPITOLA BANDSTAND  
Community Use Policies and Procedures 

 
Thank you for your interest in reserving the Capitola Bandstand located at Esplanade Park 

overlooking Capitola Beach and the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary.   The Bandstand is 
owned and operated by the City of Capitola and is available for use by the public upon approval of a 
Special Events Permit. The following information is provided to assist you in scheduling an event at 
the Bandstand and general site rules for the facility. 
 
Availability, Booking & General Use Information: 
1) All events held on the Bandstand are required to have an approved Special Event Permit (SEP). 

Applications are available on the city’s website at www.ci.capitola.ca.us, or by calling the 
Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-4242.  The SEP application contains all the necessary 
information for scheduling an event, including requirements for security, amplified sound, 
entertainment permit, insurance, parking, alcohol, food, etc.  A separate SEP is required for 
each event to be booked.   
 

2) Advanced booking is required through the Police Department at (831) 475-5935.  Applicants 
must call the Police Department to determine availability for tentative scheduling prior to 
submitting the SEP. 

 
3) Special Event Permit applications must be submitted no later than 60 days prior to an event. 
 
4) Bandstand availability is dependent upon City events, prior approved City-sanctioned events, 

and the *Capitola Beach Company lease agreement (see note below).  
 
5) Days & Hours of Use: The Bandstand is available any day of the week between the hours of 

9:00 am to 8:00 pm.  
 

6) NO ALCOHOL PERMITTED WITHOUT PRIOR CITY COUNCIL PERMISSION. 
 

7) Reserved use of the Bandstand must accommodate public access to the upper Esplanade Park, 
the Public Restrooms and the Beach. 
 

8) The Bandstand may be used for Private Events, but the park area cannot be closed to the 
public. 
 

9) No parking of vehicles on Esplanade Park is allowed except when delivering equipment. 
 
10) Any exceptions or waivers must go to the City Council 

 
*NOTE:  Capitola Beach Company:  The Capitola Beach Company operates a beach equipment rental business adjacent 
to the Bandstand from April through September.  The hours of operation for the business are from10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Any use of the Bandstand while the rental business is open shall not interfere with their operations with the exception of a 
limited number of events as determined by the City of Capitola.  Users of the Bandstand shall work with the owners of 
Capitola Beach Company to accommodate delivery and removal of the business trailer, as necessary, for their operation 
(831) 475-2536. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA  95010 

(831) 475-7300 
FAX (831) 479-8879

8.B.3

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 V
-7

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

U
se

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
11

44
 :

 A
m

en
d

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 P

o
lic

y)



 
 

Facility Description: 
 600 square foot covered stage 
 2,000 square foot plaza 
 Electrical connections: 6-20amp dedicated circuits, u-ground receptacles located on back 

wall of Bandstand and above the stage on the roof trusses 
 Restroom facilities are available adjacent to facility  
 Bandstand is accessible to persons with disabilities 
 No existing seating structures 
 No sound amplification equipment provided 
 No parking of vehicles on the Esplanade Park except when delivering equipment. 

 
Equipment & Clean-Up 

Any equipment needed for an event will be the responsibility of the user, including tables, 
chairs and audio-visual equipment. Equipment cannot block the entrance roads, nor should it impede 
public access. The City must approve any equipment, apparatus, or materials utilized for an event at 
the Bandstand.  The user must setup their equipment and remove all equipment immediately after the 
event.  Users are responsible for ALL clean up.  
 
 
Fees/Deposits: 
The bandstand rental fees shall be established in the City's adopted Fee Schedule.  
 

 The following fees and deposits apply for use of the Bandstand: 
 

1) 4 hours  $210150 fee &  $& $1500 refundable deposit  
 
2) All day  $630300 fee &  $& $1500300 refundable deposit 
 
3) In addition to the rental fee for use of the Bandstand, a Special Event Permit Fee would 

also apply.  The SEP fee is determined by the event.  (See SEP application.) 
 
A refundable deposit is required in the event there is any damage to the Bandstand.  Such 

damage would be determined by the City Manager.  
 
 
 

 
 

For more information or to rent the Bandstand, please contact the 
Capitola Police Department at (831) 475-4242 

 
 
 

8.B.3

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 V
-7

 B
an

d
st

an
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

U
se

 P
o

lic
y 

 (
11

44
 :

 A
m

en
d

 C
ap

it
o

la
 B

an
d

st
an

d
 P

o
lic

y)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF OCTOBER 22, 2015

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution Adopting the Climate Action Plan 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution approving the Addendum to the General Plan 
Update Environmental Impact Report and adopt the Climate Action Plan.

BACKGROUND: The City Council considered the draft Climate Action Plan (CAP) at their May 
28, 2015, hearing and authorized staff to initiate public review. The CAP was released for a 30-
day public review and comment period on June 16, 2015. The Planning Commission 
subsequently considered the CAP on October 1, 2015, and unanimously recommended the City 
Council adopt the proposed plan. Following is a web link to view the CAP 
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment/page/climate-action-plan

DISCUSSION: Staff received one letter during public review from the Monterey Bay Unified Air 
Pollution Control District (District). The District’s letter and staff’s responses is included as 
Attachment 2. Staff made minor revisions to the draft CAP based on the District’s comments 
and incorporated previous feedback received from the Commission on the Environment (COE), 
Planning Commission, and City Council. Notwithstanding these minor revisions, the proposed 
CAP remains substantially unchanged from the previous version reviewed by the City Council in 
May 2015. A summary of revisions is shown below:

 Reproduced document with a slightly larger font type;

 Provide additional information about the City’s completed and ongoing efforts to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions in Chapter 7;

 Added Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reduction measures as requested by the COE to:
 Coordinate with UCSC and Cabrillo College to increase bus ridership 

opportunities; 
 Consider additional free parking spaces for electric vehicles in the Beach and 

Village parking lots;
 Partner with the COE to advance the green economy; 
 Encourage cool roofs and cool pavement;
 Consider a star night event.

 Added a list of acronyms chapter.
Staff did not include revisions requested by the District to adopt a new carbon tax, re-model 
GHG emission calculations based on new modeling software updates, or to re-model GHG 
reduction assumptions associated with possible, future passenger rail service.  As indicated in 
its responses, Staff does not believe a new carbon tax is currently necessary and re-modeling 
GHG emission calculations would be an expensive exercise which is unlikely to produce 

8.C

Packet Pg. 129

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment/page/climate-action-plan


Adoption of the Climate Action Plan 
October 22, 2015

substantially different results. Moreover, the CAP will be subject to regular five-year updates, at 
which time GHG emission calculations will be re-modeled with the most current available 
information and software systems.
In addition, the COE has recommended an additional GHG reduction measure to require 
residential energy upgrades at the time of sale. Staff has researched climate action plans 
adopted by other cities and counties and has found that the Cities of Berkeley, San Francisco, 
and Boulder, CO have adopted ordinances which require homeowners to conduct an energy 
audit and share the information with prospective buyers prior to sale. The Cities of San 
Francisco and Boulder require the seller to install improvements prior to sale.
The proposed CAP does not currently include any measures to require energy audits or energy 
efficiency upgrades; however, it would be feasible to include such measures if directed by City 
Council.  While these measures would reduce the City’s residential energy consumption and 
associated GHG emissions, they would also result in additional time and cost to residents 
selling a home and would require additional staff resources to administer and enforce the 
program.  
Staff has also prepared a draft Implementation Strategy (Attachment 3) which lists all proposed 
GHG reduction measures in a single table which includes details regarding how and when 
various measures will be implemented. The Implementation Strategy is a stand-alone working 
document which will be used by staff, the COE, decision-makers, and stakeholders to track and 
monitor implementation progress.
Although the Planning Commission unanimously recommended adoption of the proposed CAP, 
some Commissioners expressed concerns about measures which call for increased energy and 
water efficiency standards through an amended Green Building Program, stating a preference 
to rely on mandatory CALGreen compliance standards.
If the City Council adopts the CAP with measures to increase energy and water efficiency 
standards, staff will return to the Planning Commission and City Council with options for an 
amended Green Building Program which include incentive based compliance standards.
FISCAL IMPACT: The Climate Action Plan contains numerous action items, which if adopted, 
would individually and collectively require funding to implement. The actual cost to implement 
CAP action items is difficult to estimate given the 20+ year planning horizon. However, 
implementation of GHG reduction measures will require City investment of staff resources and 
funding. Many of the reduction measures, such as improving pedestrian and bicycle facilities, 
will require future commitments of capital improvement funds.  Staff intends to include these 
measures in the annual Capital Improvement Project list for City Council consideration during 
annual budget deliberations. Staff believes it can implement the proposed action items as 
presently outlined in the CAP with existing staff levels, however if a new policy is added calling 
for the City to adopt ordinances to require homeowners complete energy efficiency upgrades or 
audits such an ordinance may require additional staff resources to implement.  No additional 
funding is currently requested.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Addendum to the General Plan Update EIR for the Climate Action Plan (PDF)
2. Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District Comments and Staff 

Responses (PDF)
3. Climate Action Plan Implementation Strategy (PDF)
4. May 28, 2015 City Council Staff Report (PDF)

8.C

Packet Pg. 130



Adoption of the Climate Action Plan 
October 22, 2015

Report Prepared By:  Rich Grunow
Community Development Director

…
…

8.C

Packet Pg. 131



Adoption of the Climate Action Plan 
October 22, 2015

DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. ____
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA

APPROVING THE GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 
AND ADOPTING THE CLIMATE ACTION PLAN

WHEREAS, in September 2006, the State of California adopted the Global Warming Act 
of 2006 which created a statewide greenhouse gas emission limit that would reduce emissions 
to 1990 levels by 2020 and identified local governments as essential partners in achieving 
California’s goal to reduce greenhouse gas emissions; and

WHEREAS, The City of Capitola recognizes the need for a Climate Action Plan to guide 
City actions to reduce greenhouse gas emissions which contribute to global climate change; 
and 

WHEREAS, Adoption of a Climate Action Plan is an action item of the City of Capitola 
General Plan; and

WHEREAS, The Capitola Climate Action Plan supports or directly implements numerous 
General Plan goals, policies, and actions; and

WHEREAS, Implementation of the Climate Action Plan would reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions in the City consistent with State law; and

WHEREAS, The draft Climate Action Plan was available for public review and comment 
between June 16, 2015 and July 17, 2015; and

WHEREAS, A duly noticed public hearing was held by the City Council on October 22, 
2015 and by the Planning Commission on October 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended adoption of the Climate Action 
Plan and General Plan Update EIR Addendum; and

WHEREAS, The City has determined that the proposed Climate Action Plan does not 
meet the criteria for preparing a subsequent or supplemental EIR under CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15162 and 15163; and,

WHEREAS, an Addendum to the General Plan Update EIR has therefore been prepared 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15164; and,

WHEREAS, The Addendum provides analysis and cites substantial evidence that 
supports the County’s determination that the Climate Action Plan does not meet the criteria for 
preparing a subsequent or supplemental EIR under CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 and 
15163; and

WHEREAS, the City Council provided the required notification and conducted public 
hearing on October 22, 2015, considered all testimony and proposed modifications received in 
the process and made necessary revisions to the final Climate Action Plan; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Capitola that it 
hereby approves the General Plan Update EIR Addendum and adopts the Climate Action Plan.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 22nd day of October, 
2015, by the following vote:

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT/ABSTAIN:  

________________________
Dennis Norton, Mayor

ATTEST: ________________________, CMC
       Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

8.C

Packet Pg. 132



 

1 
 

 

ADDENDUM TO PROGRAM ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (SCH #2013072002) 

For the  

CITY OF CAPITOLA CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 
 

INTRODUCTION 
This addendum has been prepared to document compliance with the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) for the City of Capitola’s proposed Climate Action Plan (CAP).   The CAP  identifies strategies 

for reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions  in accordance with the City’s General Plan, Assembly Bill 

32  (Global Warming  Solutions  Act  of  2006),  Senate  Bill  375  (Sustainable  Communities  and  Climate 

Protection Act of 2008) and Executive Order S‐3‐05.  GHG reduction strategies incorporate and augment 

General Plan policies and programs previously studied in the City’s General Plan Update Environmental 

Impact  Report  (EIR)  and  do  not  raise  any  new  environmental  issues  or  result  in  any  substantially 

increased environmental  impacts.   This EIR addendum adds to the General Plan Update EIR analysis of 

climate change impacts which is hereby incorporated by reference.   

The  CAP  has  been  prepared  to  serve  as  a  programmatic  document  for  which  future  development 

projects may tier from pursuant to the requirements of CEQA.  By incorporating the goals and measures 

of the CAP into the GPU EIR through this addendum, Capitola is ensuring that future development and 

planning activities within the City conform to the objectives of the CAP and climate change  legislation 

passed by the State of California. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The proposed CAP is a long‐range planning document which provides a roadmap for the City to combat 

local sources of climate change by providing a menu of actions to reduce GHG emissions. Once adopted 

and implemented, the CAP would fulfill several General Plan goals and bring the City into conformance 

with AB 32, Senate Bill 375, and Executive Order S‐3‐05.  The CAP includes an inventory of existing GHG 

emissions, a forecast of future GHG emissions, identification of GHG reduction targets, and a list of GHG 

reduction measures necessary to achieve identified reduction targets. 

Existing GHG Emissions Inventory 
GHG emissions are generated by a number of human activities,  including  transportation, energy use, 

transport and treatment of water/wastewater, and solid waste disposal.  According to its 2010 baseline 

GHG  inventory prepared by AMBAG, Capitola generated approximately 88,091 metric  tons of  carbon 

dioxide equivalent (MTCO2e) emissions.   Capitola’s primary source of GHG emissions  is transportation, 

which accounts for approximately 65% of the City’s overall emission  inventory, followed by energy use 

at 33%, solid waste at 2% and water/wastewater treatment and distribution at less than 1%. 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

2 
 

SOURCE/ACTIVITY  2010 BASELINE GHG INVENTORY TOTAL EMMISSION %

Transportation and Mobile Sources  57,123 64.8%

Energy Consumption  28,825 32.7%

Solid Waste  1,476 1.7%

Water and Wastewater Treatment     667 0.8%

TOTAL  88,091 100%

 
Forecast of Future GHG Emissions 
The  CAP  includes  a  “business  as  usual”  forecast  and  an  “adjusted  business  as  usual”  forecast.    The 

business as usual forecast assumes a scenario in which there are no federal, state, or local actions taken 

to  reduce  GHG  emissions.    The  adjusted  business  as  usual  forecast  accounts  for  existing  state  and 

federal emission reduction initiatives, but assumes Capitola takes no local actions.   

Under the business as usual forecast, Capitola’s GHG emissions would increase by approximately 2% by 

2020 and 4% by 2035.  The adjusted business as usual forecast projects an approximately 12% reduction 

in 2020 and a 22% reduction by 2035.   

SCENARIO  GHG EMISSIONS MTCO2e % CHANGE

2010 Baseline  88,091 ‐‐ 

Business as Usual 2020  89,812 2% 

Business as Usual 2035  91,743 4% 

Adjusted Business as Usual 2020  77,789 ‐12% 

Adjusted Business as Usual 2035  68,980 ‐20% 

 
Capitola Reduction Targets 
The  proposed  CAP  sets  a  4.9%  GHG  emissions  reduction  target  by  2020.    The  4.9%  target  was 

established by using  the 2014 updated statewide GHG emissions  inventory prepared by  the California 

Air  Resources  Board  (CARB)  which  estimated  that  California  would  need  to  achieve  a  4.9%  GHG 

reduction by 2020 to comply with AB 32.   

The CAP also  includes an  interim 2035  target and a  long range 2050 target as mandated by Executive 

Order  S‐3‐05.    The  2035  target  is  to  reduce  GHG  emissions  by  42.9  percent  below  Capitola’s  2010 

baseline, while the 2050 target represents an 81% reduction. 

YEAR  REDUCTION TARGET PROJECTED REDUCTION  DELTA

2020  4.9%  18%  13.1% 

2035    42.9%  40.4% ‐  2.5% 

2050    81.0%  39.3% ‐ 41.7% 

 

While  the CAP demonstrates  the City can exceed  its 2020  reduction  target and  substantially meet  its 

2035 interim target, the 2050 target is presently unattainable for Capitola as well as the vast majority of 

California jurisdictions without transformational technology advancements. 

Proposed GHG Reduction Measures 
The City’s proposed GHG  reduction measures serve as  the backbone of  the CAP and are presented  in 

chapters 6 and 7.   The proposed reduction measures are based on measures presented to the General 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

3 
 

Plan Advisory Committee (GPAC) on January 16, 2013 and the Commission on the Environment (COE) in 

September 2014 and April 2015.   The CAP has been prepared with a focus on voluntary and  incentive 

based programs; however,  in order  to  show quantifiable GHG  reductions,  some  regulatory measures 

were needed and are included in the draft CAP.  

Proposed  reduction measures  are divided  into  six  categories which  are  shown  in  the  following  table 

along with  corresponding  local GHG  reduction  projections  (reductions  achieved  through  federal  and 

state actions are not included). 

 
REDUCTION MEASURE  2020 REDUCTION (MTCO2e) 2035 REDUCTION (MTCO2e)

Vehicle Miles Travelled (transportation)  2,972 7,996 

Residential and Non‐Residential Energy  2,078 8,532 

Water and Wastewater    67      1 

Solid Waste  922   922 

Parks, Open Space, and Agriculture  No Measurable Reductions 

Action and Implementation  No Measurable Reductions 

TOTAL  6,039 17,451 

 

CEQA ADDENDUM PROCEDURES 
This document has been prepared  in accordance with CEQA Guidelines  sections 15164 and 15168  to 

explain the rationale for determining that the proposed Capitola Climate Action Plan would not create 

any new or substantially more severe significant effects on the environmental that were not analyzed in 

the General Plan Update EIR.   

In  determining whether  an Addendum  is  the  appropriate  document  to  analyze modifications  to  the 
General Plan EIR, State CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 states: 

(a) The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if 
some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described  in Section 15162 
calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. 

(b) An  addendum  to  an  adopted  negative  declaration  may  be  prepared  if  only  mior  technical 
changes or additions are necessary or none of the conditions described  in Section 15162 calling 
for the preparation of a subsequent EIR or negative declaration have occurred. 

(c) An addendum need not be circulated for public review but can be included in or attached to the 
final EIR or adopted negative declaration. 

(d) The decision‐making body shall consider  the addendum with  the  final EIR or adopted negative 
declaration prior to making a decision on the project. 

(e) A brief explanation of  the decision not to prepare a subsequent EIR pursuant  to Section 15162 
should be included in an addendum to an EIR, the lead agency’s required findings on the project, 
or elsewhere in the record.  The explanation must be supported by substantial evidence. 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

4 
 

Since  the  General  Plan  EIR  has  been  certified,  the  environmental  impacts  of  subsequent  activities 

proposed under the General Plan must be examined in light of the impact analysis in the certified EIR to 

determine  if additional CEQA documentation must be prepared.   One of  the standards  that applies  is 

whether, under Public Resources Code Section 21166 and State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162 and 

15163, there are new significant effects or other grounds that require preparation of a subsequent EIR 

or  supplemental  EIR  in  support  of  further  agency  action  on  the  project.   Under  these  guidelines,  a 

subsequent or supplemental EIR shall be prepared if any of the following criteria are met: 

(a) When an EIR has been certified or negative declaration adopted for a project, no subsequent EIR 
shall be prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial 
evidence in light of the whole record, one or more of the following: 

1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the 
previous  EIR  or  negative  declaration  due  to  the  involvement  of  new  significant 
environmental  effects  or  a  substantial  increase  in  the  severity  of  previously  identified 
significant effects; 

2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project  is 
undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration 
due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; or 

3) New  information of substantial  importance, which was not known and count not have 
been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was 
certified  as  complete  or  the  negative  declaration  was  adopted,  shows  any  of  the 
following: 

A. The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR 
or negative declaration; 

B. Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown 
in the previous EIR; 

C. Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact 
be  feasible  and would  substantially  reduce  one  or more  significant  effects  of  the 
project,  but  the  project  proponents  decline  to  adopt  the  mitigation  measure  or 
alternative; or 

D. Mitigation measures  or  alternatives  which  are  considerably  different  from  those 
analyzed  in  the  previous  EIR  would  substantially  reduce  one  or more  significant 
effects  on  the  environment,  but  the  project  proponents  decline  to  adopt  the 
mitigation measure or alternative. 

As demonstrated in the environmental analysis contained herein, none of the conditions that had been 

analyzed in the General Plan EIR would change with adoption and implementation of the proposed CAP.  

Furthermore, no new  information of  substantial  importance meeting  the criteria  listed  in State CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15162 has been identified. 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

5 
 

PRIOR ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT 
The Capitola City Council adopted the General Plan Update and certified the associated EIR on June 26, 

2014.   The certified EIR found that adoption of the GPU would have significant, unavoidable effects to 

air  quality,  hydrology  and  water  quality,  traffic,  utilities  and  service  systems,  and  greenhouse  gas 

emissions.    In  accordance  with  CEQA  section  15091,  the  Capitola  City  Council  adopted  findings  of 

overriding considerations to certify the EIR.   

The  certified GPU  EIR  includes mitigation measure GHG‐1 which  requires  the  City  to  prepare  a  CAP 

within 18 months of adopting the GPU.  The proposed CAP has been prepared to satisfy this mitigation 

measure and through  implementation of the CAP,  impacts to air quality and GHG emissions would be 

reduced as contemplated in the GPU EIR. 

The GPU also includes a number of policies and action items intended to address the effects of climate 

change through  increased conservation, sustainability practices,  improved water and energy efficiency, 

and greenhouse gas (GHG) reductions.   The proposed Capitola CAP  identifies how the City will achieve 

GPU  climate  change  policies  and  its  GHG  emissions  reduction  target.    The  CAP  provides  goals  and 

associated actions to reduce GHG emissions resulting  from transportation and mobile sources, energy 

consumption, solid waste, and water and wastewater. 

The GPU was  founded on Guiding Principles which were developed  through community outreach and 

citizen volunteers who served on the City’s General Plan Advisory Committee. The Guiding Principles are 

statements of community values to guide growth, conservation, and enhancement which serve as the 

basis for underlying goals, policies, and actions.  

The adopted GPU includes the following Guiding Principle which serves as the basis for underlying goals, 

policies, and action items intended to promote environmental stewardship and to reduce the effects of 

climate change: 

Environmental  Resources.    Embrace  environmental  sustainability  as  a  foundation  for 
Capitola’s way of life.  Protect and enhance all natural resources – including the beaches, 
creeks,  ocean,  and  lagoon  –  that  contribute  to  Capitola’s  unique  identity  and  scenic 
beauty.  Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and prepare for the effects of global climate 
change, including increased flooding and coastal erosion caused by sea‐level rise. 

PROGRAMMATIC TIERING FOR FUTURE PROJECTS ADDRESSING GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
State CEQA Guidelines Section 15183.5(a) includes the following provisions for addressing GHGs: 

(a) Lead agencies may analyze and mitigate the significant effects of greenhouse gas emissions at a 
programmatic  level,  such as  in a general plan, a  long  range development plan, or a  separate 
plan to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.   Later project‐specific environmental documents may 
tier  from and/or  incorporate by  reference  that existing programmatic  review.   Project‐specific 
environmental documents may rely on an EIR containing a programmatic analysis of greenhouse 
gas emissions as provided in section 15162 (tiering), 15167 (staged EIRs), 15168 (program EIRs), 
15175‐15179.5 (Master EIRs), 15182 (EIRs prepared for specific plans), and 15183 (EIRs prepared 
for general plans, community plans, or zoning). 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

6 
 

This addendum is a programmatic document analyzing the CAP’s relationship to the previously approved 

General  Plan  Update  and  certified  General  Plan  Update  EIR.    It  can  facilitate  future  environmental 

analysis  of  projects  by  enabling  them  to  tier  from  and/or  incorporate  by  reference,  the  analysis 

presented in this Addendum. 

(b) Plans for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions.  Public agencies may choose to analyze and 
mitigate  significant  greenhouse  gas  emissions  in  a  plan  for  the  reduction  of  greenhouse  gas 
emissions or  similar document.   A plan  to  reduce greenhouse gas emissions may be used  in a 
cumulative impacts analysis as set forth below.  Pursuant to section 15064(h)(3) and 15130(d), a 
lead agency may determine  that a project’s  incremental contribution  to a cumulative effect  is 
not  cumulatively  considerable  if  the  project  complies  with  the  requirements  in  a  previously 
adopted plan or mitigation project under specified circumstances. 

1) Plan Elements.  A plan for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions should: 

A. Quantify  greenhouse  gas  emissions,  both  existing  and  projected  over  a  specified 
time period, resulting from activities within a defined geographic area; 

B. Establish  a  level,  based  on  substantial  evidence,  below which  the  contribution  to 
greenhouse  gas  emissions  from  activities  covered  by  the  plan  would  not  be 
cumulatively considerable; 

C. Identify and analyze the greenhouse gas emissions resulting from specific actions or 
categories of actions anticipated within the geographic area; 

D. Specify measures  or  a  group  of measures,  including  performance  standards,  that 
substantial  evidence  demonstrates,  if  implemented  on  a  project‐by‐project  basis, 
would collectively achieve the specified emissions level; 

E. Establish a mechanism to monitor the plan’s progress toward achieving the level and 
to require amendment if the plan is not achieving specified levels; 

F. Be adopted in a public process following environmental review. 

In addition to GHG‐reducing measures and actions, the CAP presents a GHG emissions inventory for the 

City  of  Capitola.    The GHG  inventory  calculates municipal  and  community‐wide  emissions  caused  by 

activities  in 2010,  including  transportation, energy  consumption, off‐road equipment, waste,  and  the 

conveyance and treatment of water and wastewater.  The inventory establishes a baseline against which 

future changes  in emissions can be measured and provides an understanding of major sources of GHG 

emissions.   It  is based on the GHG emissions  inventory contained  in the General Plan EIR, but  includes 

several revisions designed to focus GHG analysis on emissions sectors the City can reasonably influence.  

These revisions are mior in nature and constitute a refinement of information contained in the General 

Plan  Update  EIR,  and  therefore,  are  not  considered  new  information  or  substantial  importance  as 

identified in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162. 

The CAP demonstrates  the City’s efforts  to address  climate  change by  reducing  local GHG emissions, 

with  an  emphasis  on  improving  the  energy  efficiency  of  buildings,  renewable  energy,  water 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

7 
 

conservation, waste reduction, and preparing the City to adapt to a changing climate.  The CAP builds on 

General Plan Update policies and actions to reduce local GHG emissions and identifies how the City will 

achieve a GHG emissions reduction target of 4.9% below 2010 baseline levels by 2020. 

To achieve the community‐wide GHG emissions reduction target of 4.9% below 2010 baseline levels by 

2020, the City  intends to  implement a variety of GHG reduction measures addressing energy efficiency 

and  renewable  energy,  alternative  fuel  vehicles  and  equipment,  transportation,  solid  waste,  water 

conservation, and municipal operations. 

Following adoption, the CAP will be the City’s primary tool to  implement General Plan Update goals to 

reduce GHG emissions.  CAP actions will be integrated in City processes, trigger ordinance updates, and 

initiate  policy  and  procedure  revisions.    The  City’s  Community  Development  Department  will  lead 

implementation of the CAP in coordination with other City departments. 

The policies, programs, and actions  in  the proposed CAP would  support and  implement General Plan 
sustainability goals and policies.  Many of the proposed reduction measures are process and procedure 
oriented actions which will have no physical effect on the environment; however, other measures, such 
as  policies  to  promote  energy  efficiency  upgrades,  encourage  development  of  renewable  energy 
systems,  and  to  construct  pedestrian  and  bicycle  infrastructure  improvements  could  directly  or 
indirectly result in physical changes to the environment.  The proposed CAP does not include any actions 
which call for specific construction projects or which identify the location, size, or scope of any particular 
project.   Subsequent project and  site‐specific analysis of  implementing projects will be conducted, as 
necessary, as projects are initiated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

8 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW UPDATE CHECKLIST 

I.  AESTHETICS 

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial  importance" that cause one or more effects to aesthetic  resources 
including: scenic vistas; scenic resources including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, 
or historic buildings.; existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings; or day 
or nighttime views in the area? 

 

Response:  The certified General Plan EIR found impacts to aesthetics to be less than significant, 
and found no significant impacts to scenic vistas, scenic resources, visual quality, or light/glare.  
The proposed CAP is consistent with General Plan goals and policies and does not propose any 
new or altered physical changes to the environment which could be considered more severe 
than what was previously evaluated in the GP EIR. 

 
II.  AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTRY RESOURCES 

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial importance" that cause one or more effects to agricultural resources 
including: conflict with zoning for or result in rezoning of forest land; result in the loss of forest 
land or conversion of forest land to non‐forest use; convert Important Farmland and/or conflict 
with existing zoning for agricultural use or Williamson Act contract? 
 
Response:    There  are  no  forest  lands,  farmlands  of  state  or  local  importance,  or 
agriculturally zoned properties in the City of Capitola.  Consequently, the GP EIR concluded 
that  there  would  be  no  significant  impacts  to  agriculture  or  forestry  resources.    The 
proposed CAP would not  result  in any new  impacts not previously considered by  the GP 
EIR. 

 

III.  AIR QUALITY    

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial  importance" that cause one or more effects to air quality  including: 
conflicts with or obstruction of  implementation of  the Regional Air Quality Strategy  (RAQS) or 
applicable portions of the State Implementation Plan (SIP); violation of any air quality standard or 
substantial  contribution  to  an  existing  or  projected  air  quality  violation;  a  cumulatively 
considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non‐attainment 
under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard; exposure of sensitive receptors 
to substantial pollutant concentrations; or creation of objectionable odors affecting a substantial 
number of people? 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

9 
 

 
Response:    The General  Plan  EIR  found  that  implementation  of  the  Plan  could  result  in 
significant, unavoidable impacts to air quality through an increase in mobile and stationary 
source emissions and cumulative contributions to regional air quality standards.  However, 
there  are no  changes  to  the project, or  any new  information of  substantial  importance, 
which indicate that the proposed Climate Action Plan would exacerbate air quality impacts 
beyond the analysis and conclusions in the General Plan EIR.   Moreover, development and 
implementation of the proposed Climate Action Plan is identified in the General Plan EIR as 
a mitigation measures  intended  to  reduce  greenhouse  gases  and  other  emissions which 
adversely affect air quality.   

IV.  BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial importance" that cause one or more effects to biological  resources 
including: adverse effects on any  sensitive natural  community  (including  riparian habitat) or 
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in a local or regional plan, 
policy, or regulation, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service; adverse effects to federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean 
Water Act; interference with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with wildlife corridors, or  impeding the use of native wildlife nursery sites; and/or 
conflicts with the provisions of any adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Communities 
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional or state habitat conservation plan, policies 
or ordinances? 

 
Response:  The General Plan EIR found that implementation of the Plan would not result in 
any significant impacts to biological resources.  The proposed Climate Action Plan does not 
include any policies or actions which would involve new or altered physical changes to the 
environment which have the potential to adversely affect biological resources.  There have 
been no changes  in the project or  is there any new  information of substantial  importance 
to  indicate  that  the  proposed  Climate  Action  Plan would  result  in  new  or more  severe 
impacts to biological resources.   

V.  CULTURAL RESOURCES 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of  substantial  importance"  that  cause one or more effects  to  cultural  resources 
including:  causing a  change  in  the  significance  of  a  historical or archaeological  resource  as 
defined in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5; destroying a unique paleontological resource 
or  site  or  unique  geologic  feature;  and/or  disturbing  any  human  remains,  including  those 
interred outside of formal cemeteries? 
 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

10 
 

Response:    The General  Plan  EIR  found  that  implementation  of  the  Plan  could  result  in 
significant  impacts to cultural resources, but that mitigation measures could be applied to 
reduce  the  impact  to  a  less  than  significant  level.    There  have  been  no  changes  to  the 
project  or  new  information  of  substantial  importance which  indicate  that  the  proposed 
Climate Action Plan could result in new or more severe impacts to cultural resources. 
 
 

VI.  GEOLOGY AND SOILS 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial importance" that result in one or more effects from geology and soils 
including: exposure of people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects,  including 
the risk of loss, injury, or death involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, seismic‐related 
ground  failure,  including  liquefaction,  strong  seismic ground  shaking, or  landslides;  result  in 
substantial soil erosion or the  loss of topsoil; produce unstable geological conditions that will 
result  in adverse  impacts resulting from  landslides, lateral spreading, subsidence,  liquefaction 
or collapse; being located on expansive soil creating substantial risks to life or property; and/or 
having  soils  incapable  of  adequately  supporting  the  use  of  septic  tanks  or  alternative 
wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater? 
 
Response:    The General Plan  EIR  found  that  implementation of  the Plan would have no 
potential  to  result  in  significant  impacts  to/from geology and  soils.   There have been no 
changes  to  the project or new  information of  substantial  importance which  indicate  that 
the  proposed  Climate  Action  Plan  could  result  in  new  or more  severe  impacts  to/from 
geology and soils. 
 

VII.  GREENHOUSE GASES 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in 
the project, changes  in circumstances under which  the project  is undertaken and/or "new 
information of substantial importance" that show the project may generate greenhouse gas 
emissions,  either  directly  or  indirectly,  that  may  have  a  significant  impact  on  the 
environment; or would conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the 
purpose of reducing the emission of greenhouse gases? 
 
Response:   The General Plan  EIR  found  that  implementation of  the Plan would  result  in 
significant, unavoidable  impacts  to greenhouse gases and climate change.   Consequently, 
the General Plan EIR included mitigation to prepare and implement a Climate Action Plan to 
reduce  greenhouse  gas  emissions  and  reduce  the  affects  of  climate  change.    
Implementation of the proposed Climate Action Plan would fulfill this mitigation measure 
and would reduce impacts to greenhouse gases/climate change. 

 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

11 
 

VIII. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of  substantial  importance"  that  result  in one or more effects  from hazards and 
hazardous materials including: creation of a significant hazard to the public or the environment 
through  the  routine  transport,  storage,  use,  or  disposal  of  hazardous materials  or wastes; 
creation of a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset  and  accident  conditions  involving  the  release  of  hazardous  materials  into  the 
environment; production of hazardous emissions or handling hazardous or acutely hazardous 
materials,  substances,  or waste within  one‐quarter mile  of  an  existing  or  proposed  school; 
location on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5 creating a hazard to the public or the environment; location 
within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of 
a public airport or public use airport; within the vicinity of a private airstrip resulting in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the project area; impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with  an  adopted  emergency  response  plan  or  emergency  evacuation  plan;  and/or 
exposure of people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland 
fires,  including  where  wildlands  are  adjacent  to  urbanized  areas  or  where  residences  are 
intermixed with wildlands? 
 
Response:  The General Plan EIR found that implementation of the Plan would not result in 
any  significant  impacts  to/from  hazards  and  hazardous materials.    There  have  been  no 
changes to the project, or new  information of substantial  importance which  indicate that 
the proposed Climate Action Plan would result in a new or more severe impact to hazards 
and hazardous materials. 

X.  HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 
 

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial importance" that cause one or more effects to hydrology and water 
quality  including:  violation  of  any  waste  discharge  requirements;  an  increase  in  any  listed 
pollutant to an impaired water body listed  under section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act ; cause or 
contribute  to  an  exceedance  of  applicable  surface  or  groundwater  receiving  water  quality 
objectives  or  degradation  of  beneficial  uses;  substantially  deplete  groundwater  supplies  or 
interfere  substantially with  groundwater  recharge  such  that  there would  be  a  net  deficit  in 
aquifer volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table level; substantially alter the existing 
drainage  pattern  of  the  site  or  area  in  a manner which would  result  in  substantial  erosion, 
siltation or  flooding on‐ or off‐site; create or contribute  runoff water which would exceed  the 
capacity of  existing or planned  storm water drainage  systems;  provide  substantial additional 
sources of polluted runoff; place housing or other structures which would impede or redirect flood 
flows within a 100‐year flood hazard area as mapped on a  federal Flood Hazard Boundary or 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

12 
 

Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map, including City Floodplain Maps; 
expose  people  or  structures  to  a  significant  risk  of  loss,  injury  or  death  involving  flooding, 
including  flooding  as a  result  of  the  failure  of  a  levee  or dam; and/or  inundation  by  seiche, 
tsunami, or mudflow? 

 
Response:  The General Plan EIR found that the implementation of the Plan could result in 
significant unavoidable impacts to groundwater supply, but found no significant impacts to 
water quality, drainage, erosion, or flooding.  There have been no changes to the project or 
any new  information of substantial  importance which  indicate  that  the proposed Climate 
Action  Plan would  result  in  new  or more  severe  impacts  to  hydrology  or water  quality.  
Additionally,  the  proposed  Climate Action  Plan  include  several  policies  and  action  items 
which call  for  increased water efficiency which would reduce the volume of groundwater 
consumption. 

XI.  LAND USE AND PLANNING 
 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial importance" that cause one or more effects to land use and planning 
including: physically dividing an established  community; and/or conflicts with any  applicable 
land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project adopted for 
the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? 
 
Response:  The General Plan EIR found that implementation of the Plan would not result in 
any  significant  impacts  to  land  use  and  planning.    There  have  been  no  changes  in  the 
project or information of substantial importance which indicate that the proposed Climate 
Action Plan would result in any new or more severe impacts to land use and planning. 
 

XII.  MINERAL RESOURCES 
 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of  substantial  importance"  that  cause one or more effects  to mineral  resources 
including:  the  loss of availability of a known mineral  resource  that would be of value  to  the 
region and the residents of the state; and/or loss of locally‐important mineral resource recovery 
site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 
 
Response:   There are no mineral resource deposits  in the City of Capitola which could be 
reasonably  extracted  given  existing  non‐compatible  land  uses.   Accordingly,  the General 
Plan EIR found that implementation of the Plan would not result in any impacts to mineral 
resources.   There have been no changes to the project or new  information of substantial 
importance which  indicate  that  the proposed Climate Action Plan would  result  in new or 
more severe impacts to mineral resources. 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

13 
 

 

XIII.    NOISE 
 

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial importance" that result in one or more effects from noise  including: 
exposure of persons to or generation of noise  levels  in excess of standards established  in the 
local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies; exposure of 
persons  to or generation of  excessive groundborne  vibration or  groundborne noise  levels; a 
substantial  permanent  increase  in  ambient  noise  levels  in  the  project  vicinity  above  levels 
existing without the project; a substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels 
in the project vicinity above  levels existing without the project; for projects  located within an 
airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, or for projects within  the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the 
project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

 
Response:    The General  Plan  EIR  found  that  implementation  of  the  Plan  could  result  in 
significant impacts from noise resulting from construction of future projects authorized by 
the  Plan.    Consequently,  the  General  Plan  EIR  included mitigation measures  to  reduce 
impacts  from  noise  to  a  less  than  significant  level.    There  have  been  no  changes  in  the 
project  or  new  information  of  substantial  importance which  indicate  that  the  proposed 
Climate Action Plan would result in new or more severe impacts to/from noise. 
 

XIV.  POPULATION AND HOUSING 
 

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of  substantial  importance"  that  result  in one or more effects  to population and 
housing  including displacing substantial numbers of existing housing or people, necessitating 
the construction of replacement housing elsewhere? 

 
Response:  The General Plan EIR found that implementation of the Plan would not result in 
any  significant  impacts  to population  and housing.    There have been no  changes  to  the 
project or information of substantial importance which indicate that the proposed Climate 
Action Plan would result in any new or more severe impacts to population and housing. 
 

XV.  PUBLIC SERVICES 
 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of substantial importance" that result in one or more substantial adverse physical 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

14 
 

impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities or the 
need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant  environmental  impacts,  in  order  to maintain  acceptable  service  ratios,  response 
times or other performance  objectives for any of the following public services: fire protection, 
police protection, schools, parks, or other public facilities? 
 
Response:  The General Plan EIR found that implementation of the Plan would not result in 
any significant  impacts  to public services.   There have been no changes  to  the project or 
information of substantial importance which indicate that the proposed Climate Action Plan 
would result in any new or more severe impacts to public services. 
 

XVI.  RECREATION 
 

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information  of  substantial  importance"  that  result  in  an  increase  in  the  use  of  existing 
neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated; or that include recreational facilities 
or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse 
physical effect on the environment? 

 
Response:  The General Plan EIR found that implementation of the Plan would not result in 
any  significant  impacts  to  recreation.    There  have  been  no  changes  to  the  project  or 
information of substantial importance which indicate that the proposed Climate Action Plan 
would result in any new or more severe impacts to recreation. 
 

XVII.  TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC 
 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information of  substantial  importance"  that  cause effects  to  transportation/traffic  including: 
conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of effectiveness for 
the  performance  of  the  circulation  system,  taking  into  account  all modes  of  transportation 
including mass  transit and non‐motorized  travel and  relevant  components of  the  circulation 
system,  including but not  limited to  intersections, streets, highways and  freeways, pedestrian 
and  bicycle  paths,  and  mass  transit;  conflict  with  an  applicable  congestion  management 
program, including, but not limited to, level of service standards and travel demand measures, 
or other standards established by the county congestion management agency for designated 
roads or highways; cause a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic 
levels or a  change  in  location  that  results  in  substantial  safety  risks;  substantial  increase  in 
hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible 
uses  (e.g.,  farm equipment);  inadequate emergency access;    and/or a conflict with adopted 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

15 
 

policies, plans, or programs  supporting alternative  transportation  (e.g., bus  turnouts, bicycle 
racks)? 
 
Response:    The General  Plan  EIR  found  that  implementation  of  the  Plan  could  result  in 
significant,  unavoidable  impacts  to  transportation.    There  have  been  no  changes  to  the 
project or information of substantial importance which indicate that the proposed Climate 
Action Plan would result in any new or more severe impacts to transportation.  Moreover, 
the Climate Action Plan  includes several policies and action  items which call for  improved 
alternative  transportation options  to  reduce  vehicle miles  travelled, which  in‐turn would 
result in less traffic congestion. 

 

XVIII.  UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 
 

Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information  of  substantial  importance"  that  cause  effects  to  utilities  and  service  systems 
including: exceedance of wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water 
Quality  Control  Board;  require  or  result  in  the  construction  of  new  water  or  wastewater 
treatment  facilities, new storm water drainage  facilities or expansion of existing  facilities,  the 
construction of which could cause  significant environmental effects;  require new or expanded 
entitlements  to  water  supplies  or  new  water  resources  to  serve  the  project;  result  in  a 
determination by the wastewater treatment provider, which serves or may serve the project that 
it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand  in addition to the provider’s 
existing commitments; be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate 
the project’s  solid waste disposal needs; and/or noncompliance with  federal,  state, and  local 
statutes and regulations related to solid waste? 

 
Response:    The General  Plan  EIR  found  that  implementation  of  the  Plan  could  result  in 
significant  unavoidable  impacts  to  utilities  and  service  systems  due  to  the  potential  for 
groundwater  overdraft.    There  have  been  no  changes  to  the  project  or  information  of 
substantial  importance which  indicate that the proposed Climate Action Plan would result 
in  any  new  or more  severe  impacts  to  utilities  and  service  systems.    Additionally,  the 
proposed  Climate  Action  Plan  includes  several  policies  and  action  items  intended  to 
increase water efficiency thereby reducing groundwater consumption. 
 

XIX.  MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE: 
 
Since the previous EIR was certified or previous ND was adopted, are there any changes in the 
project,  changes  in  circumstances  under  which  the  project  is  undertaken  and/or  "new 
information  of  substantial  importance"  that  result  in  any mandatory  finding of  significance 
listed below? 

 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF CAPITOLA GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR – CLIMATE ACTION PLAN 

16 
 

Does the project degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of 
a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self‐ sustaining 
levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the 
range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major 
periods of California history or prehistory? 

 
Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? 
(“Cumulatively  considerable”  means  that  the  incremental  effects  of  a  project  are 
considerable when  viewed  in  connection with  the effects of past projects,  the  effects of 
other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)? 

 
Does  the project have environmental effects, which will  cause  substantial adverse 
effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

 

Response:    There  have  been  no  changes  to  the  project  or  any  new  information  of 
substantial  importance which  indicate that the proposed Climate Action Plan would result 
in any new or more  severe  impacts  to  the quality of  the environment,  including adverse 
impacts  to  habitat  for  sensitive  species,  cumulative  environmental  impacts,  or  adverse 
direct or cumulative effects on human beings. 

 

 

 

 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
d

en
d

u
m

 t
o

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n

 U
p

d
at

e 
E

IR
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



Serving Monterey, San Benito, and Santa Cruz Counties 24580 Silver Cloud Court
Monterey, CA 93940

PHONE: (831) 647-9411 • FAX: (831) 647-8501

July 17, 2015

City of Capitola
Richard Grunow, Community Development Director
420 Capitola Avenue Capitola, CA 95010 
rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us

RE: City of Capitola Climate Action Plan

Dear Mr. Grunow,

The Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District (Air District) commends the City of Capitola for 
addressing community-wide greenhouse emissions by preparing a Climate Action Plan. The Air District 
reviewed the plan and has the following comments.

• The Air District recommends developing a funding plan for implementing measures in the 

Climate Action Plan. The language in the plan states for example, “This Climate Action 

Plan…will ensure that Capitola is eligible for transportation and land use grant funding.” 

without stating what potential sources of funding may be available. It is not clear what 

types of transportation or land use grant funding the City envisions is available. The City 

could consider the approach used by the City of Watsonville which developed a Carbon 

Fund Ordinance to collect fees to fund projects supporting the Climate Action Plan.

RESPONSE:   The City of Capitola appreciates the Air District’s comment regarding funding 

for implementing the proposed Climate Action Plan greenhouse gas (GHG) 

reduction measures.  The City has funding available through its Capital 

Improvement Program budget, Green Building Fund, and General Fund budgets 

to implement proposed near- and mid-term GHG reduction measures.  Should 

additional funding become necessary, the City will consider alternative funding 

sources.

• The Air District recommends updating the GHG emission calculations from transportation 

sources reported in Table 3-1. The footnote states the emissions were based on EMFAC2007 

which is an outdated emission factor model. To provide consistency with AMBAG’s 

Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS), the emissions should be updated based on 

EMFAC2011 which was the model used for the SCS.

RESPONSE:  The City of Capitola’s Climate Action Plan made use of a 2010 Baseline Community-wide 

GHG Inventory prepared for the City by AMBAG, which used emission factors for the 

transportation sector provided by the EMFAC2007 model as noted in the Climate Action 

Plan and included Appendices. The Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District has 

suggested that the City update these emission factors to those provided by the 

EMFAC2011 model, to be consistent with AMBAG’s 2014 Sustainable Communities 

Strategy (SCS).

8.C.2

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
B

ay
 U

n
if

ie
d

 A
ir

 P
o

llu
ti

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 S

ta
ff

 R
es

p
o

n
se

s 
 (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



Based on a preliminary analysis by the City’s technical consultants, using the EMFAC2011 

emission factors instead of the EMFAC2007 emissions factors would most likely result in 

only a nominal change to the City’s emission totals. Also, due to the fact that the resulting 

Transportation and Mobile Source emissions are referenced in many narrative sections, 

tables and figures throughout the Climate Action Plan, implementing this suggested 

change would require significant labor necessary to update not only the underlying 

calculations and associated outputs but also all of related narrative content, tables, 

figures, footnotes and appendices.

While updating the Inventory (and all related content) to use the emission factors 

provided by the EMFAC2011 model may better align Capitola’s Climate Action Plan 

greenhouse gas calculations with those included in AMBAG’s 2014 SCS, the City is 

confident that it would have little or no significant impact on the City’s estimated 

emission totals nor the City’s ability to meet or exceed the stated emission targets. 

Therefore, the City has determined that making this change at this time would not be a 

cost-effective or appropriate use of funds. The City will, however, commit to updating the 

Transportation and Mobile Source emission factors to be consistent with AMBAG’s SCS 

during the first scheduled Climate Action Plan review and revision period.

• The Air District recommends revising the language in measure VMT-5 in the following ways.

• Rather than stating “Provide incentives, such as, giving priority in plan review…”, 

make a commitment to put this language in a written document, such as a 

building/zoning ordinance. This approach will make it clear to developers what 

actions the City will prioritize when addressing electric vehicle infrastructure.

RESPONSE:   The City will revise this measure to include incentives for projects which 

include EV infrastructure in its revised Green Building Program.

o Add language to existing City zoning/building ordinances to require developers of 

new structures to install electric vehicle charging stations, or at a minimum, stub-out 

for 220/240 Volt connections, to allow for later installation of charging stations.

RESPONSE:   The City will add a measure to adopt a “solar ready ordinance” to require new 

construction to facilitate future solar and EV charging installations.

• There are action items listed in measure VMT-7 that are more appropriate to support 

VMT-5 or should be referenced in VMT-5. For example, the action, Revise local 

requirements relating to provision of parking and designations of reserved parking 

for electric and rideshare vehicles.  This action is more supportive of VMT- 1 and 

VMT-5. The City must ensure that actions that support more than one measure are 

only counted towards reductions from one measure to avoid double counting 

8.C.2

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
B

ay
 U

n
if

ie
d

 A
ir

 P
o

llu
ti

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 S

ta
ff

 R
es

p
o

n
se

s 
 (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



emission reductions.

RESPONSE:   The City will move the referenced submeasure from VMT-5 to VMT-7.  The City 

agrees that measures cannot be double counted toward its reduction projections.

• The Air District recommends revising the assumption in measure VMT-6 that the rail service begins

in 2020. This is not consistent with documents prepared by the Santa Cruz County Regional 

Transportation Commission. Specifically, the draft Feasibility Study has the time period for potential

implementation of service as 2025 (http://www.sccrtc.org/wp-

content/uploads/2014/05/ExecutiveSummary-DRAFT-RailStudy-2015May.pdf).

RESPONSE:   The City used the 2020 date based on input from the Santa Cruz Regional 

Transportation Commission prior to release of the draft passenger rail feasibility 

study.  By using a 2020 start date, the City recognizes that GHG reduction 

projections may be overstated by approximately 1,000 metric tons; however, this 

represents a fraction of the City’s overall reduction projection and would not 

affect the City’s ability to comply with AB32 or the 2020 reduction target.  

Accordingly, the City will update this information when it completes its first 5-year 

Climate Action Plan update to better reflect the actual start date, as applicable, of 

the proposed passenger rail.

Please let me know if you have questions, I can be reached at (831) 647-9411 or aclymo@mbuapcd.org. Best 

Regards,

Amy Clymo
Supervising Air Quality Planner

8.C.2

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
B

ay
 U

n
if

ie
d

 A
ir

 P
o

llu
ti

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 S

ta
ff

 R
es

p
o

n
se

s 
 (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



Richard A. Stedman, Air Pollution Control Officer

8.C.2

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

te
re

y 
B

ay
 U

n
if

ie
d

 A
ir

 P
o

llu
ti

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 S

ta
ff

 R
es

p
o

n
se

s 
 (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



 

1 
 

 
 
 
The proposed Climate Action Plan (CAP) will require City investment to implement, including but not 
limited to: capital improvement funds to construct new and enhanced bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure, 
funding for education and awareness efforts, staff resources to administer various GHG reduction initiatives, 
and funding for incentive programs.  The City has some current funding available through general fund 
allocations to administer CAP programs and Green Building funds which can be used to finance education, 
outreach, incentives, and climate action planning and water conservation initiatives. 
 
Implementation of the CAP will be a shared responsibility among Capitola’s elected and appointed officials, 
residents, business owners, non-profits, and community groups.  City staff, under direction from the City 
Council and Planning Commission, will be responsible for implementing measures aimed at reducing 
municipal emission sources, creating incentives, and conducting education and awareness initiatives.  City 
staff will coordinate efforts with the Commission on the Environment and will seek their support to 
implement measures as appropriate. 
 
Due to the long-term nature of the CAP, funding for implementation is expected to span several budget 
cycles.  It is anticipated that higher cost action items, such as those requiring capital improvement funds, will 
be incrementally financed and implemented based on funding availability and City priorities.  Because 
implementation of the CAP is projected to significantly exceed the State’s near-term GHG reduction 
requirements, the City is not required to implement each and every measure and has flexibility to select from 
a menu of action items presented in the CAP to achieve its reduction targets.  
  
Action items which are considered cost-effective and provide substantial GHG reduction potential without 
significant City investment will be implemented in the near-term.  For example, measures intended to educate 
and increase public awareness, streamline City processes, and promote City sponsored and third-party green 
energy programs will be prioritized. 
 
A comprehensive matrix of proposed GHG reduction measures with implementation strategies and 
approximate timelines is attached to this document.  Reduction measures which have been completed or are 
in progress as of 2015 are further described below. 
 
REDUCTION MEASURES COMPLETED OR IN-PROGRESS 
Some of the GHG reduction measures identified in the CAP are programs that have been completed or are 
already underway.  If such a program began or expanded its implementation after 2010 (the baseline 
inventory year), then the program is included in this chapter so that the City can “take credit” for it in 
calculating emissions reductions. 
 
The following measures have been completed, are in-progress, or are expected to be initiated in the near 
future.  Each measure is directly or indirectly referenced in the CAP as sub-measures and is accounted for in 
the emission reduction projections. 

CLIMATE ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY 

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



 

2 
 

 
Measures Completed 
• Adopted a Green Energy Incentive Program which provides over-the-counter permitting and waives all 

City permit fees for private solar installations, solar hot water heaters, and electric vehicle charging 
stations; 

• Adopted a Solar Streamlining Ordinance to standardize and simplify permitting procedures for residential 
rooftop solar systems; 

• Enrolled Capitola in the Solar Roadmap program which offers participating agencies with free services to 
promote solar energy in their community;   

• Enrolled in the Home Energy Renovation Opportunity (HERO) program.  HERO is a Property 
Assessed Clean Energy Program (PACE) which enables property owners to finance renewable energy, 
water efficiency improvements, and electric vehicle charging systems through annual property 
assessments;   

• Initiated a pilot program to provide discounted rain barrels to Capitola residents; 
• Adopted an In-Lieu Parking Fee Program to allow specified projects to purchase parking outside of, but 

within walking distance of the central Village; 
• Committed to removing areas of irrigated lawn in City parks; 
• Amended the Green Building Fund to allow funds to be used for climate action planning and water 

efficiency activities; 
• Secured a CDBG grant to reinstate its Housing Rehabilitation Program which offers funding assistance 

to low income households to provide energy efficiency improvements; 
• Achieved and maintained a Green business certification; 
• Added hybrid and electric vehicles to its municipal fleet; 
• Ongoing participation in Santa Cruz County Climate Action Compact; 
• Ongoing participation in the Monterey Bay Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) Project Development 

Advisory Committee; 
• Continued enforcement of the City’s plastic bag ban; 
• Ongoing participation in regional transportation and planning efforts including: AMBAG, RTC, 

Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic Trail, Santa Cruz County Passenger Rail study, Sustainable Communities 
Strategy; 

• Continued investments in pedestrian and bicycle improvement projects through its annual CIP allocation; 
• Ongoing car free events in the Village; 
• Continued participation in the Santa Cruz County Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Plan 

(CEDS) to retain and attract high paying jobs to reduce long-distance commutes; 
• Continued support of water efficiency requirements of local water districts; 
• Continued mandatory recycling and green waste collection requirements. 
 
Measures In-Progress 
• As part of the Solar Roadmap program, staff is currently investigating participation in the SEED Fund 

program which provides public agencies with an opportunity to install solar projects at reduced costs 
through collaborative procurement and by deferring upfront costs through power purchase agreements;   

• Staff is currently drafting amended Green Building Guidelines based on proposed action items in the 
draft CAP.  The Guidelines will be presented for City Council consideration shortly after the CAP is 
adopted;   

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



 

3 
 

• Staff has begun investigating potential sites for a community garden or “food forest” and has identified 
potential private partners to implement a project;  

• Staff has begun outlining the design and content for a “sustainability” page on its website to serve as a 
repository for information about climate action planning, water and energy conservation, green building 
practices, available programs and incentives, and links to local organizations, events, and resources;   

• Staff is preparing a Solar Ready Ordinance for City Council consideration to require new and substantial 
remodel projects to pre-install wiring for solar systems; 

• Staff has begun developing new and updated applications, forms, inspection checklists, and informational 
handouts related to green energy projects (solar, electric vehicle charging stations, grey water systems, 
etc).  All materials will be posted on the City website; 

• The City is currently reviewing parking standards as part of the Zoning Code update; 
• The City is collaborating with the Soquel Union School District to complete a Safe Routes to Schools 

study; 
• The City is actively working with GreenWaste and regional partners to reduce the volume of waste going 

to landfills. 
 
Education and Awareness 
An overarching theme of the CAP is to educate and heighten the community’s awareness of climate change 
with the goal of affecting positive behavioral changes. Education and awareness will be a critical component 
of successful CAP implementation and will require an ongoing commitment from the City.  Consequently, 
staff intends to develop and implement a comprehensive education and awareness program in 2016-2017 
which may include the following components: 
 
• Development of a sustainability page on the City website; 
• Providing information via City newsletters and the City scroll; 
• Creation of promotional materials, brochures, etc. to publicize how residents and businesses can reduce 

their carbon footprint, the benefits of sustainable practices, available financing resources, etc; 
• Dissemination of promotional/educational materials to regular City outlets (City Hall, library, community 

center) as well as direct contacts with multi-family property owners, business owners, chamber of 
commerce, and hospitality operators; 

• Partnerships with other local and regional agency outreach efforts including the Climate Action Compact 
(City of Santa Cruz, County of Santa Cruz, City of Watsonville, UCSC), Soquel Creek and Santa Cruz 
Water Districts, and AMBAG efforts; 

• Hosting and promoting sustainability events to highlight options to improve energy efficiency, water 
conservation, waste reduction, etc.  Invite guest speakers with expertise in sustainable practices, PG&E, 
GreenWaste, Soquel Creek and Santa Cruz Water Districts, contractors, lenders, local leaders, non-profit 
groups, etc. 

• Promoting existing Capitola Green Businesses and encouraging new business participation; 
• Development of a sustainability “infomercial” for broadcast on public access television; 
• Participation in programs such as Solar Roadmap, HERO, Energy Sage, etc. 
 
CAP Monitoring and Reporting 
Successful implementation of the CAP will require the City to monitor its progress toward reducing GHG 
emissions and the effectiveness of various GHG reduction measures.  Accordingly, staff will review and 
update the CAP at minimum five year intervals.  Staff will rely on the resources provided by the International 

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



 

4 
 

Council for Local Environmental Initiatives (ICLEI) Statewide Energy Efficiency Collaborative (SEEC).  
ICLEI/SEEC provides a free software platform, called ClearPath, which is available to local agencies to track 
implementation of CAP measures, the resulting energy savings, emissions reductions and other indicators.  
Monitoring records connect with measures in the CAP, allowing a comparison of actual emissions reductions 
over time with projected reductions.  Reports also allow comparison of emissions by sector across multiple 
inventories.  City staff will provide reports to the Commission on the Environment, Planning Commission, 
and City Council following each update and will provide information to the public via the City website. 
 

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

Develop and implement local incentives for car sharing

Draft and implement business and commuter incentives.  Identify potential incentive 
funding sources, including grants, green building funds, or other sources.  Develop 
promotional materials, post to website, publicize through education and awareness 
efforts.  Anticipated implementation: 2016-2019, depending on funding availability.

Continue to support the Rideshare Week Program.  As part of this effort, consider a resident survey of commuters 
to identify potential carpool companions. Promote the Rideshare Week Program sponsored by AMBAG and Santa Cruz RTC on 

City website sustainability page.  Anticipated implementation: 2016-2017 and ongoing.

Develop a Transportation Demand Management Plan (TDM) for City and local employees. A TDM Program 
would offer incentives to encourage the use of alternative modes of transportation by City and local employees 
(e.g. in the Village, Bay Ave, and 41st Ave areas). Free bus passes, reimbursement for not using a parking space, 
emergency cab services, etc. will help reduce parking demand and reduce greenhouse gas emissions through 
reduced commuter traffic.

Develop TDM plan and identify potential incentive funding sources, including grants, 
green building funds, or other sources.  Anticipated implementation:  2017-2019.

Work with METRO to explore additional opportunities for discount bus ticket programs such as the Eco Pass 
program offered in Santa Clara County.

Discuss opportunities with METRO staff/METRO board.  Anticipated implementation:  
2016-2019, depending on availability and funding.

Work with regional agencies to establish baseline values for vehicle trip makeup (origin/destination) for 
residents, businesses, and municipalities, and create baseline transportation numbers for in-town trips.

Continue to participate in regional transporation planning efforts through AMBAG, 
RTC, etc.  Anticipated implementation:  Present and ongoing.

Continue to work with county and regional transportation leaders to explore options for additional funding 
sources on regional level to support multi-modal transportation infrastructure and expanded transportation 
alternatives such a bus rapid transit (BRT).

Continue to participate in regional transporation planning efforts through AMBAG, 
RTC, etc. and actively seek grant opportunities.  Anticipated implementation:  Present 
and ongoing.

� Coordinate with the University of California Santa Cruz and Cabrillo Community College to evaluate 
opportunities to increase student bus ridership.

Engage UCSC and Cabillo administrators to identify opportunities for increased student 
bus ridership.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2019

Provide periodic status reports on 2011 Bicycle Transportation Plan implementation to the City Council. Updatess the Bicycle Tranporation Plan and provide regular reports to the City Council.  
Anticipated implementation:  2017-2019

Complete a Quality Index assessment for Bicycle routes throughout the City and set targets to upgrade sections 
of key corridors to meet "Reasonable" or "Ideal" condition levels by 2020.

Complete a quality index assessment during the next update to the Bicycle Transporation 
Plan.  Identify funding to complete targeted improvements.  Anticipated implementation:  
Update Plan in 2017-2019, improve key bicycle segments as funding becomes available.

Continue to implement the proposed projects defined in the 2011 Bicycle Transportation Plan to close gaps in 
the bicycle networks and connect major destinations and activity centers by 2020.

Continue to include bicycle facility improvement projects in the City's CIP list.  
Anticipated implementation:  2015-ongoing.

Work with the County to design safe bike infrastructure across jurisdictional boundaries
Coordinate with the County to comprehensively plan facility improvements which cross 
jurisdictional boundaries during bicycle plan update.  Anticipated implementation:  2017-
2019

Install bike route signs including directions and mileage indicators to common destinations.
Identify where signage is needed in next bicycle plan update.  Identify funding to 
implement.  Anticipated implementation:  bicycle plan update in 2017-2019, sign 
installation as funding becomes available.

Install high-quality bicycle-parking facilities in the Village in centralized, safe, and secure areas.
Identify where bicycle parking facilities are needed in next bicycle plan update.  Identify 
funding to implement.  Anticipated implementation:  bicycle plan update in 2017-2019, 
facility installation as funding becomes available.

VMT-3 Increase Bicycle 
Ridership

Phase I:  2015-
2024; Phase II:  

2025-2035 

Ride Sharing and Car 
SharingVMT-1 Ongoing

Increase Bus 
RidershipVMT-2 Ongoing

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

Require bicycle parking facilities and on-site showers in major non-residential development and redevelopment 
projects. Major development projects include buildings that would accommodate more than 50 employees, 
whether in a single business or multiple tenants; major redevelopment project include projects that change 50 
percent or more of the square footage or wall space.

Requirement to be added in updated zoning code.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

Encourage businesses to provide bikes, electric bikes, and scooters for employees for lunch time and work time 
errands. Engage local businesses to promote alternative transporation options through education 

and awareness efforts.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 and ongoing.

Encourage and support non-profit or volunteer organizations in creating a bicycle-sharing program. Identify potential non-profit partners and funding sources.  Engage non-profits during 
education and awareness efforts.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 and ongoing.

Work with community groups to encourage pedestrian and bike events.
Continue to support bike and walking events and activities. Engage community groups 
during education and awareness efforts.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 and 
ongoing.

Allow car-free weekends or special events within the Village if it reduces single occupancy vehicle driving and is 
financially feasible.

Continue to consider and support Village events which close the Esplanade to vehicular 
traffic.  Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing.

Continue to investigate and modify parking requirements and parking fees for new development. Parking standards will be reviewed during the Zoning Code update process.  Continue to 
investigate and support alternative parking programs, such as beach shuttle service, in-lieu 
parking fees, valet services, etc.  Anticipated implementation:  2016.

Consider implementing a "Park Once" campaign for Capitola Village which includes education, outreach, and 
signage, as appropriate.

Investigate if a park once campaign would be effective and desireable for Capitola. 
Anticipated implementation:  2017-2019

Provide incentives, such as giving priority in plan review, processing, and field inspection services, for new and 
existing commercial and residential projects that provide parking spaces reserved for electric vehicles and have a 
charging connection.

Expand green energy incentive program to include incentives for projects which 
incorporate EV charging stations.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-ongoing.

Continue to work with the Monterey Bay Electrical Vehicle Alliance and others to assess needs and develop 
future municipal and private charging infrastructure to increase public access to EV charging stations.

Participate in efforts led by Monterey Bay Electrical Vehicle Alliance to increase 
availability of EV charging stations.  Anticipated implementation:  Needs assessment in 
2017-2019; installation of infrastructure as funding becomes available.

Consider providing free parking spaces for electric vehicles in the Village and Beach parking lots. Present to City Council in conjunction with expanded green energy incentive program.  
Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017

VMT-6 Support Rail as a 
Commute Option

Work with local partners and regional transportation planning groups to support the use of the Santa Cruz 
Branch Line corridor as a supplemental regional commute option.

2020-2034, subject 
to change; 
potentially 
ongoing

Continue to participate in the RTC led efforts to study the feasibility of passenger rail.  
Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing.

Continue to implement intelligent transportation systems, roundabouts, signal timing and synchronization, and 
other efficiency methods that decrease idling time and congestion.

Consider roundabouts at key City intersections, such as Bay Ave/Capitola Ave; monitor 
and calibrate traffic signals, and implement measures to improve traffic flow.  Anticipated 
implementation:  traffic signal monitoring/calibration present and ongoing; construction 
of improvements as funding becomes available.

Encourage the Metro Center to become a multi-modal facility with amenities and integration with a possible 
future shuttle system in Capitola.

Retain funding set aside to relocate the Mall transit center.  If/when relocated, encourage 
bicycle facilities and consider the possibility of providing shuttle services to/from the 
Village.  Anticipated implementation:  unknown, depends on mall owner's cooperation.

Support Local 
Uptake of Electric 
Vehicles

VMT-5
2020-2034; 
potentially 
ongoing

Support 
Implementation of 
the Regional 
Transportation Plan 
and Sustainable 
Communities 
Strategy

VMT-7 2016-2035; 
potentially 
ongoing

     
    

 

Educate and Engage 
the Public About 
Alternative 
Transportation 
Modes

VMT-4 2018-2024

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

Support local and regional ride sharing programs.
Promote the Rideshare Week Program sponsored by AMBAG and Santa Cruz RTC on 
City website sustainability page and through education and awareness efforts.  Anticipated 
implementation: 2016-2017 and ongoing.

Encourage local employers to develop tools and methods to decrease emissions from work commutes, including 
work at home, ride-sharing, and vanpools.

Engage local businesses to promote alternative transporation options through education 
and awareness efforts. Promote alternative transporation options on City sustainability 
website.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2018.

Continue to work with school districts and solicit input from elementary, middle, and high school parents to 
identify opportunities to decrease emissions from school commutes:

Implement safe routes to schools plan.  Conduct education and outreach with local 
schools, including administrators, educators, parents, and students.  Anticipated 
implementation 2016-2018.

� Support school busing, carpooling, biking, and walking options as alternatives to individual parent pick-up and 
drop-off.

Implement safe routes to schools plan.  Conduct education and outreach with local 
schools, including administrators, educators, parents, and students.  Anticipated 
implementation 2016-2018.

� Support development of more "safe routes to school" for students to walk and ride to school and home, and 
continue to explore additional funding for projects that enhance bike and walk to school opportunities.

Implement safe routes to schools plan.  Conduct education and outreach with local 
schools, including administrators, educators, parents, and students.  Anticipated 
implementation:  education and awareness efforts 2016-2017; construction of 
improvements as funding becomes available.

Evaluate opportunities for new residential subdivisions and major commercial redevelopment projects to 
include a pedestrian or bicycle through-connection in any new cul-de-sacs.

Add standard in Zoning Code update.  Review discretionary project applications to 
identify opportunities for improved connectivity.  Anticipated implementation:  Zoning 
Code update in 2016.

Promote the ability of all residents to safely walk and bicycle to public parks. Identify improvements needed to 
address any deficiencies and incorporate these improvements into the City's CIP.

Review bicycle access to public parks during bicycle plan update.  Examine pedestrian 
access to parks, identify needed improvements, and include in City's CIP.  Anticipated 
implemtation:  bicycle plan in 2017-2019; construction of improvements as funding 
becomes available.

Maintain an environment within the Village and Capitola Mall that prioritizes the safety and convenience of 
pedestrians and bicyclists.

Continue to promote and enhance pedestrian and bicycle safety and facilities.  Anticipated 
implementation: present and ongoing.

Consider adopting a Transportation Impact Fee (TIF) Program to mitigate for transportation impacts resulting 
from development projects. Allocate portions of the TIF budget to bicycle and pedestrian facility projects.

Evaluate whether a TIF program is appropriate for Capitola.  If so, develop ordinance, 
establish fees, create TIF fund, and identify transportation improvement projects.  
Anticipated implementation:  2018-2020

Investigate and consider implementing additional parking strategies, including: developing a parking structure 
within walking distance of the Village, expansion of the in-lieu parking fee program, implementation of a 
parking management program, formation of a parking assessment district, and using "smart pricing" for metered 
parking spaces.

Continue to explore opportunities to develop a parking structure in Beach and Village 
Parking Lot #1.  Consider expanding the in-lieu parking fee program, creating a Village 
parking district, and modifying meter prices to encourage visitors to use parking spaces 
outside of the central Village.  Anticipated implementation:  consideration of parking 
alternatives present and ongoing.  Construction of improvements and program 
implementation as funding becomes available.

Require new major non-residential development to include designated or preferred parking for vanpools, 
carpools, and electric vehicles. Include standard in updated Zoning Code.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

� Encourage land use intensity with connectivity near retail, employment, and transit centers. Consider allowing bonus FAR as provided in the General Plan for qualifying projects on 
41st Avenue.  Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing

� Support well-designed infill development on vacant and underutilized sites that enhances Capitola's quality of 
life.

Continue to require design review for infill projects to promote design excellence.  
Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing.

� Encourage development of affordable housing, retail services and employment in areas of Capitola best served 
by current or expanded alternative transportation options.

Continue to identify grant and other funding opportunities for affordable housing; 
continue to encourage retail businesses in the City's commercial areas.  Anticipated 
implementation:  present and ongoing.

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

� Encourage appropriate mixed-use development in the Mixed-Use and Commercial zoning districts. Include standards which encourage mixed-use developments in the updated zoning code.  
Anticipated implementation:  2016

� Amend the Zoning Code to encourage new development or significant redevelopment in the Village Mixed-Use 
zoning district to be vertical mixed-use (i.e., residential or office above ground-floor retail).

Include standards which encourage mixed-use developments in the updated zoning code.  
Anticipated implementation:  2016

� Amend the Zoning Code and other City regulations as needed to encourage and/or remove barriers to 
establishing "co-working" collaborative work spaces in Capitola.

Define co-working uses in the updated zoning code, identify appropriate zone, and set 
reasonable development standards.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

� Evaluate secondary dwelling unit standards in the Zoning Code and revise as appropriate to encourage 
additional secondary dwelling units development.

Development standards for 2nd units will be considered as part of the zoning code 
update.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

� Amend the Zoning Code to encourage new major developments to provide for safe and convenient pedestrian 
and bicycle connections between residential and commercial areas provided it does not result in spillover 
parking in adjacent residential neighborhoods.

Add standards in Zoning Code update.  Review discretionary project applications to 
identify opportunities for improved connectivity.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-
ongoing

� Revise development standards to promote a pedestrian-oriented environment in non-residential areas through 
reduced setbacks, principal entries that face a public street, and window and storefront requirements along the 
ground floor.

Standards to be revised during zoning code update.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

� Consider a telecommuting program for City employees.
Consider program and implement if it can be done without impacting service delivery to 
residents and customers.  Anticipated implementation:  2017-2019 and potentially 
ongoing

Implement Economic Development policies that help support local shopping and jobs, and reduce “over the 
hill” trips:

Continue to participate in CEDS and other regional economic efforts.  Anticipated 
implementation:  present and ongoing

� Evaluate local sales leakage and work with Santa Cruz County and other jurisdictions to provide necessary 
services within the county to reduce "over the hill" shopping.

Continue to participate in CEDS and other regional economic efforts. Anticipated 
implementation:  present and ongoing

� Support efforts to attract resident-serving commercial uses along 41st Avenue south of Capitola Road. Encourage resident serving commercial uses in Community Commercial designations.  
Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing

� Identify locations in the City's commercial districts where ground-floor commercial uses are necessary to 
maintain a concentrated and functional business district, and amend the Zoning Code to require ground-floor 
commercial uses in these locations.

Develop standards to promote retail and active commercial uses in the updated zoning 
code.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

� Support regional efforts to recruit and retain businesses that provide high-wage jobs. Continue to participate in CEDS and other regional economic efforts.  Anticipated 
implementation:  present and ongoing

� Support regional efforts to retain and create jobs within Santa Cruz County to reduce the number of "over the 
hill" commute trips.

Continue to participate in CEDS and other regional economic efforts.  Anticipated 
implementation:  present and ongoing

� Actively participate in and be aware of the activities of regional workforce development organizations, such as 
the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Committee, Workforce Investment Board, and the Santa 
Cruz County Business Council, and publicize these efforts locally through the City's website and brochures.

Continue to participate in CEDS and other regional economic efforts.  Provide info, 
links, and content on City website.  Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing

� Build on existing outreach and regular events to inform business owners and entrepreneurs of available 
workforce development resources.

Continue to participate in CEDS, the chamber of commerce, and other regional and local 
economic efforts.  Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing

� Support regional small business assistance programs, particularly for those with an environmental focus, and 
publicize the availability of this assistance via local partners, the City's website, and other economic development 
outlets. Coordinate and promote green building programs and pursue grant funding applications.

Work with local and regional partners to promote small business programs.  Include info, 
links, and content about green businesses and sustainability programs on City 
sustainability webpage.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 and ongoing

� Pursue and support collaborations with local business initiatives/attractions to draw customers and visitors. Continue to participate in CEDS, the chamber of commerce, and other regional and local 
economic efforts.  Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

� In collaboration with the Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce and the Capitola Village Business 
Improvement Area, conduct regular surveys of merchants to assess the needs and issues of locally-owned and 
independent businesses.

Work with Chamber and BIA to identify how the City can better assist locally-owned and 
independent businesses.  Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing

Partner with the City's Commission on the Environment to develop implementation plans for actions contained 
in the Capitola Green Economy - Job Creation and a Sustainable Future report which advance CAP goals and present to 
the City Council for consideration.

Work with the COE to identify actions, develop implementation plan(s), and present to 
City Council.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2018

Require residential projects of six units or more to participate in the California Energy Commission's New Solar 
Homes Partnership, which provides rebates to developers of six units or more who offer solar power in 50% of 
new units and is a component of the California Solar Initiative, or a similar program with solar power 
requirements equal to or greater than those of the California Energy Commission's New Solar Homes 
Partnership.

Standards to be included in updated zoning code and/or green building guidelines. 
Anticipated implementation:  2016

Amend the Zoning Code to promote solar and wind access in new and existing development. Standards to be included in updated zoning code. Anticipated implementation:  2016

Amend the Tree Protection Ordinance to allow removal of non-heritage trees necessary to provide solar access 
in new and existing development. Amend the tree ordinance accordingly.  Anticipated implementation:  2018-2020

Amend the Zoning Code to remove regulatory barriers to the establishment of on-site energy generation. Standards to be included in updated zoning code.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

Amend the Green Building Ordinance to require all new buildings be constructed to allow for easy, cost-
effective installation of future solar energy systems, where feasible. "Solar ready" features should include: proper 
solar orientation (i.e. south-facing roof area sloped at 20° to 55° from the horizontal); clear access on the south 
sloped roof (i.e. no chimneys, heating vents, or plumbing vents); electrical conduit installed for solar electric 
system wiring; plumbing installed for solar hot water systems; and space provided for a solar hot water storage 
tank.

Standards to be included in the amended green buidling ordinance/guidelines.  
Anticipated implementation:  2016

Amend the Zoning Code to require new or major rehabilitations of commercial, office, or industrial 
development to incorporate solar or other renewable energy generation to provide 15% or more of the project's 
energy needs.

Standards to be included in updated zoning code.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

Complete a renewable energy feasibility study of City buildings and facilities.
Evaluate opportunities for renewable energy for municipal facilities through the SEED 
program or other means.  Anticipated implementation:  SEED program evaluation 2015-
2016; feasibility study in 2017-2019

Incorporate the use of solar panels and solar hot water heaters in future City facilities. Include solar in new City facilities when financially and logistically feasible.  Anticipated 
implementation:  TBD as facilities are updated and as funding becomes available

Encourage PG&E to develop and distribute energy use report cards for their residential customers in Capitola. Coordinate with PG&E to provide residential report cards. Anticipated implementation:  
2016-2017

Provide incentives, such as rebates offered by the "Bright Lights" program, for multi-family housing buildings to 
retrofit inefficient lighting fixture with new, more efficient fixtures.

Work with AMBAG to promote program in Capitola.  Conduct education and awareness 
with multi-family owners/managers.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 and 
ongoing

Encourage passive solar design, in which window placement and building materials help to collect and maintain 
solar heat in the winter and reflect solar heat in the summer.

Standards to be included in updated zoning code and/or green building guidelines. 
Anticipated implementation:  2016

Require large homes over 3,000 square-feet to provide greater efficiency than required of smaller homes to 
compensate for the increased energy requirements of larger homes.

Standards to be included in updated zoning code and/or green building guidelines  
Anticipated implementation:  2016

Encourage projects to incorporate cool roofs and cool pavement into their designs. Standards to be included in updated zoning code and/or green building guidelines  
Anticipated implementation:  2016

Solar EnergyENRG-1

2015-2034, subject 
to change, 
potentially 
ongoing

Energy Upgrade 
California and 
Residential Energy 
Efficiency

ENRG-2 2015-2024; 
potentially 
ongoing

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

Partner with knowledgeable organizations to publicize the availability of grants, loans, and tax incentive options 
for various resource efficiency upgrades via the State or federal government, utility providers, and other sources. 
Work with Santa Cruz County and other regional government entities to ensure that Capitola is included in 
energy efficiency programs.

Identify potential partners, grant, and loan opportunities.  Publicize through 
education/outreach efforts and website content.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 
and ongoing

Provide outreach support for existing programs that provide energy efficiency retro-commissioning, audits, and 
retrofits for housing, including rental housing, businesses, non-profit organizations, and government, special 
district, and school district customers (e.g. PG&E, AMBAG, Central Coast Energy Services, Ecology Action, 
Energy Upgrade California)

Identify potential partners and programs.  Publicize through education/outreach efforts 
and on City sustainability website.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 and ongoing

Expand City and partner programs that enhance education regarding energy efficiency, resource conservation, 
and climate change programs and policies. As part of this process, engage local architects, planners, and 
engineers to help educate residents.

Identify potential partners and programs.  Publicize through education/outreach efforts 
and on City sustainability website.  Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 and  ongoing

Consider holding a "star nights" event whereby residents would voluntarily turn off interior and exterior lights 
to appreciate dark skies and star gazing opportunities.

Staff and/or the Commission on the Environment to develop a program proposal for 
City Council consideration.  Anticipated implementation:  2017-2019

ENRG-3 Residential 
Weatherization

Participate in Weatherization Assistance Programs to improve the insulation and energy efficiency of the homes 
of low-income households.

2015-2025; 
potentially 
ongoing

Participate in the federal Weatherization Assistance Program, Central Coast Energy 
Services, and the PG&E Energy Savings Assistance Program.  Publicize through 
education/outreach and website.  Consider adopting local funded incentive program.  
Anticipated implementation:  2016-2017 and ongoing

In partnership with PG&E and local alternative energy companies, develop an Alternative Energy Development 
Plan that includes citywide measurable goals and identifies the allowable and appropriate alternative energy 
facility types within the City, such as solar photovoltaics (PV) on urban residential and commercial roofs and 
low-scale wind power facilities. As part of this plan:

Work with PG&E to develop the Alternative Energy Development Plan. As part of this 
process, the City will identify which types of alternative energy facilities are appropriate in 
Capitola and where, identify means to address potential land use compatibility conflicts, 
and establish a development review process for new alternative energy projects.  
Anticipated implementation:  2018-2020

Propose phasing and timing of alternative energy facility and infrastructure development. Include timing/phasing info in Alternative Energy Development Plan.  Anticipated 
implementation:  2018-2020

Conduct a review of City policies and ordinances and establish a streamlined development review process for 
new alternative energy projects that ensures noise, aesthetic, and other potential land use compatibility conflicts 
are avoided.

Standards to be included in updated zoning code.  Anticipated implementation:  2016

Develop a renewable energy expansion plan for the City. Identify goals for expanding renewable energy use in Alternative Energy Development 
Plan.  Anticipated implementation:  2018-2020

Consider reducing permit fees or other incentives for alternative energy development. Expand green energy incentive program to include other forms of renewable energy and 
sustainable practices.  Anticipated implementation:  2015-2016 and ongoing

Provide incentives for electric car charging stations which use solar and other renewable energy generation. Continue the City's green energy incentive program, which offers free permitting for EV 
charging stations.  Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing

Partner with PG&E to promote individualized energy management planning and related services for large 
energy users.

Coordinate with PG&E to assist large energy consumers reduce their consumption. 
Anticipated implementation:  2016-2018

Join regional partners in advocating for the continuation and expansion of utility provider incentive programs to 
improve energy efficiency, and advocating for sustainable practices by the providers themselves.

Work with AMBAG and other regional partners to advocate for energy efficiency and 
sustainable practices.  Anticipated implementation:  present and ongoing

Require new development and major renovations to use energy-efficient appliances that meet ENERGY STAR 
standards and energy-efficient lighting techniques that meet or exceed Title 24 standards.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines.  Anticipated 
implementation:  2016

ENRG-4

Renewable Energy 
Sources and 
Community Choice 
Aggregation

2020-2034; 
potentially 
ongoing

Non-Residential 
Energy Efficiency

ENRG-5 2015-2034; 
potentially 
ongoing

  
  
  

 
 

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

Require the installation of programmable thermostats in new buildings and as part of additions or renovations 
to existing buildings.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines. Anticipated 
implementation:  2016

Require outdoor lighting fixtures in new development to be energy efficient. Require parking lot light fixtures 
and light fixtures on buildings to be on full cut-off fixtures, except emergency exit or safety lighting, and all 
permanently installed exterior lighting shall be controlled by either a photocell or an astronomical time switch. 
Prohibit continuous all night outdoor lighting in construction sites unless required for security reasons.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines. Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Periodically review, and if needed, amend Capitola's Green Building Ordinance to ensure effectiveness of the 
regulations relative to Title 24 standards.

Conduct reviews/updates of green building regulations every 3-5 years as part of regular 
building code updates.  Anticipated Implementation:  first review by 2016, subsequent 
reviews every 3-5 years.

Provide an expedited entitlement process and/or waiver of select permit fees for exemplary projects that greatly 
exceed requirements and that are "LEED©-Ready.”

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines. Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Incorporate green building techniques into the City's commercial and residential design guidelines.

p    g  g    g  g 
techniques.  Anticipated Implementation:  design guidelines - 2017-2019; green building 
program - 2016

Train all plan review and building inspection staff on green building materials, techniques, and practices. Enroll applicable staff in trainings to stay up to date with green building practices.  
Anticipated Implementation:  present and ongoing

Identify and remove regulatory or procedural barriers to implementing green building practices in the City by 
updating codes, guidelines, and zoning. Barriers will be removed during zoning code update.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016

Periodically review, and as needed, update City development codes and regulations to promote innovative 
energy-efficient technologies.

Review zoning code and green building standards every 3-5 years to ensure standards are 
effective and up to date.  Anticipated Implementation:  first review by 2016, subsequent 
reviews every 3-5 years.

Provide incentives, such as streamlined permitting and inspection processes or reduced permitting fees, for retail 
and hospitality establishments that utilize energy-efficient equipment.

Expand green energy incentive program to include energy efficient hospitality 
establishments.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

Promote LEED-certified or similar projects by providing maps and/or coordinated tours of such facilities. Inventory existing LEED-certified projects, develop map and information, and publicize 
on City sustainability website.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

ENRG-6 Right Lights Energy 
Efficiency Program

Publicize and encourage participation in the Right Lights Energy Efficiency Program, which offers no-obligation 
lighting audits and helps facilitate replacement of existing lighting with high-efficiency fixtures.

2015-2023; 
potentially 
ongoing

Engage in outreach and education efforts to inform business owners about the Right 
Lights program.  Publicize on City sustainability website.  Anticipated Implementation:  
2016-2017

Promote the Monterey Bay Area Green Business Program and publicize businesses in Capitola which have been 
certified. Over time, consider whether it will be advantageous to develop a program specific to Capitola. 
Consider whether to support the program via contributions to technical assistance and marketing, and consider 
implementation of the following supportive measures:

Inventory existing Green Businesses, develop promotional materials, and publicize on 
City sustainability website.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

Prioritize green business practices and local businesses in City purchases. Continue City policies which establish a preference for local purchases.  As applicable, 
amend City policies accordingly.  Anticipated Implementation:  present and ongoing

Promote the use of reusable, returnable, recyclable, and repairable goods. Conduct education/outreach, include info on City sustainability website.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016-2017

Encourage the use of locally grown and prepared foods at City events. Encourage vendors at City events to use locally grown and prepared foods.  Consider 
incentives and amend policies as appropriate.  Anticipated Implementation:  2017-2019

Establish a Green Village campaign to encourage participation of Village businesses and property owners in 
resource efficiency programs. Recognize these businesses on the City’s website and other outlets.

Identify existing resource efficiency efforts, encourage additional resource efficiency 
efforts, and work with Village Business owners to develop promotional materials.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2018-2020

Green Business 
ProgramENRG-7

2015-2021; 
potentially 
ongoing

 
 

 
 

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

Support the Buy Local campaign as a GHG reduction tool.
Identify how residents and businesses can increase local purchases, conduct 
education/outreach, and publicize via City sustainability website.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2017-2019

Expand City and partner programs that enhance education regarding energy efficiency, resource conservation, 
and climate change programs and policies.

Develop education/outreach plan to better inform citizens and businesses of the benefits 
of energy efficiency and resource conservation.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017 
and ongoing

Continue to make energy improvements to City facilities to maintain Capitola's certification from the Monterey 
Bay Green Business Program.

Evaluate opportunities to improve the City's energy efficiency and conservation during 
substantial remodel projects and construction of new City facilities.  Continue to make 
necessary improvements to maintain Capitola's Green Business certification.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  present and ongoing

Ensure that all City development projects serve as models of energy-efficient building design.
Evaluate opportunities to improve the City's energy efficiency and conservation during 
substantial remodel projects and construction of new City facilities.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  present and ongoing

Conduct periodic energy audits of City facilities and include any feasible energy cost reduction measures in the 
annual budget.

Perform energy audits every 5-10 years and include necessary upgrades in the CIP budget.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2017-2018 and ongoing

Prioritize the purchase of ENERGY STAR-rated appliances and computer equipment as new purchases 
become necessary.

Continue City practices to purchase low energy appliances and equipment. Anticipated 
Implementation:  present and ongoing

Amend the Green Building Ordinance to require water use and efficiency measures identified as voluntary in the 
California Green Building Standards Code for new development and substantial remodels.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Amend the Green Building Ordinance to promote water conservation through standards for water-efficient 
fixtures and offsetting demand so that there is no net increase in imported water use. Include clear parameters 
for integrating water conservations infrastructure and technologies, including low-flush toilets and low-flow 
showerheads. As appropriate, partner with local water conservation companies on the development and 
implementation of this measure.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Develop a water efficiency retrofit ordinance to require water efficiency upgrades as a condition of issuing 
permits for renovations or additions. Work with local water purveyors to achieve consistent standards and 
review and approval procedures for implementation.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Continue to require water efficiency retrofits at point of sale for residential, commercial, and industrial 
properties.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Collaborate with the Soquel Creek Water District and Santa Cruz Water Department to enact conservation 
programs for commercial, industrial, and institutional (CII) accounts.

Partner with water districts to identify additional conservation programs and implement 
as appropriate.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018 and ongoing

Partner with Central Coast Energy Services to integrate low-flow toilet and showerhead replacement services 
into their low-income housing retrofit services, and promote these services to homeowners.

Work with Central Coast Energy Services to provide program in Capitola.  Conduct 
education/outreach, publicize through website and other outreach efforts.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016-2018 and ongoing

In collaboration with the Soquel Creek Water District and Santa Cruz Water Department, promote water audit 
programs that offer free water audits to residential and commercial customers.

Include water conservation info and programs on City website sustainability page.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

Conduct marketing and outreach to promote water conservation rebates provided by the Soquel Creek Water 
District and Santa Cruz Water Department.

Include water conservation info and programs on City website sustainability page.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

Amend the Green Building Ordinance to promote water conservation through standards for watering timing 
and water-efficient irrigation equipment. As appropriate, partner with local water conservation companies on the 
development and implementation of this measure.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Water ConservationWW-1 2015-2023

   
 

Municipal Energy 
UseENRG-8

2015-2023; 
potentially 
ongoing

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

Review and update the City’s Water-Efficient Landscaping Ordinance with improved conservation programs 
and incentives for non-residential customers that are consistent with the Tier 1 water conservation standards of 
Title 24. 

Water-efficient landscaping ordinance to be updated in conjuction with zoning code 
update.  Standards to be included in zoning code and/or green building guidelines.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2016

Implement incentives for the use of drought-tolerant landscaping and recycled water for landscape irrigation
Continue free permitting incentives for grey water systems and continue to 
require/encourage drought-tolerant plantings. Anticipated Implementation:  present and 
ongoing

Investigate the feasibility of adding new California grey water building/plumbing codes into the Green Building 
Ordinance.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Adopt a residential rainwater collection policy and update the Zoning Code as needed to support permitting and 
regulation of residential rainwater systems. Standards to be included in the zoning code update.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016

Investigate emerging technologies that reuse water within residential and commercial buildings and make that 
information available to the public via the City’s website and/or brochures.

Research new technologies, conduct education/outreach, and promote via City's website 
sustainability page. Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017 and ongoing

Pursue funding sources to provide rebates and reduce permit fees for cisterns. Identify potential funding sources, including grants, green building funds, etc.   
Anticipated Implementation:  2018-2020

Provide outreach support for water-efficient landscaping programs, classes, and businesses. Develop and implement a comprehensive sustainability education/outreach initiative.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

Establish an ultra-low water use policy for City buildings and operations, and provide mechanisms to achieve 
policy goals. Develop policy for City Council consideration.  Anticipated Implementation:  2017-2019

Work with water service providers to develop and implement a reclaimed (recycled) water distribution system 
(purple pipe) for landscaping and other non-potable water uses for domestic, commercial, and industrial 
consumers.

Support efforts to develop recycled water infrastructure.  Anticipated Implementation:  
TBD depending on service provider plans and funding.

WW-3 Municipal Water Use
2015-2034; 
potentially 
ongoing

 

Water Recycling and 
Rainwater 
Catchment

WW-2
2015-2034; 
potentially 
ongoing

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

Work with Green Waste Recovery to reduce community per capita solid waste disposal by 75 percent by 2020. 
Implement the following sub-measures in support of this goal:

Continue to work with Green Waste to identify ways to comply with State mandates for 
75% solid waste reduction goals.  Anticipated Implementation:  2020

Conduct a study to consider providing financial incentives to households and businesses to reduce the volume 
of solid waste sent to the landfill. Based on the results of this study, undertake such incentives, as appropriate.

Coordinate with Green Waste to determine if additional information would be beneficial. 
If so, partner with Green Waste and other local jurisdictions to develop and complete a 
study.  Anticipated Implementation:  2018-2020

Partner with PG&E to establish an end-of-life requirement for appliance disposal. Establish a protocol per US 
EPA’s Responsible Appliance Disposal Program.

Work with PG&E to develop and implement program.  Anticipated Implementation:  
2018-2020

Revise the Recycling Ordinance to require at least 50 percent diversion of non-hazardous construction waste 
from disposal, as required by the California Green Building Code.

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines or municipal code.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018

Amend the Green Building Ordinance to encourage building designs that minimize waste and consumption in 
construction projects. 

Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines. Anticipated 
Implementation:  2016

Retain Zoning Code requirements for all new and significant redevelopments/remodels of existing multi-family 
developments, including those with fewer than five units, to provide recycling areas for their residents. Requirement to be retaining in updated zoning code.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016

Work with Green Waste Recovery to improve recycling collection services in the Village and in commercial 
areas.

Continue to encourage Green Waste to improve recycling collection services.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  present and ongoing.

Amend the Municipal Code to require recycling at all public events that require a City permit. Prepare draft ordinance amendment for City Council consideration.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2017-2019

Encourage the use of recycled asphalt pavement (RAP) for commercial and community parking lots. Standards to be included in amended green building guidelines or municipal code.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018

Encourage the use of reusable, returnable, recyclable, and repairable goods through incentives, educational 
displays, and activities.

Provide information about opportunities and benefits on City website sustainability page.  
Consider incentive program(s) and identify funding sources.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2017-2019

Encourage the reduction of waste and consumption from household and business activities in Capitola through 
public outreach and education activities. 

Include in sustainability education/outreach initiatives.  Anticipated Implementation:  
2016-2017

Support recycling and compost efforts at City schools by providing information and educational materials. Conduct education/outreach efforts with City schools, including administrators, 
educators, and parents.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

SW-2
Community-Wide 
Food Waste 
Reduction

Continue the City's Food Waste Reduction Program and policies related to green waste diversion to keep food 
and green waste out of the landfill.

2015-2020; 
potentially 
ongoing

Continue to promote food waste reduction efforts.  Work with GreenWaste to exlore 
options to provide curbside food waste collection, composter rebates and/or giveaways.  
Explore opportunities with landfill operators to develop a food waste to energy (e.g., 
anaerobic digestion) system.   Anticipated Implementation:  present and ongoing  work 
with Green Waste and landfill operators. 

Identify and inventory potential community garden and urban farm sites on parks, public easements, PG&E 
easements, and rights-of-way, and develop a program to establish community gardens in appropriate locations.

Identify and inventory candidate sites and potential partners to develop community 
gardens and food forests.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018

Encourage significant new residential developments over 50 units to include space that can be used to grow 
food. Standards to be included in updated zoning code.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016

Establish a process through which a neighborhood can propose and adopt a site as a community garden. Develop standards for residents to establish a community garden.  Consider a City policy 
to codify standards.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018

Work with schools to develop opportunities for creating additional community gardens on their campuses. Identify and inventory candidate sites and potential partners to develop community 
gardens and food forests.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018

Community Gardens 
and Locally-Sourced 
Food

OS-1 2015-2020; 
potentially 
ongoing

SW-1

Community-Wide 
Solid Waste 
Diverstion and 
Recycling 

2015-2020; 
potentially 
ongoing

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



MEASURE 
ID

MEASURE 
DESCRIPTION REDUCTION MEASURE ACTIONS SCHEDULE IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND TIMING

As part of the Zoning Ordinance Update, identify and address barriers to urban farming and produce sales 
directly from farmers to consumers. Standards to be included in updated zoning code.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016

Promote food grown locally in Capitola through marketing, outreach, and by providing locally grown and 
prepared food at City events, helping to reduce the transportation needs for food distribution while boosting the 
local economy.

Encourage vendors at City events to provide locally grown and prepared food.  Consider 
incentives for vendors who provide locally grown/prepared food.  Promote businesses 
through City website and other materials disseminated through education/outreach 
activities.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018

Encourage neighborhood grocery stores, farmers markets, and food assistance programs to increase their use of 
locally-grown and prepared goods.

Engage in education/outreach with grocery stores.  Encourage reestablishment of a 
farmer's market.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018

Encourage institutions, such as schools, government agencies, and businesses to serve foods produced locally 
and in the region. Include in education and awareness initiatives.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

OS-2 Urban Forests Increase and enhance open space and urban forests and support community tree plantings
2015-2020; 
potentially 
ongoing

Identify and inventory candidate sites and potential partners to develop community 
gardens,food forests, and community tree plantings.  Anticipated Implementation:  2016-
2018

Participate fully in local, regional, State, and federal efforts to reduce GHG emissions and mitigate the impacts 
resulting from climate change, including through the following sub-measures:

Community Development Department staff to actively engage in climate change iniatives.  
Anticipated Implementation:  present and ongoing

Support ongoing public efforts to increase climate change awareness, action, and advocacy. Community Development Department staff to monitor local climate change efforts, 
partner with other agencies, and actively pursue new and innovative strategies to increase 
sustainability.  Anticipated Implementation:  present and ongoing

Support the coordination and promotion of films, events, speakers, and forums related to climate change. Consider hosting events and forums intended to educate the public about climate change.  
Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2018 and ongoing

Advocate for effective State and federal policies and lead by example through reporting of local reduction 
success.

Prepare progress reports during regular 5-year updates and support leglislation which 
addresses climate change.   Anticipated Implementation:  2020 and every 5 years 
thereafter.

Explore opportunities to engage high school students in reducing their personal GHG emissions as well as 
becoming leaders in communitywide GHG reductions.

Conduct education/outreach efforts with City schools, including administrators, 
educators, and parents.   Anticipated Implementation:  2016-2017

Partner with regional municipalities to establish funding to support GHG reduction efforts. Continue participation in the Santa Cruz County Climate Action Compact and coordinate 
with the Center for Ocean Solutions to support efforts to obtain funding for local and 
regional initiatives.   Anticipated Implementation:  present and ongoing

Coordinate implementation and ongoing implementation of the Climate Action Plan through 2035, including 
through the following sub-measures: Implement the Climate Action Plan.  Anticipated Implementation:  2015 and ongoing

Conduct periodic reviews and revisions of the Climate Action Plan. Complete regular updates of the CAP every 5 years. Anticipated Implementation:  2020 
and every 5 years thereafter.

Conduct GHG emissions inventories at least every five years, in partnership with regional municipalities, 
AMBAG, and PG&E.

Coordinate with AMBAG to complete emissions inventories.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2020 and every 5 years thereafter.

Establish a process for reporting on GHG emissions within appropriate Council reports to evaluate and analyze 
how actions support or are consistent with the City’s GHG reduction goals.

 p   g   p   p  p g  g    
reports, budget reports, city website, or other effective means.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2020 and every 5 years thereafter.

Integrate City departments' operational implementation of the Climate Action Plan through coordination with 
staff of all relevant City programs and by assigning a staff person to serve as the City’s Climate Action 
Coordinator.

Community Development staff will lead City coordination efforts.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2015 and ongoing

Quantify and report on the effectiveness of the implementation of the Climate Action Plan and make the 
information available to City Council, all City departments, partners, and the public.

Provide reports with regular CAP updates.  Report progress through General Plan 
reports, budget reports, city website, or other effective means.  Anticipated 
Implementation:  2020 and every 5 years thereafter.

Climate Action Plan 
Implementation and 
Maintenance

IMP-2
2020-2035; 
potentially 
ongoing

  
  

 
 

Comprehensive 
Climate Change 
Efforts

IMP-1
2015-2035; 
potentially 
ongoing

8.C.3

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 (
12

24
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

)



CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF MAY 28, 2015

FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

SUBJECT: DRAFT CLIMATE ACTION PLAN AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE PUBLIC 
REVIEW

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation and authorize staff to initiate public review.

BACKGROUND: Over the past decade, the State of California has passed several executive 
and legislative acts aimed at improving air quality and mitigating the causes of climate change. 
Notably, Assembly Bill 32, the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006, mandates that 
statewide greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions be reduced to 1990 levels by the year 2020. 
Senate Bill 375 and Executive Order S-3-05 also require state and local actions to reduce GHG 
emissions.

Independent of State legislation, the City of Capitola and its residents have long been 

commitment to environmental stewardship is a prominent theme in the recently adopted 
General Plan Update, which was based in part on the guiding principle to: Embrace 

natural resources including the beaches, creeks, ocean, and lagoon that contribute to 
unique identity and scenic beauty. Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and prepare 

for the effects of global climate change, including increased flooding and coastal erosion caused 
by sea-level rise.

The Capitola General Plan includes numerous goals and policies intended to promote resource 
conservation; greater water and energy efficiency; green building practices; waste reduction; 
and alternative modes of transportation all of which contribute to a reduction in greenhouse 
gas (GHG) emissions responsible for climate change. The certified General Plan Update 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) also includes mitigation measure GHG-1 which requires the 
City to prepare a Climate Action Plan within 18 months of adopting the General Plan Update.

DISCUSSION: The proposed Climate Action Plan (CAP) provides a roadmap for the City to 
combat local sources of climate change by providing a menu of actions which reduce GHG 
emissions. Once adopted and implemented, the CAP would fulfill several General Plan goals 
and bring the City into conformance with AB 32, Senate Bill 375, and Executive Order S-3-05.

CAPs are implementation plans used by over 400 California cities and counties to outline local 
strategies to reduce GHG emissions. CAPs typically consist of an inventory of existing GHG 
emissions, a forecast of future GHG emissions, identification of GHG reduction targets, and a 
list of GHG reduction measures necessary to achieve identified reduction targets. The draft 
Capitola CAP follows this model. A summary of each section is presented below.

8.C.4

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
 2

8,
 2

01
5 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



AGENDA STAFF REPORT MAY 28, 2015
DRAFT CLIMATE ACTION PLAN AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE PUBLIC REVIEW

C:\Users\mdeiter\Desktop\Agenda Working Folder\10.B. Climate Action Plan\10.B. CAP - CC Staff Report.docx

Existing GHG Emissions Inventory
GHG emissions are generated by a number of human activities, including transportation, energy 
use, transport and treatment of water/wastewater, and solid waste disposal. According to its 
2010 baseline GHG inventory prepared by AMBAG, Capitola generated approximately 88,091 
metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (MTCO2e)

rall 
emission inventory, followed by energy use at 33%, solid waste at 2% and water/wastewater 
treatment and distribution at less than 1%.

SOURCE/ACTIVITY
2010 BASELINE GHG 

INVENTORY
TOTAL EMMISSION 

%
Transportation and Mobile Sources 57,123 64.8%
Energy Consumption 28,825 32.7%
Solid Waste 1,476 1.7%
Water and Wastewater Treatment  667 0.8%
TOTALS 88,091 100%

Forecast of Future GHG Emissions

The business as usual forecast assumes a scenario in which there are no federal, state, or local 
actions taken to reduce GHG emissions. The adjusted business as usual forecast accounts for 
existing state and federal emission reduction initiatives, but assumes Capitola takes no local 
actions.  

approximately 2% by 2020 and 4% by 2035. The adjusted business as usual forecast projects 
an approximately 12% reduction in 2020 and a 22% reduction by 2035.

SCENARIO GHG EMISSIONS MTCO2e % CHANGE
2010 Baseline 88,091 --
Business as Usual 2020 89,812 2%
Business as Usual 2035 91,743 4%
Adjusted Business as Usual 2020 77,789 -12%
Adjusted Business as Usual 2035 68,980 -22%

Capitola Reduction Targets
The proposed CAP sets a 4.9% GHG emissions reduction target by 2020. The 4.9% target was 
established by using the 2014 updated statewide GHG emissions inventory prepared by the 
California Air Resources Board (CARB) which estimated that California would need to achieve a 
4.9% GHG reduction by 2020 to comply with AB 32.  

The CAP also includes an interim 2035 target and a long range 2050 target as mandated by 
Executive Order S-3-05. The 2035 target is to reduce GHG emissions by 42.9 percent below 

2010 baseline, while the 2050 target represents an 81% reduction.

YEAR REDUCTION TARGET PROJECTED 
REDUCTION

DELTA

2020 4.9% 18% 13.1%
2035 42.9% 40.4% -  2.5%
2050 81.0% 39.3% - 41.7%

While the CAP demonstrates the City can exceed its 2020 reduction target and substantially 
meet its 2035 interim target, the 2050 target is presently unattainable for Capitola, as well as the 
vast majority of California jurisdictions without transformational technology advancements.

8.C.4

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
 2

8,
 2

01
5 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



AGENDA STAFF REPORT MAY 28, 2015
DRAFT CLIMATE ACTION PLAN AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE PUBLIC REVIEW

C:\Users\mdeiter\Desktop\Agenda Working Folder\10.B. Climate Action Plan\10.B. CAP - CC Staff Report.docx

Proposed GHG Reduction Measures

presented in chapters 6 and 7. The proposed reduction measures are based on measures 
presented to the General Plan Advisory Committee (GPAC) on January 16, 2013, and the 
Commission on the Environment (COE) in September 2014 and April 2015. The GPAC 
recommended focusing on education and incentives, rather than regulatory mandates, and to 
particularly avoid measures which increase costs to property owners when selling or renovating 
homes and businesses. The COE indicated a preference for more mandatory measures, 
including point-of-sale energy efficiency audit and retrofit requirements for new and existing 
residential and commercial buildings.

The draft CAP has been prepared with a focus on voluntary and incentive based programs; 
however, in order to show quantifiable GHG reductions, some regulatory measures were 
needed and are included in the draft CAP. The draft CAP does not currently include point-of-
sale energy efficiency retrofit requirements. A comprehensive list of proposed reduction 
measures is included as Attachment 2.  

Proposed reduction measures are divided into six categories which are shown in the following 
table along with corresponding local GHG reduction projections (reductions achieved through 
federal and state actions are not included).

REDUCTION MEASURE 2020 REDUCTION 
(MTCO2e)

2035 REDUCTION (MTCO2e)

Vehicle Miles Travelled 
(transportation)

2,972 7,996

Residential and Non-Residential 
Energy

2,078 8,532

Water and Wastewater  67  1
Solid Waste 922  922
Parks, Open Space, and Agriculture No Measurable Reductions
Action and Implementation No Measurable Reductions
TOTAL 6,039 17,451

enable the 
City to significantly exceed its mandatory 2020 reduction target. Consequently, the City is not 
obligated to implement every reduction measure listed in the draft CAP. In this regard, the CAP 
provides a menu of reduction measures which provides the City with flexibility to implement 
select measures based on GHG reduction potential and cost considerations.

Next Steps
If authorized by the City Council, staff will release the draft CAP and associated CEQA 
document for a 30 day public review and comment period. At the conclusion of public review, 
staff will draft responses to all comments received and revise the CAP accordingly. The CAP 
will then be presented to the Planning Commission for a recommendation and the City Council 
for potential adoption.

FISCAL IMPACT: The Climate Action Plan contains numerous action items, which if adopted, 
would individually and collectively require funding to implement. The actual cost to implement 
the CAP action items is difficult to estimate given its 20+ year planning horizon. However, 
implementation of GHG reduction measures will require City investment of staff resources and 
funding. Many of the reduction measures, such as improving pedestrian and bicycle facilities, 
will require future commitments of capital improvement funds. Staff intends to include these 

8.C.4

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
 2

8,
 2

01
5 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)



AGENDA STAFF REPORT MAY 28, 2015
DRAFT CLIMATE ACTION PLAN AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE PUBLIC REVIEW

C:\Users\mdeiter\Desktop\Agenda Working Folder\10.B. Climate Action Plan\10.B. CAP - CC Staff Report.docx

measures in the annual Capital Improvement Project list for the City Council to consider during 
annual budget deliberations. Staff believes it can implement the proposed action items as 
presently outlined in the CAP with existing staff levels. No additional funding is currently 
requested.

ATTACHMENTS

1. The Draft Climate Action Plan is available online at:
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community_development/
page/1463/preliminary_draft_climate_action_plan.pdf

2. Proposed GHG Reduction Measures.

Report Prepared By: Richard Grunow
Community Development Director

8.C.4

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
 2

8,
 2

01
5 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

12
24

 :
 A

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

C
lim

at
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
)


	Agenda Packet
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. Item 8.B.:  Revised Attachment 3 (Bandstand Policy)
	Attachment: Item 8.B.:  Revised Attachment 3 (Bandstand Policy)

	B. Item 8.C.:  Communication from the public regarding the Climate Action Plan (CAP)
	Attachment: Item 8.C.:  Communication from the public regarding the Climate Action Plan (CAP)


	3. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	6. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	A. Traffic & Parking Appointment
	Printout: Traffic & Parking Appointment
	1. Application from Willie Case
	2. Traffic & Parking Commission Roster
	3. Traffic & Parking Recruitment Notice


	7. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. October 8, 2015 City Council Minutes
	Printout: October 8, 2015 City Council Minutes
	1. Draft October 8, 2015 City Council Minutes

	B. Approval of City Check Register Reports
	Printout: Approval of City Check Register Reports
	1. City Check Register 9-04-15
	2. City Check Register 9-11-15
	3. City Check Register 9-18-15
	4. City Check Register 9-25-15

	C. 3-Hour Village Parking Limits
	Printout: 3-Hour Village Parking Limits
	1. Resolution No. 4014 Establishing Parking Time Limits Within Designated Parking Meter Zones

	D. Fourth Quarter Budget and Third Quarter Sales Tax
	Printout: Fourth Quarter Budget and Third Quarter Sales Tax
	1. Sales Tax Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014/2015
	2. Budget Report 2015 Fourth Quarter

	E. Street Striping Contract Award
	Printout: Street Striping Contract Award
	1. Safety Striping Bid
	2. Chrisp Bid

	F. Rispin Park Design Contract
	Printout: Rispin Park Design Contract
	1. Arnone & Associates Proposal for Rispin Park Construction Documents
	2. Approved Conceptual Plans

	G. Report on Public Works Staff Augmentation
	Printout: Report on Public Works Staff Augmentation


	8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. El Niño Report
	Printout: El Niño Report

	B. Amend Capitola Bandstand Policy
	Printout: Amend Capitola Bandstand Policy
	1. V-7 Bandstand Community Use Policy
	2. Memo V-7 Bandstand reservation policy addendum
	3. Draft V-7 Bandstand Community Use Policy

	C. Adoption of the Climate Action Plan
	Printout: Adoption of the Climate Action Plan
	1. Addendum to the General Plan Update EIR for the Climate Action Plan
	2. Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District Comments and Staff Responses
	3. Climate Action Plan Implementation Strategy
	4. May 28, 2015 City Council Staff Report


	9. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · Item 8.B.:  Revised Attachment 3 (Bandstand Policy)
	2.B · Item 8.C.:  Communication from the public regarding the Climate Action Plan (CAP)
	6.A · Traffic & Parking Appointment
	6.A.1 · Application from Willie Case
	6.A.2 · Traffic & Parking Commission Roster
	6.A.3 · Traffic & Parking Recruitment Notice

	7.A · October 8, 2015 City Council Minutes
	7.A.1 · Draft October 8, 2015 City Council Minutes

	7.B · Approval of City Check Register Reports
	7.B.1 · City Check Register 9-04-15
	7.B.2 · City Check Register 9-11-15
	7.B.3 · City Check Register 9-18-15
	7.B.4 · City Check Register 9-25-15

	7.C · 3-Hour Village Parking Limits
	7.C.1 · Resolution No. 4014 Establishing Parking Time Limits Within Designated Parking Meter Zones

	7.D · Fourth Quarter Budget and Third Quarter Sales Tax
	7.D.1 · Sales Tax Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2014/2015
	7.D.2 · Budget Report 2015 Fourth Quarter

	7.E · Street Striping Contract Award
	7.E.1 · Safety Striping Bid
	7.E.2 · Chrisp Bid

	7.F · Rispin Park Design Contract
	7.F.1 · Arnone & Associates Proposal for Rispin Park Construction Documents
	7.F.2 · Approved Conceptual Plans

	7.G · Report on Public Works Staff Augmentation
	8.A · El Niño Report
	8.B · Amend Capitola Bandstand Policy
	8.B.1 · V-7 Bandstand Community Use Policy
	8.B.2 · Memo V-7 Bandstand reservation policy addendum
	8.B.3 · Draft V-7 Bandstand Community Use Policy

	8.C · Adoption of the Climate Action Plan
	8.C.1 · Addendum to the General Plan Update EIR for the Climate Action Plan
	8.C.2 · Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District Comments and Staff Responses
	8.C.3 · Climate Action Plan Implementation Strategy
	8.C.4 · May 28, 2015 City Council Staff Report



